MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

Tuesday, February 6, 2001
10:00 a.m. '

Fort Vermilion School Division

Fort Vermilion, Alberta

AGENDA
10:00 a.m.
CALL TO ORDER: 1. a) Call to Order Page \
ADOPTION OF
AGENDA: 2 a) Adoption of Agenda Page \
DELEGATIONS: 3. a) Rainbow Lake Community Health Council Page 5
b) Tire Recycling Board Page C]
c) EXH Engineering Page 4s
d) Public Lands Page 471
ADMINISTRATIVE,
COUNCIL,
PERSONNEL: 4. a)  LaCrete Public School Grant Page 49
(Councillor Kulscar)
b) Page
c) Page
d) Page
e) Page
PROTECTIVE
SERVICES: 5 a) Update and Recommendations from the
(Councillor Bateman) Police Task Force Page 532
b) Page
c) Page






MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE AGENDA
Tuesday, February 6, 2001

PAGE 2

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES:

(Councillor Newman)

UTILITY
SERVICES:

6.

i

(Councillor Rosenberger)

RECREATION AND

TOURISM:

COMMUNITY
SUPPORT
SERVICES:
(Walter Sarapuk)

PLANNING AND
DEVELOPMENT:
(Councillor Wieler)

AGRICULTURAL
SERVICES:
(Councillor Thiessen)

ADJOURNMENT:

8.

10.

11.

12.

Traffic Safety Act

Adjourn Committee of the Whole Meeting

Page =
Page

Page

Page

Page

Page

Page

Page

Page

Page
Page
Page
Page

Page

Page

Page






M.D. of Mackenzie No. 23

Request For Decision

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT 0F MACKENTIE

Meeting: Committee of the Whole

Meeting Date: February 6, 2001

Originated By: Harvey Prockiw, CAO

Title: Rainbow Lake Community Health Council

Agenda Item No: = =)

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

On November 2, 2000 a letter was received from the Co-Chair, Julie Melville of the
Rainbow Lake Health Centre advising of their current expansion, requesting that the
MD assist with funding to construct an enclosed canopy at the ambulance entrance at
the Rainbow Lake Health Centre.

Ron Arnason has requested that he be allowed to make a presentation to Council
regarding funding for the canopy.

DISCUSSION / OPTIONS / BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:

The total cost of the canopy is $40,000 and the Rainbow Lake Health Centre is
requesting that the Town of Rainbow Lake and the MD of Mackenzie each contribute
$20,000 for construction.

The MD offered to contribute $20,000 towards the construction of the ambulance
canopy but the Town of Rainbow Lake turned the funding down.

COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:

RECOMMENDED ACTION (by originator):

That

Review: Dept. C.A.O. @

L







O -

Rainbow Lake Health Council
Box 177

Rainbow Lake, Alberta

TOH 2Y0

November 2, 2000

Municipal District # 23
Box 640 ‘

Fort Vermilion, Alberta
TOH 1NO

Attention: Harvey Prokiw

[ECEIVE]

¥ MoV - 5 2000

 MUNICIPAL DISTRICT
" OF MACKENZIE NC. 23

| MO, - FORT VERMILON |

Northwestern Health Services is currently doing an expansion to the Rainbow
Lake Health Centre. The community and the Health Council have expressed a
desire to have an enclosed canopy at the ambulance entrance. This canopy
would mean patients would not be exposed to the harsh elements during

admission to the Centre and transfer from it.

This improvement would be of benefit to both municipalities, since we do

respond to the needs of both.

Our request to Alberta Health to build this canopy was denied. Since we are
limited in our ability to fund raise, we are requesting that M.D. #23 and the

Town of Rainbow Lake assist us,

The cost of the canopy is $40,000.00; we arc asking each municipality to

support us with half the cost, ($20,000.00 each)

If you have any questions regarding this request, please contact Julie Melvilie
(956-3746) or Jo Bently at the Health Unit (956-3646). '

Thank you for your consideration of this request. We would appreciate hearing
your decision as soon as possible so that a determination can be made on this

project.

Julie Melville
Co-Chair
Rainbow Lake Heaith Council



Jan=31=01

04:130m

e gl AR

"Health
Services
Region

Nn‘ﬂhwalrrﬂ s Mualiny Autharine 12

Community and
Public Health Servicos

Main Office

High 1 evel Health Centre
o] Flour, 9B0E = 100 Avenun
Pustal Rag 2,000

1 ligh Luved, Alberta

Canada TOM 120

Tuluphonu 1403] 4287000
Fausimile (4103) 9262001

La Crue Health Centra
10000 - 105 Sirect

Pusial Box 295

La Civie, Alburra

Cunacla Tul i 2H0
Tulephone (A0) 9283242
Faostmile whldy D2R-3080

Fon Varmilion | ealth (eniee
Pactal Gox A8

Foil Vermilion, Alberta
Canacla TOH 1NQ
Tulephont @) 927-3391
Facsimile (403) 927-4440)

Rairhw Lake Heahh Centre
Pasl Box 172

Ruinhow Lake, Alhesy
Canaz TON 2v0
Tolewhone {409) 95h-3646
Facsmile (4041 #50-3338

Paddle Prairia Hualth Cantre
Postai Box 116

T Paddln Pralrie, Albena
Canada TOH 2wW0
Telpphonu (403) Y] 2184
Facsimile (403] 981-2190

Takl T4 D00 19117

From=RAINBOW LAKE HEALTH CENTRE

January 30, 2001

Municipal District #23
Box 640

Fort Varmilion, AB
TOH 1NQ

uest for Amhulanca Bay
Rainbow Lake Health Center

The Rainbow Lake Health Center is b‘ ing expanded with construction starting in the
early summer of 2001. The expansion $ill provide additional clinical and office space as
well as some capacity for Silver Birch. Alberta Infrastructure is funding a canopy over the
ambulance bay, bul will not fund a complete enclosura. The cesign team for the project
and Alberta Infrastructure ars prepared o enclose the ambulance bay provided the cost
af $40,000 is paid from sources oulside the project.
1

The Rainbow Lake Community Heaith Council and Rainbow Lake Ambulance see an
advantage In completing this wark in comjunction with the main project as there would be
significant cost savings in comparison with doing this at a later date. The advanlages ot
having a closed ambulanca bay are cdnfidentiality (eliminate people standing around
watching when ambulance is 2t the clinit) and safety. We have had an incident where
attendants slipped on ice and dropped a patient.

Because the ambulance serves patienls from the Town of Rainbow Lake and MD of
Mackenzie, the Rainbaw Lake Health Council is approaching the: wo municipalities with a
request for the funding required. At thelJan 22 council meeting the Town of Rainbow
Laka approved $20,000 towards this projgct.

The Heaith Council would request that Mi} provide funding for the batance of the costs to
allow this project to proceed. Ron Arnasqn will be attending the council meeting on Feb
& and will be available to answer any queslions you may have re.arding this request.

We thank you for your consideration of the‘lraquest.

Yours teuly,

Julie Melvilie, Chairpersen

Rainbow Lake Community Health Council
Box 177

Rainbow Lake, AB

TOH 2Y0

+ PRGE. 91

O

@,

*¥ TOTAL PRGE.B2 Xk



M.D. of Mackenzie No. 23

Request For Decision

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENIIE

Meeting: Committee of the Whole
Meeting Date: February 6, 2001
Originated By: Harvey Prockiw, CAO
Title: Tire Recycling Board

Agenda ltem No: 3 b)

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

Concerns have been raised by Council about the Tire Recycling Board. Council
therefore invited representatives of the Tire Recycling Board to appear before the
Committee of the Whole meeting to address these issues and to meet the new
Chairman.

The Tire Recycling Board will be represented by Sid Hinton, Chairman; Lorne Olsvick,
Member; and Don Wright, Executive Director.

DISCUSSION / OPTIONS / BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:

To discuss concerns in regards to tire recycling.

COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:

RECOMMENDED ACTION (by originator):

That this item be accepted for information.

Review: Dept. C.A.O.







o

O

W,

TIRES

A REPORT ON THE HANDLING OF OUR MUNICIPAL
TIRES

‘BY: Marco Braat, Superintendent of Utilities

History:

In the past the Municipal District of Mackenzie experienced very poor co-operation from -
the Tire Recycling Board in regards to tire pick-up. Also the amount of time spend by the
staff to handle tires such as having to make sure the tires were lined up in rows so loading
of the tires using MD equipment would be more efficient, the transferring of tires from all
transfer station to La Crete because that was the only location that the Tire Recycling
Board would pick up the tires. Congested transfer stations due to the build up of tires, the
risk factor that the MD absorbs in case of a fire break out in the tire piles.

The Municipality has raised a lot of concerns in relation to the Tire Recycling Board’s
lack of response and administration of the MD has contacted the Tire Recycling Board on
a number of occasions expressing its concerns pertaining to the tires.

The Peace Region Scrap Tire round up in 1998 never did come to collect the tires in La

Crete until a year later during the second round-up process.

Current:

~ Since 1999 improvements have been noticed by MD administration as to the timely

collection of tires, the way the tires are handled and the communication between the Tire
Recycling Board.

The last time the tires were collected was in October 2000, the trucking company came
up for two loads picking up at La Crete, Blumenort and Fort Vermilion. Some 4000 tires
were collected including large truck tires. Arrangements were made for another collection
scheduled in early February 2001. The trucking company also said that they would be
taking some of the oversized dimension tires from our transfer stations.

In the past the trucking company only came to one site for collection and now they will
do a milk run type collection.

In the past the trucking company relied on the MD staff to help load trucks using the MD
loader and staff manhandling the tires into a van style trailer unit. Now the truck comes
with its own grapple and can handle picking up tires without any MD assistance. The



trailer the trucking company uses now is an open top style van unit similar to what the
wood chip truckers use.

The municipality has also received calls from other trucking companies interested in the
pick-up of tires.

Inquiries were made to the transfer station attendants as to how much time has been
spend handling tires at the transfer stations over the last six months.

1) Henry Driedger, La Crete, Blumenort and Rocky Lane

10 Hours
2)  James McAteer, Fort Vermilion 2 Hours
3) Peter Wieler, Bluehills -1 Hour
4) Chris Parsdns, Zama ‘1 Hour

Although the amounts are minimum if you were to add all the sites across the province

the numbers would be surprisingly high. I myself have spend time making arrangements
for pick-up and placing long distance phone calls for the removal of the Tire Boards tires.

Ttem to address the Tire Rgcycling Board:

1)  Storage of their tires on our transfer station without compensation. The MD is
proposing a fee for services/storage of the tires to the Tire Recycling Board. For
instance a $1.00 fee per tire collected at the transfer station invoiced to the Tire
Recycling Board on a monthly basis.

2)  The concem for continual regular pick-up services.

3)  The liability factor should the tires catch fire in the transfer station.

4)  The market for local tire recycling companies and the feasibility.

1%

9



®

© January 3, 2001

. Fort Vermllllon AB TOH 1INO®

" Dear Sir or Madam® ’ .

AN ) A . PO.Box 189

Tire Recycling. _ - Eémonton, Alberta T5) 2J1
Management : Co - _ -

Assoc|at|on | v Ph: [780) 990-1111 Fax: {780) 990-1 122

Toll Free l -888-999-8762
of Alberta

email: u'ma@trma.com -website: www.Irma.com

M.D. of Mackeﬁzie
P.O. Box 640

- ATTENTION: Eva Schmidt - ' T

;RE: Tire Recfrcling' and Management Regulation (AR 206/96) Regulati_onf'Review = ‘

As per your request regardlhg Tire Recycling and Management Regulation (AR 206!96)

. Regulation Review please find attached a copy of the Dsscussmn Paper and a copy of the
- Regulatlon : ‘

' Any comments you may have on the Dlscussmn Paper or on the Regulatlon should be

forwarded to the Tire Recycling Management Association of Alberta (TRMA) no later than
January 31, 2001. Please provide your comments on the formi provided. Comments may be
returned to the TRMA by mail, fax or you may ema|| your comments to trma@trma.com.

: We Iook forward to hearing from you. .

“Yours truly, _

TIRE RECYCLING MANAGEMENT . : SR
ASSOCIATION OF ALBERTA T . : ' s

e

Claire Petrie .

- . Administrative Assistant

- Atta‘chment""



14

O



TIRE RECYCLING AND MANAGEMENT REGULATION

REVIEW PROCESS

COMMENTS

Date

Name of Representative or Individual

Name of Organization

Address

Phone

Fax

Email-

Comments:




16

)

ol



)

TIRE RECYCLING MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION OF ALBERTA
Q DISCUSSION PAPER -

. v November 15, 2000

17



VL

TABLE OF CONTENTS

BACKGROUND: ......ovvnnernninsennnnnseeernnenneseeens

CRITERIA

--------------------------------------------------

PROCESS: ......... S R

TRMA MANDATE: ......... P e |

DISCUSSION: ........cciivinvnennnes it eaer e e
A. AssessmentofCriteria . ........... et
B. Discussion Points for PossibleChange . ............... 00

1.

oup @B

Specific inclusion of all Alberta Scrap Tires as part of the
Regulatory Program ............. e reer i e
Movement and storage of tiresin Alberta . ..............
Cross-border movement of scrap tires and scrap tire
material . ... .. ... ettt s s
Variable Advance Disposal Surcharge rate ....... e
Remittance of Surcharge at point of first sale in Alberta . ...
Requirement for separate accounting of the Surcharge

COMMENTS: . ....iiiit it iiienraearas et ssneesnnnassses

SCHEDULE "A" ... .ttt itirenneas s sasos o

Demonstration Projects ...... S
Research and Development ............ccccvenerannn
Municipal Civil Engineering ...........cccoecerinneee
Municipal Landfill Projects . ...........c.convenvencvnen
Interprovincial and International Cooperation ............

18

12

O

1
N
m N N N e B .




ALBERTA REGULATORY REVIEW

Tire Recycling and Management Regulation (AR 206/96)

TIRE RECYCLING MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION OF ALBERTA ("TRMA")

DISCUSSION PAPER

BACKGROUND:

The Provincial Government has implemented a Regulation Review Policy as a

‘result of the increasing number of, and cost of, regulations. The aim is to improve

the quality of regulations, by making them clear and concise, with simplified
procedures and requirements, and by reducing compliance and administrative
expenses.

The regulatory reform initiative of the Provincial Government requires that every
regulation be reviewed and considered for possible elimination or amendment.

The Tire Recycling and Management Regulation (the "Regulation") delegatesto the
Tire Recycling Management Association of Alberta the power and authority to
administer the Tire Recycling Management Fund and a Tire Recycling
Management Program. The Regulation expires October 15, 2001.

CRITERIA:

Only those regulations that are "necessary to ensure the protection of public
interest” will be retained. To comply with this definition, the regulation must
fulfil one or more of the following criteria:

a. it must be necessary for the maintenance and/or enhancement of
public health, education, order, or safety;

b. it must be necessary for the mamtenance and/or enhancement of the
environment;

c. it must contribute significantly to the goals of sustainable
development;

d. it must contribute significantly and positively to the competitiveness
of the private sector in the Province, including promotion of
innovation and encouragement of efficiency in the conduct of
business;

e. it must be necessary for effective internal administration of the
government of the Province.

19



III. PROCESS:

Consistent with the review criteria used by the Regulatory Reform Task Force, the
TRMA has approved a regulation review process. The process will take into
consideration the intent of the Regulation Review Policy, as well as the criteria set
out above. The initial steps of the process include determining the necessity of
and the level of support for the regulatory framework generally and the drafting
of a discussion paper for circulation and comment.

The purpose of this discussion paper is to identify issues -- operational,
administrative, and other program issues -- that may be better addressed through
-regulatory change.

The Regulation is to be reviewed to:

a. determine the continued necessity, desirability and relévance of the
regulatory program;

~b. determine whether the Regulation is sufficient to allow the TRMA to meet

its goals as set out in its business plan; and

c. determine whether the Regulation otherwise allows the Board to fulfil its
mandate.

TRMA MANDATE:

The goals of the TRMA, as set out in the most recent 3-year buginess plan have
been re-considered at its most recent strategic planning session, and are as
follows: |

1. develop the most effective, efficient and environmentally sound
recycling solutions for all scrap tires discarded by Albertans;

2. ensure that a self-sufficient tire recycling industry is developed in
Alberta; and _

3. ensure accountability of the Tire Recycling Management Association
of Alberta. :

The Review of the Regulation should contemplate these goals, and allow for the
goals to be met both now and in the future. As an example, and in respect of Goal
#1, the Regulation currently does not contemplate or allow the TRMA to charge
an advance disposal surcharge on off-road tires ("OTRs"), nor does it contemplate
the recycling or processing of OTRs. ‘ -

20




)

-3-

The Regulation review should also allow a determination as to whether the
Regulation otherwise allows the Board to do what it needs to do in order to fulfil
its mandate. For example, the Regulation currently allows the TRMA to make
bylaws relating to the setting of the Advance Disposal Surcharge (the
"Surcharge"), although it cannot exceed $4.00, regardless of the different sizes and
construction of different types of tires. This also may affect generally the TRMA’s
ability to fulfil its mandate. Any other issues that may affect the TRMA’s
mandate generally should be addressed in the Review.

V.  DISCUSSION:

A. .Assessment of Criteria

As discussed above, in order to be maintained as a regulation after the expiry date, the
Regulation must meet at least one of the criteria list in Section II, above.

Prior to the Tire Recycling Management Board (the predeceséor to the .TRMA) being
established in Alberta in July, 1992, there was almost no tire recycling taking place in

‘Alberta. Millions of tires were simply being discarded across the Province, creating

tremendous potential hazards from fire and environmental contamination, or tires were
being buried and using up valuable municipal landfill space. Since that time, over 17
million tires have been collected from hundreds of Alberta’s tire and automotive retailers
and municipal landfills, and recycled into valuable new uses. The Surcharge required
to be paid by virtue of the Regulation supports Alberta’s emerging tire recycling industry.

During the 1999, 2000 fiscal year of the TRMA, market demand for all three levels of
value-added recycled tire material continued to grow:

. scrap tire shred - cut-up chunks, used as superior construction material in
civil engineering projects, pnmanly road bank stabilization and landﬁll
Ieachate collection systems,

. rubber crumb - ground-up rubber particles used as "safer-than-sand"
playground surface or as a feedstock for manufactlmng rubber products
and

. recycled rubber products - such as safety and anti-fatigue flooring, livestock
matting, paving stones, sidewalk blocks and a number of other products
benefiting from the flexibility and durability of recycled tire rubber.

The Surcharge not only supports the growth in the use of these materials, but also
supports finding new value-added products from recycled tire material. Alberta’s tire
recycling industry, and its technologies and markets, are relatively new and volatile.
Financing start-up ventures can be difficult and costly, and the Surcharge charged on
new tire sales in Alberta allows for stable funding of these new ventures. The need for
new and better technologies in products to emerge is important to achieving a self-

21



-4-

sustaining, value-added industry. The fund also allows for the support of major research
and development, and allows the TRMA to undertake new recycling challenges, such as
the recycling of "off-road" tires on which the Surcharge is not collected.

Without the Regulation supporting the Surcharge, and providing the TRMA with its
mandate of providing program to encourage, support and assist with the development of
a tire recycling industry in Alberta - to become self-sustaining - growth in Alberta’s tire
recycling industry cannot be maintained. ' :

Therefore, the Regulation supports, and is necessary for, the maintenance and
enhancement of the environment. Through the programs of the TRMA, and with funding
by the Surcharge, the Regulation contributes significantly and positively to the
competitiveness of the private sector in Alberta, including promotion of innovation and
encouragement of efficiency in the conduct of business. Some projects funded by the
TRMA are set out in Schedule "A" to this Discussion Paper. As the demand for tire
material increases, efficiencies in the recycling industry emerge and competition is
increased. '

The strategies of the TRMA as set out in its most recent Business Plan is reported onin
its most recent Annual Report, support the continued development of competitiveness and
efficiency in the private recycling sector in Alberta.

The Regulation is seen as being necessary to ensure the protection of the public interest
in that: '

. it is necessary for the maintenance and/or enhancement of the
environment; and

. it contributes significantly and positively to the competitiveness of the
private sector in the Province, including promotion of innovation and
encouragement of efficiency in the conduct of business.

B. Discussion Points for Possible Change
" The following are discussion points as issues for possible regulatory amendments.

1. Specific inclusion of all Alberta Scrap Tires as part of the
Regulatory Program

Issue: Whether the current mandate of the TRMA is sufficiently broad to allow
programs for the recycling of OTRs.

Rationale: The TRMA has jurisdiction over a "tire" as defined in the Tire
Recycling Management Regulation (the "Regulation”). The Regulation
defines "tire” as a "tire that is manufactured for the purpose of being
used on the wheel of a motor vehicle, trailer, tractor, or implement




-5-

of husbandry. "Motor vehicle" and "trailer" are also defined in the
Regulation, but "tractor’ and "implement of husbandry" are not.

"Motor vehicle" as defined under the Regulation incorporates the
definition used in the Motor Vehicle Administration Act (MVAA),
which requires the motor vehicle have a certificate of registration or
permit issued under the MVAA. In other words, vehicles for which

‘”*”’—wftlﬁ'jc\atesorpermits are not issued do not meet the definition. The
definition of "motor vehicle" also incorporates vehicles that may be
transported or drawn on a highway. Therefore, it is also arguable
that any agricultural equipment that cannot lawfully be driven on
a highway will not fall within the definition.

The Regulation currently incorporates the definition of "motor
vehicle" and "trailer" from the MVAA with a further limitation that
the "motor vehicle" or "trailer”, as the case may be, must be one in
which a certificate of registration or permit under the MVAA is
required. This has a limiting effect over which "tires" the TRMA has
jurisdiction and in partlcular, appears to-exclude some tires thch _
the recycling program is intended to target.

The terms "tractor” and "implement of husbandry" are not defined
in the Regulation and may allow a more liberal interpretation to
include at least OTRs of an agricultural nature. .

The inclusion of all used tires in the regulatory mandate would allow
the TRMA to expand now successful recycling programs to scrap
tires that remain as part of the waste stream. Alberta processors
and recyclers are now in a position to collect and recycle OTRs, as
the demand for material and products made from scrap tires
increases, and the tolerance for scrap tires in the waste stream in
Alberta decreases. Landfill space is at a premium, and the improper
disposal of large scrap tires also creates an unacceptable
environmental hazard.

Proposed Change: =It is "proposed that ‘changes be made -to the definitions
contained in the Regulation so that all scrap tires in Alberta’
be included in the TRMA’s mandate and programs, and so all
tires are subject to the regulatory scheme. This would
include agricultural and industrial tires.

2. Movement and storage of tires in Alberta

Issue: Whether the movement and storage of scrap tires and scrap tire material
in Alberta should be included as part of the regulatory scheme.

23



§

Rationale:

-6-

Currently, the Regulation does not address either the movement or

storage of scrap tires and scrap tire material. Scrap tires piles
present a serious fire, environmental and health risk. While other
regulations or codes in Alberta may apply to the movement or
storage of hazardous material, the enforcement of such regulations
and codes are outside of the mandate of the TRMA and separate and
apart from the overall regulatory scheme and issues of waste tire
management and recycling.

As a result of the TRMA’s involvement in the scrap tire recycling
industry and its scrap tire recycling program, the TRMA is in a
position to make itself aware of potentially hazardous situations or
practices as they relate to scrap tire material. '

Proposed Change: The Regulation should be amended to regulafe the storage

and movement of "designated materials", including scrap tires
and scrap tire material. This could be managed by requiring
approval for the storage and movement of such material and
making it an offense to not receive such approval in those
circumstances.

3. Cross-border movement of scrap tires and scrap tire material

Issue: Whether to control the importation of scrap tires and scrap tire materials
as part of the regulatory scheme. ‘

Rationale:

As Alberta’s tire recycling industry’s processing capacity, products

and markets develop, especially relative to the tire recycling -

situation in other jurisdictions, two issues are emerging regarding
cross-border movement of scrap tires and recycled tire material:

a. The "controlled” importation of scrap tires and scrap tire
recycled material as valid supply by a processor in one
jurisdiction to a valid project or user in another jurisdiction,

— for example, Saskatchewan shred being imported for the

purpose of an Alberta project; and

b. The "uncontrolled” importation of serap tires and scrap tire
recycled material to be stockpiled, and possibly either
abandoned (with consequence from municipalities and the
TRMA) or processed (with the potential for funding being
improperly sought under TRMA programs).

Currently the Regulation does not address the importation of scrap
tires and scrap tire material, and as a result, the issue is currently
outside of the mandate of the TRMA.

O

O



-7

Proposed Change: Regulatory amendments to make the invoicing for ineligible

material violation, as well as regulatory amendments to make
the importation of scrap tires or scrap tire material into
Alberta without the prior written approval of the TRMA is
also possible to address these issues.

4, Variable Advance Disposal Surcharge rate

Issue: Whether and how to allow for greater flexibility in the Surcharge rate.

Rationale:

The TRMA has undertaken an extensive review of the issue of the
level of the Surcharge and how it relates to its business plan, its
mandate, stakeholder interests and expectations, and the law.
While & number of circumstances prompted the review, the TRMA
was particularly concerned with the recommendations for DAOs set
out in the Provincial Fees and Charges Review Committee’s Report
of June, 2000. As a matter of law, the Surcharge was reviewed in
the contexi of the actual costs associated with the services provided
(namely, the recycling of used tires) as well as the costs to
administer the regulatory scheme. The goal was that, where
possible, such charges should reflect the actual costs associated with
the fee. '

The Surcharge is set specifically in the TRMA’s New Tire Advance
Disposal Surcharge Bylaw (the "Bylaw"), and is capped in the
Regulation at $4.00 per tire.

Article 2(1) of the Bylaw prescribe the Surcharge as follows:
"2(1) The advance disposal surcharge to be remitted for
the purposes of section 10 of the Tire Recycling and
Management Regulation is
(a)  $4.00 per tire in the case of heavy truck tires;
(b) .$4.00 per tire in the case of light truck tires; and- ..
()  $4.00 per tire in the case of passenger car tires.
As a result of the TRMA’s review, it was found that the costs of
recycling vary, depending on the size or weight of the scrap tire.

However, the Surcharge is the same, regardless of the size of the tire
to which it is applied.

A detailed cost analysis has been conducted based on the

information the TRMA has available to it. The Surcharge charged
in respect of each category of tire should reflect, at least on a



proportionate basis, the cost of recycling. The following uses data |

-8-

from the 1999/2000 fiscal year:

Proposed Change: As a result of the above, it is suggested that the Surcharge be

Proportion of Proportion of
Number of Surcharge total Cost to recycle | total costto
tires sold " collected Surcharge {per tire) recycle
Passenger 2,415,000.00 | $9,660,000.00 92% $3.10 70%
Truck . 210,000.00 $840,000.00 8% $15.40 30%
On the basis of this:
a. the revenue that should be generated by passénger tire

Surcharge: $7,350,000.00 (10,500,000.00 X 70%)

b. the revenue to be generated by truck tire Surcharge:
$3,150,000.00 (10,500,000.00 X 30%) |

The Province’s Fees and Charges Review Report as well suggests this
balance is necessary - the costs of providing the recycling on each
category should be reflected in the respective charges, to more
accurately pay for and support the recycling program. Regard to actual
costs helps to ensure the Surcharge is not categorized as a tax. The
consumers ultimately pay the Surcharge and there should be some

" balance in the levy to respond to consumers’ concerns regarding the

Surcharge. -

adjusted so that the Surcharge on passenger tires more
accurately reflects the proportion and cost of recycling
passenger tires and that the Surcharge on truck tires more
accurately reflects the proportion and cost to recycle truck tires.

The Regulation should be amended to allow flexibility in setting
the Surcharge. At the same time, the Regulation should aflow
the-Minister the ability to review in-advance any proposed fee
changes. This change is consistent with other delegation
regulations.

By virue of its mandate as set out in the Tire Recycling and
Management Regulation (AR 206/96) (the "Reguiation*), the TRMA is
charged with the management of the Fund. The Regulation provides
that the Fund shall be used to provide for any or all of the following:
"(a) establishing and administering & scrap tire
waste minimization and recycling program,

26

___O_—-—

O




O

-9-

(b)  education programs for the purpose of the
scrap tire waste minimization and recycling
programs;

(c)  expenditures incurred in the collection,
transportation, storage, processing and
disposal of scrap tires;.

(d) research and development activities related to

scrap tire management;

() promotion and development for marketing the
products of scrap tire recycling.”

The Regulation also requires the Surcharge provided for be deposited
to the Fund.

The following are considerations that are relevant in setting the
Surcharge as well as determining the appropriate level for the
Surcharge:

The $4.00 Surcharge (deposits to the Fund) is collected on
certain new tires sold in Alberta.

Payments are made from the Fund for recycling tires once they :

have been discarded.

The Fund is intended to fund recycling solutions, including
solutions for all tires currently on the road, being approxlmately
14 million tires on the road.

At current levels of funding to Alberia recyclers, the cost to
recycle 14 million tires is approximately $34 million; the fund is
currently about 70% of that cost.

In estimating funding requirements, there is. some degree. of
difficulty due to the novelty of recycling solutions; major
research and development continues.

Future requirements on the Fund may include the recycling of
off-road tires ("OTRs"), for example, on which an Surcharge is
not paid. .

The Fund is utilized to fund developmental costs, including
research and development, and the implementation and
updating of new policies and programs. -

27



-10 -

5. Remittance of Surcharge at point of first sale in Alberta

Issue: Administrative efficiency and greater compliance with the requirement to remit
the Surcharge at the point of first sale in Alberta.

Rationale:

Currently, the Regulation requires every retailer in Alberta to be
registered with the TRMA, and to remit the Surcharge to the TRMA as
required under its bylaws. A retailer, for the purposes of the
Regulation, is defined as:

.. a person who supplies in Alberta new tires ofa
class in respect of which an advance disposal
surcharge is payable, whether the tires are
supplied separately or on a motor vehicle, trailer,
tractor or implement of husbandry that is supplied
by that person, but does not include a person who
supplies such tires only within the boundaries of
Lioydminster;

In contrast, the Regulation delegating administrative authority for the
Used Oil Material Recycling Program applies to suppliers of first
instance in the Province of Alberta. Based on this model, the
administrative efficiency of the tire recycling system could be enhanced,
with ultimately a savings to those funding the system. Requiring "first
suppliers” in Alberta to be registered would mean:

a.

fewer registrants under the system, which would require iess

" maintenance and monitoring in terms of the overail system;

fewer number of remittances with a greater amount of Surcharge
per remittance. Currently the TRMA administers registrants who
remit relatively small surcharge amounts per quarter.
Administrative costs tend to be the same or similar, regardless
of the amount of Surcharge collected. Only 6% of Surcharge
revenue is remitted by 30% of registrants. = With fewer
remittances, and -each of a greater amount, the-overall
administrative burden could be reduced;

the TRMA is responsible for ensuring, to a reasonable extent,
compliance with the regulatory requirements. With a large
number of registrants, and in order to ensure a satisfactory
sample has been monitored or reviewed, the annual cost of a
compliance program borne by the TRMA is approximately
$250,000.00. This cost. could substantially be reduced with
fewer compliance reviews taking place, and more sophisticated
remitters being responsible for the remittance of the Surcharge.

28




-11-

(ﬁ As well, efficiencies could eventually be realized by
computerizing the Surcharge remittance system.

. A reduction in the costs of administering the system could result in a
reduction of the amount of the Surcharge needed to fund the TRMA.

Proposed Change: Based on best practices, it is recommended or proposed that the
Regulation be amended to more closely reflect the scheme
regulating the recycling of used oil and used oil products. In this
way, the Surcharge would be remitted by first suppliers, or the
point of first sale in Alberta, reducing the compliance costs and
uncertainty, and generally decreasing administrative expense in
administering the recycling program.

6.. Requirement for separate accounting of the Surcharge

Issue: Separate accounting of the Surcharge by remitters for completeness and
accuracy of remittances.

Rationale:  Previously, the Regulation contained a provision as follows:

(j 4. A retailer who supplies a tire shall indicate on the invoice given to the
person to whom the tire is supplied whether an advance disposal surcharge
is payable and, if a surcharge is payable, what the amount of the surcharge
is.

When the Reguiation was last amended, this section was deleted from the
Regulation. As a result, the TRMA’s compliance reviewed has noticed a
greater difficulty with compliance and remittance of the Surcharge generally.

When the registrants were compelled to create a separate entry to delineate
the Surcharge on an invoice or bill of sale, they in tum usually also had a

' separate general ledger account to track the surcharge. The existence of a
separate general ledger-aecount tended o facilitate and increase the accuracy
of the remititance process for the registrant. As well, when accounted for
separately, funds tended to be maintained outside the registrant’s operational
cash, decreasing the likelihood that remittance delays due to.cash flow issues
would occur.

Compliance issues tend to be a large component of the TRMA's expenses in
running the program,. Greater accuracy and rates of compliance could reduce
that cost, and ultimately affect the level of the Surcharge.

u Proposed Change: Since it is now recommended that the Surcharge be remitted at
the point of first sale in Alberta, the previous provision would no

249



VI

-12 -

longer be relevant. However, it is recommended a similar
provision be incorporated in tot eh Regulation, requiring the
Surcharge to be separately identified on any invoices or bills of
sale and accounted for separately by a registrant.

" COMMENTS:

All comments, discussion points, concerns, questions or issues arising should be put
in writing and directed to the TRMA for further consideration and possible
incorporation into this discussion paper. You are invited to forward your comments

‘to the TRMA no later than January 31, 2001 to:

Tire Recycling Management
Association of Alberta

P.O. Box 189

Edmonton, Alberta

T5J 2J1

Phone: (780) 990-1111
Toll Free: 1-888-999-8762
Email: trma @trma.com

Attention: Kevin O'Neil

30

O




)

-13 -

SCHEDULE "A"

1999/2000 Highlights

Demonstration Projects

A priority of the TRMA is to inform Albertans of what is being done with scrap tires and of the
results achieved through the TRMA programs. in doing so, the TRMA endeavours to be
accountable to Albertans and to create awareness of the valuable new uses and products
that are being produced and are available to Albertans.

The Municipal Millenium Demonstration Project was implemented this year to
provide an opportunity for sixteen municipalities or cormmunity organizations
to incorporate recycled rubber products into community projects such as
playgrounds, parks and museums. This project provides two major benefits:

- A unique opportunity to bring tire recycling 'full circle’ back into
communities so that Albertans can see the benefits of their recycling
efforts; and '

- Other community groups will be able to see the new pi'oducts in use,
and assess their value for projects in their own community.

A number of pilot projects were implemented to test the acceptability of crumb
and manufactured crumb products. These included the use of loose crumb in
a beach volleyball court in Peace River, the use of molded bricks as a walkway
to the main entrance of the Edmonton Waste Management Fagility and finally
the application of molded bricks for equestrian use at Spruce Meadows in

Calgary.

A 4-H Demonstration Project was implemented to provide 4-H clubs with
recycled rubber matting for use as a safe cushion surface in show rings. The
joint project between 4-H and the TRMA featured a special trailer that

promoted the value of recycled tire products at a variety of community events. -

“The TRMA-puts its information booth in a number of major. trade- shows. in

order to provide a first hand explanation and demonstration of the resulis
achieved.

Research and Development

Multi-year research projects continued to explore major new tire recycling technologies and
uses, such as: '

Devulcanization of tire crumb rubber - The purpose of this project is to find a
practical way to modify scrap tire rubber so that it can be processed differently,
thereby significantly expanding the ways in which it can be recycled. Building

31



-4 -

on the knowledge gained through the first two phases, the project moved
forward into Phase 1ll, a major stage of research being done under contract
with the Alberta Research Council.

Crumb rubber modified asphalt - The three-year project with the University of
Caigary Engineering Department is coming to a conclusion with technical
verification of a process to add fine rubber crumb to asphalt to reduce damage
caused in roads by cracking and rutting. Analysis of the findings by the
project’s technical steering committee will be used to define further steps such

T as field-testing.

Rubber crumb turigrass soil amendment - The positive resuits of another
growing season have led to a third stage to define technical specifications for
the application of rubber crumb as a topdressing and soil amendment in order
to maximize the benefits in terms of turf damage protection and prevention of
soil compaction.

Municipal Civil Engineering

The following projects were funded using recycled tire shred as a value-added construction
material in municipal projects: »

County of Leduc Regional Landfill - leachate collection system

County of East Peace - Judah Hill bank stabilization

Highway 43 East Regional Waste Commission - leachate collection system
Athabasca Regional Landfill - leachate collection system

City of Calgary - leachate collection system

Lesser Slave Lake Regional Waste Management Commission - leachate
collection system : o

County of East Peace --leachate collection system

Rocky View Landfill (BF1) - leachate collection system

Municipal Landfill Projects

Special projects were undertaken to clean up tire piles in Fort McMurray, Lioydminster, High

Level and La Crete.




)

-15 -

Interprovincial and International Cooperation

The TRMA is working with other provincial and international programs to ensure that the
Aiberta tire recycling program and related industries are equipped with the latest information
and that our lessons leamed are shared with others. The TRMA has been a key player in

both the Western and the Canadian Alliances of Provincial Tire Recycling Programs.

233




@

34



Defiadtiorex

- 6/60829]11)0

AﬁPEND'lx

Enwmnmemal Protection
and Enhaucemem Act

TIRE RECYCLIHG AND MAHAGEMEHT REGULATION

Table of Contents

. Definitions , 1
- Tires as desigoaied material 2
Registvation - - 1
. Socuity - * 7
.- Cancellation and suspeasion of registration 3
_ Probibition - 9
. Advance dispossl surcharge 10
Recovery of smcharge 12
‘ Sq’plydl:xpumlcpm B
Repwtiog “"
Notice 10 Minister 16
Offence 7
Trsasitional 18
Repesl ) 19
Cocning intoy Fare an
Explty - - 2
1 In this Regulation,
(@) “Ac™ wmeans the Envirommental FProtecion and
Enhancement Act: 3

(b) ~Association”™ means the ‘[":rg Rscyclmg Managemmt
- Association of Albert . )

(c)"hy-lz-r mawmuumm‘

@ depﬂ”umadepotdwgmtcdby&:l\mfu
dicmllecnmnt'smpum;;

”

@® "Fund"m dnTanyclng:udeagaannnd :
wublshcduﬂctWS* ' . "

o “lvﬁnm"'mnsmc hﬁrmrorl-:nmmmnlm

(@) “mosor veticte ™ means 2 motor vehidie within the meaning
of the Motor Vekicle Adminiziration Act -

- 35




@) .in respece of which 2 comificse of registration o
mwmmlsmmul.ﬂf

Gﬂ Msmgmadaﬁmedmwﬂmw"m'

laws of 2 jurisdiction outsids of Afbert;

(D “procEsSOr™ mees 2 person who Processes erap dres:

-

@ “veuie” mapmwbaqpﬁs i Albertz mew tires -

of a: ctass ‘im. sspoct of which an advamce disposal

 suithage i mmumwﬂw

‘M«uammmmﬁ .

Wd'mu‘wwhmu

does w0t inclede-& person. wha ‘Sopplies ‘such tires oaly

“within ﬂgmdm

K% ‘mm‘mamunmwm&m

m.
mwwbm‘mm

(i)byslft-“
(EJ brwm“‘“"md
| () asale, o |
{B} ahmeforlpmndofahﬂwrﬂ"

(m) ‘m‘mamuumhﬁﬂm“

bﬂﬂ:mdmﬁawheddam‘d'dﬂ-mm ;

wwd

(nJWmanﬂam‘ - mmu{ﬁeﬂm o

vdmtgAd-ummAd .

Ommdwm:mdmm“
mmmmumm“

hwof,pm&mnmmdeﬂm

O




A

Tizs as
dezigrmnd
il

" bomyd

.2 Tires 2rc haseby designaied as designated maerizl for the

purpeses of Pary 9, Division 1 of the Act

3Q) - mmmwmaum‘
mamﬁwmumm-sw

m&dzawmmmmdm

- IGB(ﬁlofdteAu.

(1) ThAmMadnnmﬂmedmmﬂnmmm ‘ _.
mammmmmmmmmmwsordn _
mmumm

- |'.<

Amuaireport  401) mmm |

-mgnp-'

(z) mmmwdzysbdmdemdmhﬁmlm
a Mndulﬁmabmphhdum
Mwﬁmmmﬂsﬁxﬁem—zﬁs&lmm

{'b) mmmsmmumdmmm‘
mnmmmﬁmmu
mdtb:i.nochﬁmmdm; the andited
ﬁnatmlmaﬁbeﬁmdﬂimﬁ&cﬁmlyn '

(a) all members of the boand of directors of the Association,

@)mwmndmmwymm'u
mddambusofﬂebmdof&m R

_ dmmgﬂr.ﬁs:lyﬂ'mmbcmlednumm '

asamnrs:hednhnmeﬁm:idm

é:

Q@ Themnmm andbmdits mhew

(a) on an individual basis by wéme ia the case of the persons
K mfmd_tn in:mhsactim&}(a).md '

(v} onmaggmgmhns:smduaseofdwpmmsmfmadw
mmbs:wonm(bL . .




Freedom of
Information
and Protection
of Privacy

-3a-

The. Tire Recycling and Managemenr Ftagularron (AR 206/96) i is amended by adding the followrng x
after section 3:

3.1(1} The Assocratron shall comply with the Fresdom of Information and
Protection.of Prrvacy Act in the course of carrying out its powers duties and
functions undar this Regulation.

(2) The -Association . shall desrgnate ‘a person tc be responsrble for freedom of .

mformatron matters

(3 K a: request for access to information pursuant.to the Fresdom of Information and .-
_ Protecrron of anacy Actis made, the :Association. shall 3 ‘

= (a) . in'the case of a request made dlrectly to the Assocratmn.
immediately direct the request to the Department’s Freedom of
Infonnanon and Pretection. of Prrvacy Co-ordinator, and

b in every- case, comply wrth such drrectrons_-regardlng the request
as may be p‘rdvided by tha Co-ordinator.

(4) All records-in the custody or under the control of the Association that are requrred '

in the carrying out of its’ powers, duties or functlons under this Regulation are subject to

(;i);- the Records Management Regulation {AR: 57!95) or’

b) any regulation that replaces the Records Management .
' Regulation (AR 57/95).
(8) " Allinformation and records created or marntained in the course of canryirig out the

powers, duties and functions under this Regulation become and remain the ;property of the
Crown in right of Alberta.

(6) The Assocratron shall desrgnate a person to be responsrble for records ‘

management matters.

38

O

@)

O



.-‘:dl-
(@) Ttnch&mmnsauﬁwrmedmchﬂosupumﬂmfmnnm‘
reponed under this secton, and mlsmbsacamconsm‘unsm

, ‘ o authoriration for the puipéses of- su:non‘;t&(l)(e}ofmcrrzedom-"
(\\ ' o B qfhg’mnaucud}'mmaq’hmqm )

Fund 1 Mswmumwmg - .
dsabished . fond % be catled the Tire Recycling and Managancnt Fond, which LT
Mbcmdnmapnyﬁ:rmyormoﬁmfomwmg‘

(a)mb&uagmmmsmngzmmm
mmmudmychgm :

M) Mpmmﬁ:rthmddwmpmm
: mmmaﬂch&gm ' .

(c) capendimn innl:ul in :h.-. mllmim. UIpOaon.

(d)m:n&dm:mmmnsmpm

© pmnd&wwhmumnf .

O - ) mmmmumﬁmmm

| @mwmmmmsmm
mmmmwwm L

(blsn'ic.dmmans.gwus-md‘bcqus:smdemd.

8y lnmmmadoud:poaunt‘&eﬁndmn
adﬁmmpatd’ﬁel’-‘md. :

- (€) Sdnu.ﬁau.mm.c:pummd&biﬁmmﬁmﬁc
wammmummdmm

: -—}'

.-:;_" ason anﬁmymwmwplymdwmwbcum '
: . - fmuwpupomtfdnmmofaamdispomm"i

undu'ﬁnskgd:m;.

‘ (2) Anypcmon wha mshﬁmsnpplysaapmtoapmccssor
.uuyapplywmefummonwbe‘rqgmrqmpmpos:

U LT SRSt




Secwrity

-5

@) Aa application referred to in subseciion (2)or fi_l shalt be
madeinzfc‘mandnwmﬂmismcapublcmdaamdaﬁom

@ mmmaﬁpawmﬁmmm

_ wﬁﬁmwofmgmﬁonna.pawni:mgisﬂsmﬂﬁsnbsmﬁm
mcr'e)andslnnndﬁﬁrumminwﬁﬁuduumwm'
the effective dae of registration. ' o

7 mmmymgmmwmramgmqu '

Tegistrant

~+ (a). s0 provide sccusity %0 the Associadon, of

() v provide 10 the Associition evidenco of secority.

‘hamzﬂmukw_bu-m-ﬁm‘

Wandqxhq_m—his:mﬁus;:mhmm :

@ q:wﬁmai’@uamwmm :

m;‘of'mymgsﬂu;if&mmnmmﬁs

O



@

-

Reporting

.-”6-

L) I the Association peescrives édiédmccdspusal surchargs

for:chssofmcmdtehy-hws.arwx‘krwtwsppﬁsawm

=ofmmchssﬂmn.€orwhmwmmsupphed.mutm

Mﬂltdm&spoﬂmiuzpmdeOu.

(2) Subscesion (1) does not 2pply 10 2 supply transaction that is of
---ahadGmsmmdﬁwm:ppﬁwmoEMMm.

the by-faws.
)] Amilu-shil _

' mbymofammnﬁemhnmtwaﬂ :

® mmmmwnmm

B the foom and moaner and at the tmes required i -the by-laws,

11 A wailer hoids all advance disposal sorcharges that be is

ﬂﬁhmmmlﬂhmh’ﬁem

12 An advanoe disposal sucharge d0d any jawst owing in
-respect of i ane recovenable by the Association in an action in debe

XD Ap:snn m‘isawﬁsgmg;nd‘isinmp&mewimﬂn
Aa.dusﬂeguhum. the: by-ixws and any agplicadle permit issued
md:rdwby—hw:mya“iymp mnzma:m

o Nopms&ﬂ:qﬂympmﬁamm #n amount
umuhuducmudsﬁcmontunnbam:mdm the
bydaws &Mmuﬁrmm&mmamm ‘

apﬁnﬂepmwiamdnnma).

’ -(3) rbpmmmapamm&ndnum(l}

Mmmmamamﬁnmotﬂwm

- 14 Amm@ﬁhmp&umammm .
mpcnsmtbekm:ciaﬁonﬂm‘d!cptminlhcfmmmtd'l
- manner and at the times required in the by-laws or by the permit

 referred w0 in secrion 13(1).

| spsomants .

R N

ot




By-aws

| éosItlse

15(1) ‘The Associiion may make by-Javs

-?'.._

- of.section’ 14}



Tearsiional

S{50828[T1fa - -

-8-
ﬂ)wgmc:mdsdmwgmmhmpmm
ofmmmmandmumhngddmmds
available for inspection by the Associaticn and
@mmdmnqwmd&vmﬂm'u

@ mmwmpmﬁdmzhumm
»subsammtlxd)mnnmmedﬂpcrm

16 Whmdaemnapwswm“objmm
mmumm:mwwwm
‘ofdlcm'eo(lhnpmpuuddnnu:nmm

17 A person wbmm&(l).sa).& l(n)crﬂ).
lﬂﬂmﬁ)wuumdaﬂm:ﬁbﬁe w0 2 fine of Bot

" nofe than

@ ssnmaumdmwo;

(b)'ssnomoiuqudam -

18 Oud:cwdngmﬁrnddw.ﬂquhm

(ajnﬂmkadmhﬁuamrwwﬁe
'amﬂmdmremdmm.kchmxm
w:mm&wmrwmr

Hmugmﬂqulaunn(m}?q 2491'92Jshdlb¢
'm#'mu w the Environiensal Protectiona and
Mf‘m‘uda'm&wmmrdrmrm
mwmm '

;dmmmmmmmgm .
rwxmmmmmmm
: dufwﬂxydngmdmw.ﬂqﬂmmm

" 24992);. become . the property, “assess, liobilities and
qbﬁgumnq’meﬂsmm .

" 19 The Tire Recycting m&uamg&w Regulation (Ala. Reg.

249/92) is repealed.




LY

Jha

fores

Explry

-

20 Thi Regulation coms éntd force on Ociober 15. 1996.

21 For the parpose of ensuring that this Regulaiion & resiewed
for ongoing relevancy aad accessity, with the option that it may be

repassed in its present or ax amended form following @ review,
dﬂkggmq&ummﬁ.zaﬂ. .

44

(R



JMUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE

M.D. of Mackenzie No. 23

Request For Decision

Meeting:
Meeting Date:
Originated By:

Committee of the Whole
February 6, 2001
Ivan Perich, Director of Operational Services

Title: EXH Engineering
Agenda ltem No: JEc)
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

Garth Thomson and Bud Norris will be making a presentation on behalf of EXH

Engineering.

DISCUSSION / OPTIONS / BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:

COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:

Not applicable

RECOMMENDED ACTION (by originator):

That

the presentation of EXH Engineering be accepted for information.

Review:

Dept. €.\,

45







M.D. of Mackenzie No. 23

Request For Decision

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE

Meeting: Committee of the Whole
Meeting Date: February 6, 2001Harvey Prockiw, CAO
Title: Public Lands

Agenda Item No: & )

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

Questions have been raised about various issues regarding public lands. Camille
Ducharme will be in attendance to explain the pamphlets included in the White Zone
Information Package attached..

DISCUSSION / OPTIONS / BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:

Items for discussion are:

Crown Timber Resources on White Area public Land
Sale of Public Land ,
Information on Acquiring Public Lands

Public Land

Public Land User's Rights and Responsibilities
Shared Stewardship Accord

The Agriculture Review Process

Agricultural Lease Review Report

Agricultural Dispositions Statutes Amendment Act

COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:

Not applicable

RECOMMENDED ACTION (by originator):

That this report be accepted for information.

Review: Dept. C.A.O.







White Area Information Session
prepared for the
Municipal District of Mackenzie No 23.
aaE B T W e
Camille Ducharme
Public Land Specialist
Fort Vermilion

Feb 6, 2001

.

EREN

= Topics

= Green / White Area

w Green / White Land Exchange Update
= Land Sale

m Agricultural Lease Review

m White Area Timber Commitment

NENE REEN

Green / White Area

a Public land administered under the
Public Lands Act is owned by the gvt of
Alberta. Approx. 60% of Alberta’s land
base is public land.

= Public land is divided into two

categories; Green and White Area

(Map)

¥

NN E HEEN l@g‘“-mq







T IR VR

Green / White Area

= White Area

- (Settled portion) consist of the populated
central, southern and Peace River areas of
the province

— Managed by AFFRD-Public Lands for
various uses including: agriculture,
recreation, soil and water conservation,
fish and wildlife habitat and other uses

N B EER W N e

Green / White Area

a Green Area

- (forested portion) comprises most of
northem Alberta as well as the mountain
and foothills area along the province's
western boundary

— Managed by Lands and Forest Services for
timber production, watershed, wildlife and
fisheries, recreation and other uses,

NI B EEN R

Green / White Area

u Shared Stewardship Accord is a
ministerial agreement regarding the
stewardship of public lands in the White
Area to ensure continuation of
integration of all natural resources.
~ Public Lands is the land manager.

— AEP (F+W, LFS, WR) are the resource
managers




@

@,



)

Green / White Area

m Role of the Land Manager

— Recommend new dispositions

— Monitor leases and enforce compliance to
the requirements

- Ensure that multiple use are
accommeodated and protected.

~ Relies on resource managers for
information and advice

— Make land use allocations based on
integration of all resources

1K L =

NEN B NN W reswwns

Green / White Area

m Role of Resource Managers
— Provide the land manager with information
and advice on:
» Timber (Lands and Forest Services)
» Wildlife (NRS-Fish and Wildlife)
« Water Conservation {NRS-Regional Support)

wa

.,‘
e,

Green / White
Land Exchange Update

a History
— Initiated in 1994 by LFS and PL staff.

u Ohjective
- Thorough analysis of the land adjacent to
the existing Green / White Area boundary

[



@

@



B Green/ White
Land Exchange Update

= Criteria used:
- Highest and best use of the land
considering:
« Suitability of the land for agriculture VS.
potential productivity for forestry or other uses

+ Existing merchantable timber

« Conservation concerns {muskeg, banks, etc)
— Existing commitments

» Leases, FMA, elc

ﬁﬁ Green / White
M Land Exchange Update

- Access (Costs)
— Drainage (feasible, costs)
- Solls (lype, arable/farmable, PH)

— Demand

Green / White
Land Exchange Update

‘ li'

]

ﬁ a PL and LFS came to preliminary

: agreement on a potential land exchange
oM early 1996

Bl = June 3+4 1996, public meetings were

held in La Crete and High Level to
receive comments from the public.

B R







Green / White
Land Exchange Update

u July 22, 1996, LFS and PL made a
presentation to the MD Council. The
Council endorsed the following:

— Two isolated blocks of white zone land SW
of High Level be transferred into the green
zone.

— That the remainder of the land transfers be

| subject to further review by MD, PL and

_E LFS.

& Green/ White
Land Exchange Update

= Aug 29, 1996, the MD forwarded an MD

: map outiining all land requested to be

I included in the White Area.

July 1998, PL and LFS submitted the
latest proposal to the MD.

Green / White
Land Exchange Update

a Where are we at now?
— Only land agresd upon SW of High Level
was transferred into the Green Area.
—~ No other land transfer occurred.
-~ The MD, PL and LFS need to discuss the
last proposal and determine where to go
from there.

NEN B I e




)

O



Land Sale

a Public Land Sale
—Vacant public land

- Land under disposition
4 Private Land Sale

T lﬁl'nmmt

e
:ﬂ Land Sale

= Vacant tand (no disposition)

— Application submitted by individual

— Referral request sent to all resource
managers.

— Once ali comments are received, Public
Lands makes a land use decision based on
integration of all natural resources.

Fm i RER R

Land Sale

ik

;F&E — Land can be sold if:

T » There are no potential erosion,conservation or
m resources limitations

m » Legal access available

. — Land is sold by auction or tender

%
_:,i

nELE N




O



U

Land Sale

| a Land under disposition (grazing lease or

farm development lease without option to

purchase)

— Application submitted by lessee

- Referral request sent to all resource
managers.

[.and Sale

- Once all comments are received, Public
Lands makes a land use decision based on
integration of all natural resources.

« 2 options
—Continue the existing lease
—Sale by auction or tender

— The lessee does not have a priority right to
purchase the land without competition.

4

i

[and Sale

i el

5

o Private Land Sale {no competition)

- Occurs on land under disposition that
contains an option to purchase:
+ Civilian Homestead
+ FDL with opticn
— Occurs also on Miscellaneous or
Recreational L.ease once the land have
been fully deveioped.

B

4
et
i3

N

NN B




)

@,



Agricultural Lease Review

=m Documents available
— Agricultural Lease Review Report (Nov 98)

- Agricultural Dispositions Statutes
Amendment Act -Bill 31 (Nov 99)

5 Agricultural Lease Review

a issue 3.1 Sale of public land (p.6)

i —*Continued use and conservation of public

,- land under provincial ownership is

. supported”... "This intention will be

sy tempered with orderly sales of vacant
public land...primarily in the Peace River
Block, which are NOT required for
provincial programs and conservation”

E Agricultural Lease Review

{ﬂ a “The public land base in the White Area
- should be maintained under provingial
] control. The following exceptions are
= recognized:"
- - Cultivated public land
:i"ﬁ -Vacant public land - Peace Block
[







'5? Agricultural Lease Review

- “Cultivated public land in the white Area
will be sold™

« Using normal process and guidelines for land
under disposition.

w The only proposed change is as follows:

- » The existing | holder will have the right to
e matgh the highest bid in the public auction or
'I-F tender. : :

- w Sale of vacant public land in the

- Peace River Block for agricultural
development if it is a surplus to the
government's needs. "This would occur
only as demand warranted and
applications are received, in close
coaperation with the local municipal
governments and the public
involvement”

u Letter of Agreement signed in June 99
between the Province and Footner
Forest Products Ltd.

m The province will issue DTAs to FFP at
" an average volume of 100,000m3 per
year for 20 year, renewable to the
extend there is remaining volume and
as provided for under the Forests Act.







@

C

January 12, 2001

The Agricultural Lease Review Process:

In 1997, Tom Thurber, MLA for Drayton Valley — Calmar was asked by the Premier to
lead the Agricultural Lease Review. He and four other ML As held 23 public meetings
throughout Alberta and received hundreds of written submissions during their review,
which resulted in the “Interim Report of the Agricultural Lease Review”, released in May
1998. Comments and suggestions resulting from that report were reviewed, resulting in
the release of the Government’s “Agricultural Lease Review Report” in November of

1998.

The Agricultural Lease Review Report outlined the Government’s intentions and actions
to occur on 9 major issues, and also made comments on 14 issues which should be
developed in the future. The nine major issues are outlined on pages 6 — 9 of the Report.
The Report also provided the direction for the drafting of the Agricultural Dispositions
Statutes Amendment Act (Bill 31). Changes in current policy, which were outlined in the
Report and required legislative changes, were included in Bill 31. Other changes in
policy that do not require legislative changes will be made once the legislation is

finalized.

* Bill 31 received Royal Assent in May of 1999, and became the Agricultural Dispositions

Starutes Amendment Act, 1999, Since the Act is an “enabling” Act, regulations are
required to provide the details needed to make the Act work. The Government stated that
the Act would not be proclaimed until regulations have been developed.

In the fall of 1999, a “Discussion Document on Draft Regulations” was released for
public review, with comments to be received by the end of January 2000. Once the
comments were received, Mr. Dave Broda, MLA for Redwater was asked to lead a
review with key stakeholder groups-seeking areas of consensus. Mr. Broda’s review will
also incorporate feedback received from the public and stakeholder groups on the
Discussion Document on Draft Regulations. Mr. Broda is meeting with stakeholder
groups and will likely submit his report later this year.

Issue 3.1 Sale of public land:

Sale of public land is one of the issues dealt with in the Government’s Agricultural Lease
Review report (Issue 3.1, page 6).

In the “Intention” the report states that “continued use and conservation of public land

"under provincial ownership is supported”. ‘However it goes on to state that “this intention

will be tempered with orderly sales of vacant public land in the Northern Alberta
Development Council Area, primarily in the Peace River Block, which are not required
for provincial programs and conservation”.



()

»



In the “Action” under Issue 3.1, the Government states that the public land base in the
r A White Area should be maintained under provincial control, with the following

S exceptions:

- Cultivated public land in the White Area of the province will be sold if
no conservation reasons exist to preclude the sale and the existing
disposition holder agrees to the sale. All land sales will be made through a
public auction or tender. The existing disposition holder will have the
right to match the highest bid in the public auction or tender.

- Sale of vacant public land in the Peace River Block for agriculturai
development if it is surplus to the province’s needs. “This would occur
only as demand warranted and applications are received, in close
cooperation with the local municipal government and with public
involvement”.



()

()



T b R TS PR FET T e ey s .

C
w

o

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY
ALBERTA

November, 1998

The Public land base in the White (settled) Area of the province is unique and diverse. Our
government is committed to the wise management of Alberta’s natural resources and
environment for the long term benefit of Albertans.Those accessing public land for business or
less intensive uses are concermed with ensuring the long term viability of their use and knowing
the relationship they will have with the tandowner (provinge).

As we move into the next millennium there will be increasing demands on this public land. This
report provides the framework for legislative and policy change to ensure the sustainable use and
protection of the resource. To ensure a timely delivery of actions, we have asked Mr. Tom
Thurber, MLA and Chairman of the Agricultural Lease Review Committee to assist us with the
implementation of the legislative and policy changes required from the report.

Thank you to all who took the time to provide input to the Agricultural Lease Review Committes.

itk G St

Honourable Ed Stelmach Honourable Ty Lund
Minister Minister
Agriculture, Food and Rural Development Environmental Protection



LN



Agricultural Lease Review Report

Table of Contents
Background 3

OGN oo 3

A Public Land Management SUAMSRY .. 4

ulling Princlples ... 4

GO 5

SUBS 5

vy SAeOlblelN L )

3.2 Access to PUIGING oo 6

SS By 7

3.4 Industrial agcess and surtace compensation ... " 8

3.5 Industrial access for fasouree exploration ... 10

3.6 Environmental Protection ... 10

3.7 Rental rates and MUNCIpRIIRES ... 1

3.8 Grazing disposition assignments and enure . 12

B9 MemAmeplcand ... 12

POMMENIS 13

41 Publicinvolvement.........................................- ............... 13

4.2 Wildlife PRGNt 13

4.3  Access for VEBEIS - 13

4.4 Grazing zone DOUMGRITSS ..o 13

v muREINGSS ... 13

4.6  Fragmentation of PUBRC 1and ... 14

3 4.7  Shared SIWAIUShIp ACCON . 14
i 4.8 Grazing SUOIRNG 14
oy Aol istes ... 14

4.10 Identification of PUIIEIand ... 15

411 Agricultural ASBOSHONS . 15

o Denion of Westock .................... 15

4.13 Timber harvesting on agricultural dispositions ... 15

4.14 Timber resources on publicland in the White Area ... .. 16

> Where dowe gofromhere? ... .. e 17
N APPENIXT Defions ..., 18



()



Background

A number of public land agricultural leasing issues have been of concern to Albertans, and have caused
both public land disposition holders and other members of the public to voice their concerns to the
government.

On March 26, 1997, Premier Klein announced the appointment of Tom Thurber, MLA, Drayton Valley -
Calmar to lead the review of public fands policies in the White Area of the province with special emphasis
on grazing lease issues. On May 27, 1997, the Honourable £d Stelmach, Minister of Agriculture, Food and
Rural Development, announced the terms of reference for the Agricultural Lease Review Committee.
Marlene Graham, MLA, Calgary Lougheed; Paul Langevin, MLA, Lac La Biche - St. Paul; Barry McFarland,
MLA, Little Bow: and Ivan Strang, MLA, West Yellowhead were appointed to serve with Mr. Thurber.

Public fand in the White Area covers approximately 6 per cent of the Alberta land base, or 10 million acres.
This public land is primarily agricultural land (settled), managed for agriculture and multiple use.

Introduction

During Octaber and November of 1897, the Agricultural Lease Review Gommittee held 23 public meetings
in 20 locations across Alberta to listen to the views of Albertans and consult with them on the issues
brought forward at each meeting. Before each public meeting, an open house was hosted by staff from
Agriculture, Food and Rural Development and Environmental Protection to provide information and
clarification of existing government policy and legislation for the management and leasing of public land in
the White (settled) Area.

The Committee also invited written submissions to be sent in until December 31, 1997. In total, the
Committee heard 259 verbal presentations and received 454 written presentations irom Albertans. They
reviewed the written and verbal presentations and used them to form the basis for the Interim Report, which
was released for public review at the end of May 1998. In addition to the recommendations, the interim
report contained the Terms of Reference of the Agriculturai Lease Review, a full list of the public meeting
locations, and a summary of the submissions received by the Gommittee.

Comments were received on the Interim Report by the Commitiee before the end of September 1998.
During the four-month review period, the Comittee received more than 1,000 written comments. They also
discussed issues with individuals and groups during that time.



O



————,

U

A Public Land Management Strategy

In March 1997, the Agricultural Lease Review Committee set out to hear the views of Albertans regarding
the management of public land in the White Area of the province. The intent of the review was to examine
viewpoints and current policies and practices, and to develop actions to resolve several long-standing
issues regarding public land management. Most of these issues involve the balance between the rights and
obligations of agricuftural leaseholders, especially holders of grazing leases. Some examples of the issues
are the degree of control of public access by grazing leaseholders, and the compensation received for
industrial surface access. Much of the public land existing today was considered “marginal” or “wasteland”
when settiers originally opened these areas for agriculture. Today the land is a valuable resource for
livestock grazing.

Over the years, Alberta society’s needs and expectations have changed, and the balance of rights and
obligations needs to be clarified at least, and changed, where necessary, to reflect the needs and goals of
an Alberta poised to enter the rext millennium. To accomplish this review, the Committee went to
communities to hear what Albertans at the grass roots level had to say.

The following is the Gaovernment's strategy for management of these public lands.

1. Alberta’s Public Lands in the White Area —
Guiding Principles

Alberta’s provincial public lands, whether they are grasslands, forested lands or wetlands, possess a
spectrum of unique attributes that Albertans value. Their essential quality seems to be that they are natural
landscapes that have had limited alteration by human activity and as such, represent living links to the past.
Historically, the principle uses for public land in the White Area have been livestock grazing in support of
ranching and farming, with smaller parcels of cultivation and vacant public tand primarily limited to the
northern half of the province. Today, land leased for grazing remains largely ecologically intact, having
unique seil, vegetation and animal life, where natural processes and functions are still at work.

Healthy grazing lease lands provide a variety of important values for the agriculture sector and society as a
whole. To livestock producers, grazing lease lands provide an important supply of forage and water for
livestock production. With careful management, stable flows of animal products can be sustained, and local
individuals and communities supported, while maintaining the basic rangeland resources (soil, vegetation
and water). In addition, grazing lease lands are important storehouses of biodiversity, supporting rich native
plant communities and providing habitat for fish and wildlife species, as well as being valued for other
natural resources. They are valued by many for their heritage, recreational and aesthetic merits. These
lands are also vital to the proper functioning of watersheds and for providing quality water to downstream
users. The lands also support the needs of industrial users. In short, grazing lease iands are managed under
a multiple use philosophy to meet the many and varied needs of Albertans.

Although there are different and sometimes conflicting goals and aspirations for these lands, there exists a
fundamental principle (a common vision) that was conveyed to the government — that Alberta’s settled area
public fands, and in particular grazing lease lands, are a precious resource that warrants careful, long-term



()

o

o



stewardship and protection. Stewardship carries with it the responsibility to protect the health of the
resource and long-term sustainable production through thoughtful management of the rangeland
ecosystems.

Grazing lease lands are a wide range of sizes, from landscapes as large as townships, to individual quarter
sections. At the large scale, these lands represent whole ecological units. At the small scale, they can be
islands of native plant communities within the altered landscape. The common vision of Albertans for public
land seems solidiy behind maintaining the largely unaltered landscapes for a varlety of private and public
values. Included in this vision is consideration for the health of these landscapes. By understanding
ecological principles, careful management nourishes the productive capacity of public land.

2. Goals

]
With the guiding principles in mind, these goals were used to refine the actions:

* Public fands are viewed by Albertans as a valuable asset to the province of Alberta, as well as legacies
for Albertans. The management of these lands must sustain this legacy and also maintain a positive
impact on the environment. They should be managed to achieve the greatest benefits to the province
and its people.

» Tothe extent possible, as many Albertans from all walks of life should benefit from and enjoy the natural
beauty and splendor of Alberta, including public lands, Use of these lands is not a right; but rather a
privilege (i.e., Albertans do not have an unrestricted right to use all public land as some rights have been
granted to disposition holders).

= The primary use of public land in the White Area should continue to be for agricultural purposes,
although multiple uses will continue to be encouraged.

* The leaseholder should be recognized as a “steward” of their disposition.

*» The grazing of livestock is recognized as essential in maintaining the biodiversity énd productivity of the
grasslands within the White Area.

* The livestock industry’s contribution is recognized in the development and growth of this province.

* Legislation, regulation, and policy should be uniform and clear. Information explaining the legislation and
policies should then be provided to the public and to users to increase their awareness and
understanding.

3. Issues
)

In general, there is a need for a revised arrangement with disposition hoiders to reflect current realities in
public land management. Specific issues of importance are discussed below in a format that generally
explains the issue, outlines the intention regarding that issue, and concludes with the actions. Other issues
were also seen as important and these comments {Section 4) should be considered in future public land
management policy development.



()

()



A

The following are the issues: .)

3.1 Sale of public land

Should public fand that is used primarily for agricultural production be sold or retained under provincial
ownership?

Intention

Continued use and conservation of public land under provincial ownership is supported. There is a public
expectation that these lands will continue to be managed by the province. They are a resource which is an
asset of the province. This intention will be tempered with orderly sales of vacant public land in the Nerthem
Alberta Development Council Area, primarily in the Peace River Block, which are not required for provincial

- programs and conservation.

Action

The public land base in the White Area should be maintained under provincial control. The following
exceptions are recognized:

= Public land in the White Area that is cultivated will be sold if no conservation reasons exist to preclude
the sale and the existing disposition holder agrees to the sale. All land sales will be made through a
public tender or auction. There will also be a provision to trade saleable public Jand for privately owned
land of significant conservation value.

» Fragmented and/or fractional pieces of public land that are too small to provide a conservation value, o
and are inefficient to manage, will be sold by public tender or auction. The existing disposition holder
must agree to the cancellation of the disposition if the land is to sold during the term of the existing lease.

* Forthe two pravious actions, any existing agricultural easeholder will have the right to match the highest
bid in the public auction or tender.

» There is still a role for land in the Northern Alberta Development Council Area, primarily in the Peace
River Block, to be sold for agricultural development if it is surplus to the province's needs. This would
occur only as demand warranted and applications are received, in close cooperation with the local
municipal governments and with public involvement.

3.2 Access to public land

One of the fopics often discussed is the question of public access on grazing leases. Public access is
generally considered by most people as meaning access for recreational uses such as hunting, hiking and
bhirdwatching.

Intention

Opinions conceming public access on agricultural leases differ widely. Albertans’ opinions on this issue
tend to cover points such as wha is the gate-keeper and what is the gate-keepet’s role? The term
gate-keeper does not literally mean that the agricultural leaseholder must stand by his gate. Rather, the term
reflects the need for the leaseholder to have the ability to control recreational access fo the land. The user is
then responsible for contacting the leaseholder to obtain permission for access. ‘



R



)

Agricultural lessees, in addition to managing the grazing lease, are also managing a business. Lessees can
best manage both if they have contro! of activities that affect their livestock and the grazing resource upon
which they depend. However, lands contained in agricultural leases frequently have natural and recreational
values which the public would like to, and should be allowed to, enjoy.

Action

* The province, as the owner of public fand, will designate the agricultural leaseholder as its gate-keeper
for recreational access to the grazing disposition. Any recreational user wishing to access public land
held under an agricultural lease must seek permission of the leaseholder. The leaseholder would allow
reasonable access, but may deny access based on considerations such as the protection of the land
base, protection of the grass resource, and the protection of personal property (including livestock) from
the risk of damage resulting from the proposed activity or season of use.

* Ifthe public recreational user considers that the agricultural leaseholder is unreasonably restricting
access, they will be able to voice their concern by contacting the province, as the landowner. Public
Lands staff in Agriculture, Food-and Rural Development would discuss the concern with both the
agricultural leaseholder and those recreational users wishing to gain access. If the concern has merit,
Public Lands staff will work with the leaseholder to resolve the concern.

* Ifthere is a long-term denial of reasonable access by the agricuitural leaseholder, further action can be
taken by the province (as the landowner), which in extreme cases may ultimately result in cancellation
of the lease.

* The province, as the owner of pubiic land, will encourage further education of all users of public land
through an enhanced “Use Respect Program” and through other education initiatives.

3.3 Liability

There are concerns by the ranching community regarding the liability they carry when allowing recreational
users onto agricultural dispositions they hold. Similarly, numerous recreational users empathized with the
ranchers, and felt that recreational users should be responsible for their own actions.

Currently under the Occupier's Liability Act, visitors on public land leases are gither “invited” or
“trespassers”. if an agricultural disposition holder allows someone to access the disposition, the person
becomes “invited” and the agricultural disposition holder accepts the liability of a “common duty of care”.
Many agricultural disposition holders do not realize the liability they assume when allowing people on their
disposition.

Intention

Public recreational access should be encouraged, with the public recognizing that the user is responsibie
for their own actions. Permission/waiver of fiability slips could be issued to recreational users and signed
by both the recreational user and the agricultural disposition holder. These slips would not be mandatory.
The signed slips would remave a large part of the agricultural disposition holder's duty of care under the
Occupier’s Liability Act, and place the responsibility on the actual user. This approach balances the
responsibilities of agricutiural disposition holders and recreational users.



()



Action 6)\}
* The Government should review the province’s liability legislation with the intention that changes deemed :
ngcessary are made through legislation.

* Asa part of the expanded “Use Respect” program, permission/waiver of liability slips be made available
to agricultural disposition holders.

3.4 Industrial access and surface compensation

There are concerns about both the level of compensation paid to agricultural disposition holders and the
amount of control agricultural disposition holders have over industrial development.

Intention

The province's role as landowner should be estabiished in determining what industrial development wil
occur on public land. There should be a new arrangement between the landowner and the agricultural
disposition holders for the surface compensation payments.

The intention and actions outlined for this issue are not intended to apply to negotiations on privately owned
fand.

Action

For new developments, and on existing developments after the “grandfather” period, the area under

development would be removed from the agricultural disposition resulting in the resource developer paying N
individual lease fees on this area. These development areas would be returned to the grazing lease after the 0/ ‘

site has heen reclaimed.

Arrangement for new oil and gas developments:

* A process will be used to ensure a three way discussion between the energy company, the agricultural
leaseholder, and the province on any new development. The agricultural leaseholder's operational -
concemns need to be addressed and they need to be compensated directly for damages. The energy
company would be required to provide the province with signed documentation showing the company
has addressed the grazing leaseholder’s operational concerns. [n cases where the energy company and
the grazing feaseholder cannot reach agreement, an arbitration process will be availabie. Access
consent and approval for the energy projsct will come from the province.

* Although the new system will be different from the current system, the overall amount paid by the oil
and gas industry would not be less than the amount currently paid for compensation and rental.

* The energy company must contact the agricultural leaseholder at the initial stage of development. The
“company will address the leaseholders operational concerns and arrange to pay for damages.

* The province would charge a first year and subsequent annual rental. These rentals will be based on
regional comparisons of compensation paid on private Jand from the previous year.



o



* Access consent granted to the energy company will be provided by the province after the company has
dealt with the agricultural leaseholder's operational concerns and arrangements have been made for
payment of damages. There will not be an appeal process for the agricultural leaseholder for the access
decision made by the province. An arbitration process will be available to address disputes that may
arise between the agricultural leaseholder and the energy company over damages and operational
concerns.

* In some rare instances, a former leaseholder either voluntarily gives up his lease or has it cancelied. The
province would remove any industrial activity sites from the fease area before tendering out a new lease.
The new leaseholder would not receive any compensation for those ongoing activities, since those areas
would not be part of the lease.

* For pipeiines, the activity area would not be removed from the agricultural disposition; however, the
$ame process addressing access consent, operational concerns, and damages would be used as
outlined above for oil and gas developments.

For other industrial development§ such as sand and gravel, clay, peat, and other natural resources:

* The disposition area would be deleted from the agricuttural disposition without compensation from the
developer to the agricultural dispesition holder, The developer will address the leaseholder's operational
concerns and would arrange to pay for damages. In cases where the development company and the
agricultural leaseholder cannot reach agreement, an arbitration process will be available.

* The province, as landowner, would collect a new first year payment and annual rental from the
developer.

* With temporary authorizations made by the province, {e.g., for borrow pits), the use will be approved by
the province. The developer will address the lsaseholder's operational concerns and would arrange to
pay for damages.

* Appeals would not be accepted on industrial access decisions from either the agricultural disposition
holder or the industrial operator. In cases where the development company and the agricuftural
leaseholder cannot reach agreement, an arbitration process will be available.

CGonservation and Resource Management Funding

* The existing funds collected for industrial developments would continue to flow into tie general revenue
of the province. Some of the “new" revenue created from the new arrangement for industrial
development and exploration, will be used for conservation and resource management purposes. These
funds would be used for such things as partial funding of resource enhancement, resolving multiple use
confiicts, education, research, and increased monitoring of dispositions.

Phase-in Period
A phase-in period will occur.

* Existing oil and gas developments will be “grand fathered” for a 10 year period once the new proposals
are adopted. This will allow the grazing leaseholders with existing oil and gas developments to maintain
their existing compensation arrangements until the natural productive end of the development, or 10
years, whichever occurs first.

* All new ail and gas and other industrial developments would be approved under the new arrangements.




@

»



3.5 Industrial access for resource exploration il

Concern was expressed by exploration companies {e.9., oil and gas, sand and gravel, metallic minerals)
that agricultural dispesition holders limit and sometimes deny access to explore on public land under
agricuttural disposition. :

Intention

Again, the province’s role as landowner should be clearly established in its determination of what resource
exploration activities can occur on public fand.

Action

* Access consent to the exploration company will be provided by the province after the company has
dealt with the agricultural leaseholder’s operational concerns and arrangements have been made for
payment fo damages. Appeals on land use decisions would not be accepted. In cases where the
exploration company and the agricultural leaseholder cannot reach agreement, an arbitration process
wili be availablg.

* Fees (e.9., Permit Fees) by the exploration operator would be paid to the province (as landowner). The
province will develop a schedule of fees that would be paid to the province by the exploration operaor,
based on regional comparisons of fees paid on private land. The exploration operator pays the
agricultural leaseholder directly for damages to his improvements,

3.6 Environmental protection

This issue revolves around the protection and use of natural resources on public land. This is a key issue
which is addressed in provisions of many of the earlier issues.

Intention

The protection of natural resources and the sustainable use of these resourcas are key considerations for a
long-term public land management strategy. Natural resources should be protected and enhanced where
possible and practical. Use of these resources must be done in a sustainable way to ensure the resources

are available to future generations.

Action
* A stewardship code of practice will be developed for agricultural users with their involvement. This code
of practice would be the barometer for measuring “good stewardship”. A code of practice will also be

devetoped for other users of public land. These codes wilf be publicized and wilf be used in determining
tenure (see Section 3.8).

+ All dispositions on public land will have mandatory audits every five years by provincial agrologists.
When problem cases are identified, they will be checked yearly until the problems are resolved.

* Privately owned lands more suitable for conservation purposes will be acquired through the trade of
saleable, less sensitive public lands.

* Grazing disposition holders will continue to file annual stock return forms, which would aiso note
stewardship.

10



()



* Riparian areas on public land will be a priority for management. The proper management of these areas
will be part of the code of practice to be developed. Stewardship courses for agricultural disposition
holders, as well as monitoring and enforcement, will continue and be enhanced.

* Education and information initiatives with disposition holders will be continued and enhanced. Work with
agricultural users has been extremely effective through efforts such as the “Cows and Fish” program.

* The increased funding for conservation resource managernent purposes will assist in resource
enhancement projects, increased monitoring of dispositions, education, research, and helping to resolve
some multiple use concerns.

3.7 Rental rates and municipal taxes

Grazing disposition holders are currently responsible for paying municipal taxes on public land they hold
under disposition. They pay these taxes directly to the municipality. Submissions received by the
Committee indicate that the relationship between the province, as the owner of public land, and their
tenants should be more in line with that of a private landowner and their tenant. Taxes are paid by the
province on Provincial Grazing Reserves.

Intention

The province, as the landowner, should be responsible for the municipal taxes on their land. Similar to what
happens in a private landowner and tenant relationship, the cost of these taxes would be built into the
disposition fee charged by the landowner. The landowner, not the tenant, then pays the taxes directly to the

....

(3 ' municipality.

The rental rates on public land grazing Isases should be equivalent to private land arrangements, where
similar services are provided. The new rates should also recognize the service that leaseholder's provide as
“stewards of the resource”. ‘

Action

* The grazing disposition holder will no longer be responsible for paying taxes directly to the municipality
for public land under disposition. Instead, the province, as landowner, would forward to the
municipalities the amounts normally assessed as taxes on these public lands. These payments would be
in the form of a “Payment In Lieu of Taxes”. Grazing fees would be re-defined to reflect such an
arrangement, with the grazing disposition holder paying a “comprehensive fee” for the disposition. The
complete fee will be based on a formula that is flexible, and considers changes in cattle prices and
changes in the applicable municipality’s tax rate.

* Rental rates will be reviewed after the changes recommended in this report have been implemented and
a new landowner/tenant relationship has been developed. The review should consider the role the
leaseholder plays as a “steward of the resource”. In the interim, rental rates will include municipal taxes.

"






3.8 Grazing disposition assignments and tenure 0
This issue revolves around the ability to transfer the disposition and the length or term of the disposition.

Intention
Grazing lease assignments should continue as they are currently done, with the province charging an
assignment fee on an animal unit month basis.

Some have called for increased tenure on grazing dispositions held by proven “good stewards”. The
province, as the landowner, must rely on the grazing disposition holder to be the resident “steward” of the
disposition and “gate keeper” of the disposition for recreational access. Good stewardship shoutd be
rewarded and poor stewardship must be addressed. Stewardship should be recognized in the tenure of a

disposition.

Action

» Registration or assignment fees baid to the province by the existing disposition holder will remain and
continue to be set as they are currently.

* Registration or assignment fees should be paid to the province on the transfer of shares by a
corporation that holds an agricultural disposition.

* Assignments within the “family”, for both individuals and corporations, should continus to be supported
and chargad a nominal flat fee.

* Good stewards (as defined by the code of practice) should be rewarded with 20-year leases.

* First time lease terms should be 10 years, However, first time leaseholders should be audited more
frequently than the mandatory five year audits recommended in the Interim Report and enforcement
measures be taken if the new leaseholder fails to comply with the provisions of the code of practice.

+ Fordisposition holders that have a track record of poor stewardship, a probationary lease term would be
initiated for one to five years. This disposition term would provide a warning to the leaseholder that their
stewardship is in guestion and further action will be taken if it does not improve and would be audited
yearly,

3.9 The name “public land”

Several issues and concerns revolve around the name “public land”,

Intention

Public land is land owned by the province and managed for Albertans. The term “public” gives an
impression of ownership by all and an undeniable right for the public to use these lands, irrespective of
prior rights being granted. The term “Crown" was seen 1o be too all encompassing and inclusive of other
land managed by the province such as Provincial Parks or the Federal Gevernment land. In the second
round of consultation, the Committee heard from numerous individuals and groups who feel the change to
provincial lands was inappropriate and was an attempt to take away rights from the public. Public land is
viewed as the appropriate name.

Action -‘
The term "public lands” should remain as is. 0\1"

12



C

)



O

4. Comments
“

The following issues were seen as important, and will be considered in future public land management
policy development.

4.1 Public involvement

We recognize public involvement as an important part of making decisions on the use of pubfic fand. Today,
there are opportunities for public involvement at all levels of decision making on public fand, ranging from
regional integrated decisions covering a large area, to local site-specific decisions such as for a grazing
disposition or mineral surface lease. Public Lands staff manage public land in the White (settled) Area of
the province on behalf of Albertans. With this in mind, Public Lands staff, in their role as the land manager
in the White Area, consider a numbér of factors in deciding when public involvement is required to help
them make their land management decisions. This process Is reasonable.

4.2 Wildlife management

The protection of wildlife habitat as important. However, because of the transient nature of wildlife
movemet, the management of wildlife becomes a larger issue. The protection or enhancement of wildlife
habitat on public land, with the joint cooperation of the agricultural disposition holder, should be supported.
Other initiatives were aiso discussed earlier in Section 3.6, Environmenta protection.

4.3 Access for trappers

Access for trappers to their registered traplines should be allowed. However, more communication between
the agricultural user and the trapper must occur, to ensure each understands the other’s needs and
concerns.

4.4 Grazing zone boundaries

There are concerns about the difference in grazing fees north and south of the North Saskatchewan River
(boundary between grazing zone B and G). There were suggestions that the Peace River Block {in zone C)
has more adverse differences as compared to the rest of zone C, north of the North Saskatchewan, than
does land north and south of the North Saskatchewan River. The boundary should be reviewed and
consideration be given to creating a boundary that makes zone C the Peace River Block only.

4.5 Municipal needs

Municipalities will have some priority for use of resources on public land when the resource is needed for a
pubfic work. The province, as landowner, will be able to withdraw parcels from a disposition without the
agreement of the disposition holder, as such occurrences are considered to be for the public good

(e.g. municipal needs). There would be a three-way discussion between the disposition holder, the

13



o

)



province, and the the municipality. The municipality would address the leaseholder's aperational concems Q)
and would arrange to pay for damages.

4.6 Fragmentation of public land

Provincial policies should not create pressure for the fragmentation of public land into smaller and smaller
lease units, Although this should not be “regulated”, some encouragement will be made to maintain the size
of the units. Where a conservation easement is placed on private land, tenure on public and leases held in
conjunction with the private land could be increased to provide a degree of protection to the whole ranching
unit,

4.7 Shared Stewardship Accord between Environmental
Protection and Agriculture, Food and Rural
Development

The Shared Stewardship Accord is a success. It provides a “partnership” between the administration and
management of public land, Agriculture, Food and Rural Development should continue to manage public
land in the White Area as does Environmental Protection manage public land in the Green (forested) Area.
Agriculture, Feod and Rural Development should continue to be the one-window for management of public
land in the White Area.

4.8 Grazing subletting

Subletting {also known as subleasing) is an agreement where the grazing disposition holder recelves a
payment from the third party in exchange for the third party’s use of the land for grazing. Currentiy,
Subletting of a grazing disposition is not allowed except in extraordinary circumstances, such as estate
cases, medical problems of the disposttion holder which temporarily prevent his use of the land, or other
exceptional situations such as fire or drought. Subletting, in these cases, is considered a last resort, is
short-term in nature, and must be approved by the province.

The current poiicy regarding the subletting of grazing dispositions is appropriate. The current system
provides enough leeway to deal with unusual situations that may face producers. Current policies and
procedures regarding the subletting of grazing dispositions are working well, and no changes are necessary.

4.9 Aboriginal issues

Aboriginal groups and individuals have made comments on a number of issues. As these issues were
outside the mandate of the Committee, they have been forwarded to the Department of Intergovernmental
and Aboriginal Affairs for their information and appropriate action.

14



@

()

)



4.10 Identification of public land

Some people cannot identify which fands are public and which are private. Wherever possible and practical,
public land should be identifiable.

We recommend that the Department of Alberta Municipal Affairs consult with local municipalities to
encourage standardization of the identification of public land on municipal maps.

4.11 Agricultural dispositions

The current range of agricultural dispositions (lease, licence, permit, and grazing contract) should be
reduced to either an agricultural lease or an agricultural agreement. Agricultural leases will be issued for
short-term or fong-term periods, recognizing the leaseholder's stewardship. Agricultural agreements will
cover the situations where the land‘s primary use is not agricultural. Either disposition would include the
appropriate conditions.

4.12 Definition of livestock

Currently, the Public Lands Act allows the grazing of “livestock” on public fand. “Livestock” is defined in the
Act as cattle, horses and sheep. Over the years, the practice has evolved to allow the grazing of bison,
although they are not included in the definition,

The multipie use of public fand should be supported as well as the desire for diversification of the livestock
industry in Alberta. Sound range management can include the grazing of bison. However, dispositions
issued for grazing of these animals often result in single use areas. In addition, fencing required to confine
these animals can restrict wildlife movement. The temperament of the bison as well as the fact that they
often graze year-round restricts the use of these lands for other purposes.

With these factors in mind, the Public Lands Act could be amended to expand the definition of “livestock”
providing this “new" type of livestock is proven not to place new limits on the multiple use of these areas.
Fencing of grazing dispositions should not impede wildlife movement.

4.13 Timber harvesting on agricultural dispositions

Grazing leaseholders have expressed concerns that logging imber on the grazing lease can seriously
impact their ability to graze cattle. The value of the timber industry in Alberta and the need to access the
timber resource should be recognized. A grazing lease does not convey any rights or priority to the timber
resource on the lease area except for timber removat around the perimeter fence construction.

The timber operator, the grazing leaseholder, and the province should be involved in discussions at the
earliest possible time to ensure that impacts on livestock grazing are minimized, and cleanup and
reclamation/reforestation is planned and implemented in consideration of the grazing use. Wherever
possible, summer logging will be avoided. Any damage to improvements (e.g., fences, roads) by the
logging operation must be corrected by the logging operator, or compensation for these damages paid to
the grazing leassholder.

15



@

@

@



When logging on a grazing lease occurs under a sustained-yield timber program, up to 40 per cent of the 0}
productive upland will be considered for conversion to permanent pasture. Any conversion to permanent

pasture will be part of the grazing lease management planning process involving the province and the

grazing leaseholder.

4.14 Timber resources on public land in the White Area

Significant timber resources exist on public lands in the White Area throughout the province. These timber
resources are normally not subject to long-term commitment, and are harvested under short-term permits
or licenses, usually when the land is being converted to agriculture. Both companies and individuals in the
timber business have expressed their desire to gain long-term control over a White Area public land base
for timber management and harvesting — what they all refer to as “woodlot”.

A new woodlot disposition should be investigated that would give the right to manage and harvest timber
on a sustained-yield basis from @ specific area of public land. The term of the agreement could be up to 20
years, and the area would normally be small (e.g. one or two sections). The operator of the woodlot
disposition will have exclusive rights to harvest timber within the defined area, and will be responsible for
preparing a timber management and harvest plan, reforestation, annual reporting on logging, and payment
of all fees. Crown timber dues and an annual fee for use of the land should also be levied. The operator will
not have the right to control access.

Woodlots should be allocated to individuals or associations, rather than the larger operators. There is at
present little opportunity for smaller operators to enjoy the same security of supply as the larger companies. e)
The opportunities are also greater for the small operators to process the timber into higher-valued products. 5

Woodlot dispositions would preferably be established on vacant land, but could also be issued on grazing
dispositions. While some timber harvesting and reforestation currently takes place on some grazing leases,
it requires good cooperation between grazing lessees and loggers.

A long-term relationship between a woodlot operator and a grazing lessee will need to clearly lay out the
respective rights and responsibilities of both parties and ensure proper cleanup, reclamation, and
reforestation by the woodlot operator. The association form of woodlot disposition might be especially
appropriate on grazing dispositions. The smaller operators would have access to wood, but the larger
association could take some of the responsibility for ensuring a smooth relationship with the grazing
disposition holder. Currently, grazing disposition holders who want to do range improvement clearings
must wait for timber permits to be issued, logging to happen, etc., a process that can take a couple of
years. Fenceline clearing can involve substantial amounts of salvage timber, but often it is not economical
for a logger to remove the timber. A woodlot operator on the same area could work with the grazing
leaseholder to expedite the logging.

A planning mechanism would also be needed to determine how much land in the White Area should be
designated for long-term timber production. This process should also designate areas suitable for woodlot
disposition, both from the timber/ natural resource perspective, and also from the perspective of
community and public acceptability. An allocation mechanism would also be needed to choose the woodiot
operators. Some jurisdictions base selection on a detailed evaluation of the qualifications of the individual;

the process most commonly used for public land and timber dispositions is high bid through auction or O’
tender.



.'/H\\.‘



5. Where do we go from here?
\

The government will proceed with the necessary legislative changes as soon as possible. Implementation
of many of the provisions in this repart will require stakeholder involvement. Mr. Tom Thurber, Chairman of
the Agricultural Lease Review Committee, has been asked to assist the Ministers of Agriculture, Food and

Rural Development and Environmental Protection with the implementation of the legislation, regulation, and
policy changes required from this report. '

17



()

)



)

Appendix I

Definitions

For the purposes of this report, a number of terms have been used that have a particular meaning. In order
to ald the reader in clearly understanding the report, these terms are defined below;

Agricultural
agreement

Assignment
Damages

Disposition

Gate keeper

Lease
Operational
concerns
Reasonable

access

Recreational
user

Stewardship

Tenure

18

isstied when the primary use of the land may not be agriculture. The agricultural
component will still be managed under an agricultural agreement, for shert or
long-term grazing, with appropriate conditions.

a written transfer of interests and rights from the disposition holder (assignor) to
another party {assignee) of the terms of the existing agreement.

actual physital harm done to leaseholder's improvements such as fences, dugouts
and water wells, as well as damage to forage, annual crop, or livestock.

aland use contract issued under the Public Lands Act. Currently a disposition may
be a lease, licencs, or permit. In the future, an agricultural disposition would be only
a lease or grazing contract.

as the landowner, the province would designate the agricultural leaseholder as its
“gate-keeper”. The disposition holder would then have the ability to contrel
recreational access to the agricultural disposition.

issued primarily in situations where the primary use is grazing, and will be issued for
short or long terms.

issues that affect an agricuttural leaseholder’s operation and which can be mitigated
in some manner. These concerns are unique to each site and farm or ranch operation.

is unpaid public access which would not adversely impact the livestock operation or
cause damage to the grass resource or improvements created by the disposition
holder.

a member of the public who temporarily uses public land for recreational pursuits
including, but not limited to, hiking, hunting, birdwatching, fishing, trail riding,
bicycling, skiing, berry or hert picking, phetography, camping, off road vehicle use,
and snowmaohiling,

carries the responsibility to assist in protecting the resource health and long-term
sustainable production of the agricultural disposition through careful management of
the components of rangeland ecosystems.

the length of a ferm of a disposition.

¢




()

()

)



‘Public Lands

Alberro |

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Land Administration Division
Forest Managemant Divislon

. AGRICULTURE, FOOD AND |
RURAL DEVELOPMENT !

Information On

Land Management
Considerations
Maximizing Benefits to the
Crown

Eligibility

Application Process

How Lands are Sold

Sale Price

Public Land Grants

e Terms of Sale

Land Exchanges
(Revised 10/98)

-

Sale of Pubhc Land

Ower 60 per cent of Alberta'’s land base is public land.
Under the Public Lands Act, public land is divided into two
management categories or zones. The Green Area, or
forested portion, includes most of northern Alberta as well
as the mountains and foothill areas along the western
boundary of the province. Land in the Green Area is
typically not sold since one of the primary uses of the
Green Area is for sustained wood fibre production.

The White Ares, or settled portion, consists of the
populated central and southern parts of the province and
the Peace River region. In the White Area, public land is
largely part of the agricultural landscape. Suitable lands in
the White Area can be sold, however, the amount of land
sold is limited by existing commitments and established
resource management practices. In 1996-97, the Alberta
Government sold about 11,600 acres of public land, most
of it in the Peace River region of the White Area.

Land Management Considerations

Public lands are a valuable resource and Albertans derive
many social and economic benefits from them. As the
economy of Alberta expands and diversifies, pressures will
be exerted increasingly on public lands to accommodate
the additional activity. The government must balance the
need to accommodate this growth with its commirment to
protect the public's long-term interest in public lands for
environmental and other important benefits. Much of this
growth can be accommodated by issuing dispositions not
leading to ownership. In other cases, the most effective
way to accommodate a use is by selling public land.

Public lands are generally sold:

s to facilitate agricultural expansion and certain types of

commercial, industrial and recreational uses, thereby
supporting the growth of the provincial économy

* to provide land for essential services like public works
projects or community and institutional needs that
benefit Albertans

» if they are not needed to meet the government’s

' resource management commitments or fot other
‘government programs

In determining whether public lands are suitable for sale,

the following factors are considered:

»  the impact of sale on important resource values and
environmental factors {e.g., conservation, recreation)

+  whether the proposed use of the land would conform
with provincial and municipal land use policies

¢ availability of private land for uses of economic or
social importance

Maximizing Benefits to the Crown

When lands are sold, care is taken to ensure Albertans

receive maximum benefit, including preservation of

environmentally sensitive features and a fair economic
return. Benefits can be maximized in several ways by:

¢  basing land sales on fair market value

»  obtaining market value for Crown-owned timber, and

¢  excluding environmentally sensitive features from sale
{e.g., ecologically sensitive areas) or placing
restrictions on the title to protect these resources from
incompatible activities

Eligibliity

Purchasers of public land must be Canadian citizens, a
corporation registered in Canada, or a person or
corporation acting as trustee for someone who is 2
Canadian citizen or corporation. Public lands may also be
sold to municipalities.

Application Process

Eligible applicants must submit applications identifying the
land parcel(s) requested. If the desired land is under




ABOUT PUBLIC LANDS

disposition to another party (i.e., committed by

government), the applicant must obtain the consent of the

disposition holder before the land can be considered for

sale.

How Lands are Sold

The process for selling public land is initiated by an

individual submitting an application to purchase an _

identified parcel of land. If the land is suitable for sale, it is

sold in one of the following two ways.

1. TPubiic Land Sales
A public auction or tender is held at which md1v1dua[s
ot companies bid for public lands that are either
vacant or have been released from a disposition by the
disposition holder, making them available for sale.
When public land under disposition (e.g., a grazing -
lease or a farm development lease without an option
to purchase) is suitable for sale, the current disposition
holder does not have a priority right to purchase the
land without competition.

2. Private (Priority) Land Sales
Some lands are sold to the applicant without going
through public competition. An example of thisis
land under a disposition that contains an option to
purchase. This allows the land to be sold directly to
the disposition holder (i.e., applicant) without

" competition.

Another example is where a lessee holds a
Miscellaneous or Recreation Lease for the purpose of
a commercial/recreational development and the lands
have been fully developed (e.g. resort cabins or golf
clubhouse) and there is no option to purchase. The
lessee could have the lands reviewed and if suitable for
sale, may be allowed to purchase the land without
competition.

Sale Price

In most cases, public lands are sold based on their actual

fair market value, as if they were private land. The market

value of the land is determined using the appraisal

standards set for real estate. When land is sold via tender

or auction, the appraisal process is used to establish the

upset price.

Government can sell land to a mun1c1palu:y for utility

- developments (e.g., roads) at a value that takes the

intended use into consideration.

Public Land Granis

In some cases, the government grants public land rather

than selling it. In these cases the title specifies the type-of

land use as a condition of the grant. These land grants are

usually restricted to one or two acres and are issued in the
following situations: :

» to aschool district/division for school purposes

* 1o a religious institution for a church site

¢ to areligious institution or municipality for a cemetery
* (o asociety as a site for a community hall ‘

Terms of Sale

' In most cases, the government will transfer a “fee simple

title” for public fand upon payment of the purchase price.

‘The purchaser may be required to provide a legal survey or

plan acceptable to the Land Titles Office before the title is
transferred. The title may also be consolidated with the
purchaser’s existing title, if appropriate. The government
does not provide financing to purchasers.

Land Exchanges

Sometimes the government will negotiate a land exchange
involving public and private land. Exchanges are used
when the government obtains lands that contain’
important resource values (e.g., lakeshore, wildlife
habitat). The real estate and/or intrinsic value of the
private parcels may be equal to or greater than the public
lands being considered for exchange.

This information is intended for convenience of reference
only. The current Public Lands Act and regulations should
be consulted for all purposes of mterpretmg and applying
the law.

If you require updated 1nformat10n, contact any of the
offices below: .

Alberta Environmental Protection’

Land Administration Division

South Tower, Petroleum Flaza

9915 - 108 Street

Edmonton, Alberta T5K 2G8

Telephone: (403} 427-3570

Alberta Agriculture, Food and Rural Development
Public Land Management Branch

J.G. O’Donoghue Building

Room 200, 7000 - 113 Street,

Edmonton, Alberta T6H 5T6

Telephone: (403) 427-3595

Alberta Environmental Protection

Forest Management Division

9920 - 108 Street

Edmonton, Alberta T5K 2M4

Telephone: (403) 427-8474 .

OR call the Public Lands or Land and Forest Service office
in your area.




AGRICULTURE, FOCD AND
RURAL DEVELOPMENT
Public Lands

Aberia

ENVIRONMFENTAL PRTTECTION

S |

Information on

* Role of AAFRD
o Role of AEP

{Issued 07/97)

Shared Stewardship Accord

The stewardship of public lands in the White Area (the
settled portion of Alberta) is shared between Alberta
Environmental Protection (AEP) and Alberta
Agriculture, Food and Rural Development {AAFRD).
This agreement was formalized in a Shared Stewardship
Accord that was signed by the ministers of AEP and
AFRD.

Although the majority of public lands are under
agricultural dispositions, many other uses are also
important. The government continues its strong support
of the integrated resource management philosophy for
public lands by ensuring the accommodation of multiple
use interests. As part of this, AAFRD and AEP work
together to manage these lands for the benefit of all
Albertans.

Role of AAFRD

The day-to-day management of public iands in the White
Avrea is the responsibility of AAFRD. This includes
monitoring leases and working with leaseholders to
maintain good management of these leases and other
dispositions. When issues arise that affect public lands, or
there are disposition problems or user conflicts, AAFRD,

" in co-operation with AEP, works to resolve them.

AAFRD's Public Lands staff act as the land manager for
the White Area. They ensure that multiple use activitics
are accommodated (¢.g., agriculture, recrearion, industry
operations, sand and gravel extraction) or protected

(e.g., wildlife habitat and culturalfheritage resources). The
land manager relies on resource managers (e.g., Foresiry,
Wildlife and Fisheries staff in AEP, and Cultural Facilities
and Historical Resources staff) for information and advice

on the vast array of resources on public land. AAFRD
takes the lead role in working with other agencies,
departments and stakeholders to develop policies for
agricultural use. On other matters related to management,
AAFRD and AEP work rogether as a team to develop
policies.

Role of AEP

Land and Forest Service staff in AEP act as land managers
in the Green Area (forested area), and perform the same
role as Public Lands staff in AAFRD do for the Whire
aea.

AEP’'s Land Administration Division is responsible for
administering the Public Lands Act. [t's under this Act
that Public Lands in AAFRD, and Land and Forest
Service in AEP conducts the diy-to-day management
operations. As part of this, the Land Administration

" Division controls the ownership of public land, the

issuance of dispositions, exchanges, assignments and sales
based on recommendations from Public Lands (White
Area) and Land and Forest Service (Green Area).

AEP works jointly with AAFRD in developing policies for
management and administration of public lands. 1t also
administers and enforces recommendations made by
AAFRD on Jay-to-day management of these lands.

{over)




ABOUT PUBLIC LANDS

If you require updated information, contact any
of the offices below:

Alberta Agriculture, Food and Rural Development
Public Land Management Branch

J.G. O'Donoghue Building

Room 200, 7000 - 113 Streer

Edmonton, Alberta T6H 5T6

Telephone: (403) 427-3595

Alkerta Environmental Protection
Land Administration Division
South Tower, Petroleum Plaza
9915 - 108 Street

Edmonton, Alberta T5K 258
Telephone: (403) 427-3570

OR call the Public Lands or Land and Forest Service
office in your area.

O




G s prfieyt » Responsibilities of
: LIDEY Disposition Holder
| ENVIRONMENTAL éﬂilOTEanN
Land Administration Divislon
Forest Managerrient Division (Issued 08/97)

Information On
Il ¢ Rights of Disposition Holder

Public Land User’s Rights and Responsibilities

A multiple use philosophy guides public land management,
and makes possible a full range of resource benefits and
uses on public lands. These uses include wildlife,
watershed, soil and other conservation requirements,
agriculture, recreation, timber and gravel.

A wide variety of uses can be accommodated on public
lands through dispositions such as leases, permits,
easements, letters of authority and licenses. In turn, these
dispositions convey certain rights and obligations to the
holder for use of the land. In essence, the disposition

" holder works in partnership with the government as a
steward of the public [and and resources.

To promote multiple use, the government has set up
several demonstration sites such as the Cows and Fish
Project. It also offers courses, educational materials and
site-specific planning assistance to land users. In addition,
the government works with land use groups, including
cattle producers and oil/gas producers, and conducts audits
to ensure that appropriate land use practices are carried
out on public land.

Rights of Disposition Holder

Dispositions give the holder a variety of rights to public

land and resources. They can include the following:

s entry onto or occupation of a specific parcel of public
land during the term of the disposition

e access to and/or use of the specified resource (e.g.,
forage, timber, gravel, oil and gas, or recreational
resources)

o the ability to assign interest in some dispositions (e.g.,
grazing leases; oil/gas well leases) to another eligible

party with government approval {note: if the holder
dies, his estate retains this right)

e control of access to land held under certain
dispositions {(e.g., leases)

» compensation from mineral exploration and
development activities for surface access on certain
" dispositions (e.g., grazing leases)

e the use of some dispositions, including most leases, as
collateral for loans with government consent (note: if
a lender takes possession of a lease, they usually have
one year to find an acceptable replacement disposition

holder) :

e the right to carry out authorized improvements at
personal expense to increase production and/or
increase the use of the resource {note: improvements
that are removable such as fencing are the property of
the leaseholder, while those such as cultivation
become government property)

Certain permits or leases can be renewed upon expiry,
providing the lease/permit is in good standing and the
holderhas met all obligations. Before a renewal is issued,
the land under disposition and its management are
evaluated by the government.

Responsibilities of Disposition Holder

A wide variety of uses and dispositions can be
accommodated on the same public land base. The
disposition holder has a responsibility to manage the land
and/or resources allocated to him so the use is both
sustainable and compatible.




ABOUT PUBLIC LANDS

The use of public land is subject to periodic audits to
ensure the conditions are being met. Some dispositions
require the holder to report the resource use to the
government. For example, grazing disposition holders
provide annual stocking information. Surface materials
disposition holders must report the amount of surface
material (e.g., gravel) they remove on an annual basis.

Generally, a disposition holder’s obligations include:
+  abiding by the conditions specified in the disposition

»  participating in management planning as required by
government and adhering to an agreed upon
management plan, if one is in place. Management
plans may include requirements for reclamation, the
location and nature of development, the timing and
intensity of grazing and any other site-specific
management conditions

« obtaining government consent before undertaking any
new development beyond that specified in the
conditions

e using the land under disposition for its intended
purpose {note: if the land is not used, the government
may withdraw all or part of it)

¢ refraining from subleasing the land without
government approval (note: generally the disposition
is to be used only by the holder)

»  controlling noxious and restricted weeds (defined by
the Weed Control Act) on the disposition area

¢  paying municipal taxes where levied
¢  abiding by the Public Lands Act and regulations

abiding by all other applicable legislation (e.g., local
bylaws, Water Resources Act, Environmental Protection
and Enhancement Act)

In addition to the above, grazing dispositions have
obligations under the Public Lands Act and regulations, as
well as the disposition contract. They include:

»  grazing only cows, sheep and horses on public land

\
+ grazing only stock belonging to the disposition holder u

(note: under special circumstances, approval may be
given for grazing other stock)

*  ensuring perimeter fencing is in place to contain
livestock, where required

 adhering to the carrying capacity specified in the
disposition

¢ abiding by the appropriate range management
practices and guidelines specified by government, such
as livestock entry and remowal dates

This information is intended for convenience of reference
only. The current Public Lands Act and regulations should
be consulted for all purposes of interpreting and applying
the law. If you require updated information, contact any of
the offices below. :

Alberta Environmental Protection
Land Administration Division
South Tower, Petroleum Plaza
9915 - 108 Street

Edmonton, Alberta T5K 2G8
Telephone: (403) 427-3570

Alberta Agriculture, Food and Rural Development
Public Land Management Branch -

J.G. O’Donoghue Building

Room 200, 7000 - 113 Street

Edmonton, Alberta T6H 5T6

Telephone: (403) 427-3595

Alberta Environmental Protection
Forest Management Division

9920 - 108 Street )
Edmonton, Alberta T5K 2M4
Telephone: (403) 427-8474

OR call the Public Lands or Land and Forest Service office
in your area.

. @




-

- EI';lVleNMENTAL- PROTECTION
- Land Administration Division
Forast Management Division

e
Public Land

Information On
+ History
+ Crown Land
« Public Land
Public Land Use

(Issued 09/97)

History

On May 2, 1670, King Charles I of England granted the
Governor and Company of Adventurers of England
Trading into Hudson's Bay {The Hudson's Bay Company)
the right to trade, as well as all the territorial rights to
colonize and govern the area known as Rupert's Land.
This land was located in what is coday Alberta,
Saskarchewan, Manitoba, Ontario, Quebec and the
Northwest Territories.

From 1670 1o 1870, Western Canada was administered by
the Hudson's Bay Company, primarily for fur trading. The
company actively discouraged colonization and land

settlement as it believed the fur industry would be harmed.

In 1870, the Hudson's Bay Company sold it's fand to
Canada for a number of concessions. Subsequent to this
the provinces were formed. Alberta entered the
Confederation in 1905.

In 1930, Canada rransferred control for the natural
resources in Alberta to the province. Alberta passed the
Provincial Lands Act on March 28, 1931, for the
administration of lands, minerals, forests, fisheries and to
control the drilling of gas wells. At that time, there were
already 3,778 grazing leases held in the province covering
3,220,161 acres. In 1949, this legislation was amended to
become the Public Lands Act.

Crown Land

The term “Crown land” refers to provincial and federal
government lands. The provincial parks {(administered
under the Provincial Parks Act) and public land
{administered under the Public Lands Act) are an example
of provincial Crown land.

Public Land

In the 1970s, the provincial government began using
“public land" in place of “Crown land” when referring to
land administered under the Public Lands Act. This was
done to avoid confusion with other federal and provincial
land. This didn’t affecs the dispositions or the rights of the
disposition holders as grazing lease rights are allocated by
statute and not Common Law.

Public Land Use

Public land administered under the Public Lands Act is
owned by the.government of Alberta. Its use and
allocation are outlined in the Act. Public land is divided
into twe categories — the White Area and Green Area, as
shown on the map.

The White Area (sectled portion) consists of the
populated cencral, sowthern, and Peace River areas of the
province. The Green Area {forested portion) comprises
most of northern Alberca as well as the mountain and
foothills areas along the province's western boundary.




ABOUT PUBLIC LANDS

In the White Area, public land is part of the agricultural
landscape. It's munaged for various uses including
agriculture, recreation, soil and water conservarion, and
fish and wildlife hahitat. Some parts of the province have
large tracts of public land while other parts have very few
scattered parcels. Most of the public land in the White
Area is under disposition or is otherwise committed.
People who wish to use public land need to consulc with
the disposition holder and if required, submit a formal
application.

In the Green Area, public land is managed for timber
production, watershed, wildlife and fisheries, recreation
and other uses. Agricultural use is limited to grazing where
it's compatible with other uses. Grazing on public fand in
the Rocky Mountain Forest Reserve (headwaters of the
North and Sourh Saskatchewan Rivers) is administered
under the Forest Reserves Act. The remainder of grazing in

the Green Area is administered under the Public Lands Act.

This information is intended for convenience of reference
only. The current Public Lands Act and regulations should
be consulted for all purposes of interpreting and applying
the law.

offices below:

Alberta Environmental Protecrion
Land Administration Division
South Tower, Petroleum Plaza
9915 - 108 Street

Edmonton, Alberta T3K 2G8
Telephone: (403) 427-3570

Alberta Agriculture, Food and Rural Development
Public Land Managenment Branch

J.G. O’Donoghue Building

Room 200, 7000 - 113 Streer,

Edmonton, Alberta T6H 3T6

Telephone: (403) 427-3595

Alberta Environmental Protection
Fotest Management Division

9920 - 108 Street

Edmonton, Alberta T5K 1M4
Telephone: (403) 437-3474

OR call the Public Lands or Land and Forest Service office
in your area.

e

"

If you require updated information, contact any of the L

!



ENVIRONMENTAL PROTEG NION

Public Lands

Green Ares

#hl i ‘ J .
I:I White Area R i PEs _{‘,__._./—







I

Information on

o Timber on Agricultural
Dispositions

+ White Area Timber
Commitments

+ White Area Timber
Requests

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Land Administration Division
Forest Management Division

{lssued 07/97)

Crown Timber Resources on
White Area Public Land

Timber on public land in the White Area (settled portion
of Alberta) has attracted more interest over the past few
years, as the value of timber has increased and most
timber in the Green Area (forested portion of Alberta)
has been allocated to forest companies. However, forested
lands in the White Area are also very important for
wildlife habitat, watershed protection and recreation use.

Timber on all public land in Alberta is owned by the
Crown and allocated to private individuals or companies
through dispositions such as timber permits ot timber
licenses granted through timber quotas or Forest
Management Agreements. These dispositions are issued
by Alberta Environmental Protection (AEP) under the
Fovests Act. On publie land under an agricultural
disposition, i).c way that timber rights are given out
depends on whether the land can be sold - whether the
dispostion “feads to title.”

Although timber dispositions are issued by AEP, Alberta
Agriculture, Food and Rural Development (AAFRD) is
responsible for all disposition and management activities
on White Area public fand. Thus, AAFRD decides
whether a change in use of public land should oceur.
These decisions may include offering vacant public land
for safe or leasing it for grazing; authorizing range
improvement on a grazing lease; or, deciding to retain the
forested area intact with no changes.

Timber on Agricultural
Dispositions

Some dispositions leading to title involve time purchase
agreements, where the title is not transferred until full
payment is received. [n these agreements, the government
retains ownership of the rimber until the sale is complete
and the title is transferred. If the purchaser wants to cut
and sell timber on the praperty before final payment has
been made, a timber permit must be obrained. This permit
is available only to the purchaser, not.to a third party.
Time purchase arrangements are no longer available.

For parcels of land that are sold through public auction or
tender, the merchantable timber is often removed before
it's sold. However, the timber may also be left intact to
increase the management options of the purchaser and to
eliminate any delays caused by timber harvesting.

Grazing Agreements

Permission must be obrined from the public land
manager before forested land can be cleared for any
reason. The land manager will decide if the forest cover is
needed for conservation purposes or whether it can be
removed. [f clearing is allowed, merchantable timber must
be harvested. Under most circumstances, a merchantable

quantity is considered to be about one logging truckload
(35 to 40 tons).

{over)




ABOUT PUBLIC LANDS

Before timber salvage occurs, a timber permit must be
obtained from AEP. Unless very small quantities are
involved, the timber is awarded through a competitive
process (i.e., draw, tender or auction). If the grazing lessee
requires a small quantity of timber for personal use, a
timber permit may be awarded directly to the grazing

lessee.

Logging standards and conditions (timing, stump heights,
cleanup, etc.} are set before timber permits are awarded.
This allows the grazing resource to be protected and other
resource management concerns o be addressed.

Timber on some grazing lands is also managed for
long-term or sustained-yield timber production. Grazing
still continues, but all logged areas must be properly
reforested. Until the young trees become established,
grazing may be restricted in reforested areas. Before
sustained yield logging is allowed, an overall management
plan must be developed to address grazing needs,
reforestation and other conservation concerns of the area.

Although the timber permic holder has the right of access
to the grazing lease to carry out logging, he must consult
with the grazing tenant 1o establish timing, usc of trails
and gates, etc. The timber operator is not obligated to
obtain consent from the lessee of the grazing lease where
the logging will take place. The grazing lessee does not
receive compensation for logging accessfoperations on his
leased land. However, the timber operatar must obtain
consent from any other grazing lessee whose lease must be
crossed ta access the lease with the timber to be logged.
He may have to pay surface access compensation to that
lessee.

Farm Development Leases Without Option to
Purchase

Before 1995, holders of Farm Development Leases
Without Optivn to Purchase were granted priority to
timber on the lease area. The lessce was required only o
obtain a timber permit from AEF and pay timber dues.
After that time, priority to timber was no longer included
as part of the agreement.

White Area Timber
Commitments
The concept of sustained-yield timber production, has

been implemented successfully in some parts of the White
Area. [t has been most successful where the needs of ather

resource uses have been considered carefully and where

L]
the pubtic has been consuited on their needs and interests. ‘ }

For example, there are long-term commitments to timber
production on some public lands in the White Area. One
was established by the Rocky Resource Integrated
Decision, which applies to White Area lands adjacent to
the Green Area boundary near Rocky Mountain House.
Although much of this land is under grazing lease and
areas for range improvement have been determined, the
plan also establishied the land base for long-term timber
production. To integrate these land uses successfully,
operating ground rules, reforestation requirements and
communication processes have been set up. The timber
supplied from this land is part of the Miscellaneous
Timber Use (MTU) program, which provides a timber
supply to small operators.

Another commitment is the deciduous timber allocation
held by Diashowa-Marubeni Industries (DMI) in Peace
River. This nonrenewable commitment allows DMI 1o
harvest 125,000 m” of aspen annually in the Peace River
area until 2009. DM is also allowed 1o harvest up to
150,000 m’ annually from lands that will be converted to
agriculture.

White Area Timber Requests

Individual timber operators have expressed interest in
setring up a woodlot, allowing them to control a small
land base for long-ter forest management. Although this
type of disposition does not exist at present, it may receive
consideration in the future.

Forest product companies have approached the
government to purchase or lease substantial tracts of
White Area forested land. Some Canadian companies
have already purchased individual parcels of public land
that have come up for sale, bur multi-national forest
product companics are restricted by foreign ownership
regulations, These companies ate interested in securing
additional wood supplies to increase their overail
praductivity.

This information is intended for convenience of reference
only. The current Public Lands Act, Forests Act and their
regulations should be consuleed for all purposes of
interpreting and applying the law.

A

-




ABOUT PUBLIC LANDS

If you require updated information, contact any

of the offices below:

Alberta Agriculture, Food and Rural Development
Public Land Management Branch

1.G. O'Donoghue Building

Room 200, 7000 - 113 Street

Edmonton, Alberta T6H 5T6

Telephone: {403} 427-3595

Alberta Environmental Protection
Forest Management Division
9920 - 108 Street

Edmonton, Alberta T5K 2M4
Telephone: (403) 427-8474

Alberra Environmental Protection
Land Administration Division
South Tower, Petroleum Plaza
9915 - 108 Street

Edmonton, Alberta T5K 2G8
Telephone: {403) 427-3570

OR cali the Public Lands or Land and Forest Service
office in your area.




O

@



Information on
Acquiring Public Lands

Public Land Use in Alberta

Approximately 60 per cent of the province’s land base is
public land. It is managed for a variety of uses, under an
integrated resource management philosophy (integrating
‘ the many resource uses and needs on public lands).

. Although the majority of the land supports forest
() production, it is also important for watershed protection,
wildlife habitat, recreation, oil and gas well sites,
agricultural production and industrial development, to
mention only a few of the uses.

The purpose of this pamphlet is to describe some of the
uses permitted on public land. It also provides general
information on how to purchase or obtain a disposition
(lease, licence or permit) for such land.

For administrative purposes, public land is divided into
two broad land use areas: Green Area and White Area
{see map). Generally, lands in the Green Area are more
remote, have lower quality soils and have a more varied
topography than in the White Area.

The Green Area (non-settled} is managed primarily for
timber production, but other uses are permitted. Intensive
activities involving settlement or agricultural
development are restricted because the land base is
required for forest production and there is a high cost for
providing services such as roads.

. Inthe White Area (settled) the types of acceptable uses
( /} are usually less restrictive than in the Green Area.

However, it may be difficult to find suitable land that is
available.

Abeiia

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Public Lands

Green Area
[___[ White Area

More Information Inside

o Farm Development Sales and
Leases

« Cultivation Permits

« Grazing Leases

« Grazing Permits

« Forest Grazing Licenses

+ Availability for Industrial,
Commercial, Recreational and
Other Purposes

« Availability for Other
Short-Term Uses

(LA49 - Rev 10/94)




ABOUT PUBLIC LANDS

Who CGan Apply
Applicants must be at least 18 years of

age and Canadian citizens or
permanent residents of Canada. If the
applicant is a corporation then it must
have at least 75 per cent Canadian
ovmership. However, there are no
ownership restrictions for resource
extraction-telated dispositions.

How to Apply

The steps involved in acquiring
public land (sale, lease licence,
permit} are generally as follows:

+  Idenrify suitable parcel(s) by legal
description (quarter section,
township, range and meridian or
lot, block and plan}.

+  Submit an application and
required fee.

+  Land managers determine if the
land is suitable for the intended
use.

e Land is awarded on basis of
highest bid if being sold.

«  land is awarded on the basis of
highest bonus tender if a lease or
licence is being granted. Grazing
land in the Green Area may be
awarded on the basis of need.

«  Land is usually not sold for

non-agricultural uses and if it is,
the agreement often contains a
sell-back clause. Such land is
usually awarded to the applicant
without competition at market
value, if the related activities
such as a gas plant do not lend
themselves to public bidding.

Rental Payments and Property
Taxes

Rental payments are required for all
lands under lease, licence or permit.
In most cases municipal property
taxes are payable directly to the local
municipal authority.

The following information describes
some of the agricultural and
non-agricultural uses permitted on
public land. Further details can be
obtained by contacting any of the
offices listed at the end of this
brochure.

Availability for
Agricultural Uses

Only a limited amount of suitable
land is available for lease or sale in
settlement aress.

The majority of the potentially
suirable unallocated agricultural land
is located within the Peace River
region. The improvement potential of
this soil is generally limited and may
require special management practices.
With appropriate agronomic
practices, a wide variety of crops
including grains, oilseeds, forage and
seed crops are being successfully
growr.

Public land required for recreation or
conservation purposes, or bordering
lakes and rivers, is not available for
sale or cultivation. In some cases it
may be available for livestock grazing.

Public Land Sales

Public land in the White Area can be
sold if there are no potential erosion
or conservation limitations, and other
resource values are not considered

sufficiently important to require
retention in government ownership.
Sales are by cash payment only. Title
is issued after payment is received.

Farm Development Leases
Leases may be granted where the
department does not wish to sell the
land because of possible resource
conflicts, conservation or erosion
concerns or other physical limitations

of the land.

Cultivation Permits (White
Area)

Cultivation permits are issued
annually to allow the cropping of land
already under cultivation.

Grazing Leases

Grazing leases are usually issued for a
term of 10 years where grazing is
considered the best long-term use of

the land.

Grazing/Hay Permits

Grazing permits are also issued on
land reserved for other purposes or
when it is not considered in the
public interest to grant long-term
dispositions on specific land. Grazing
permits may be renewed at the
deparrment’s discretion. Hay permits
are issued annually for the haying
season only.

Grazing Reserves

There are 32 grazing reserves
throughout the province. Livestock
operators may put livestock on the
reserves, whete space is available.




ABOUT PUBLIC LANDS

““*uwk

N

Reserves are managed for both
livestock grazing and other multiple
uses such as hunting and fishing.

Head Tax Permits

Head tax permits are issued for
livestock grazing for short periods of
time (usually less than a year) in the
more remote areas. | he land may not
have to be fenced and municipal taxes
are not applied.

Grazing Licences

A grazing licence may be issued for
livestock grazing on public land for a
term of up to 10 years. Licences are
usually issued when there are other
uses of the land such as timber
production. Grazing within a Forest
Management Agreement Atrea can
only be authorized under a licence.

Availability for
Industrial,
Commercial,
Recreational and
Other Purposes

Industrial

Public land may be used for wellsites,
pipelines, access roads and other
similar activities. Corporate
applicants may require surface
dispositions for resource extraction
putposes (eg. petroleum and natural
gas, oil sands and coal development).
Land required for surface rights is not
advertised.

Commercial/Recreation
Commercial or recreational use of
land may be authorized by a
miscellaneous lease, miscellaneous
permit or a recreational lease. If the
applicant is a municipality of a
registered non-profit society, and the
use is recreational, then a 21-year
recreational lease may be issued.

Commercial uses such as plant sites,
mill sites, tower sites, landfills and
heliports are authorized by
miscellaneous lease. Temporary
developments such as trappers, cabins
and base camps are authorized by a
miscellaneous permit. Lands required
are not normally advertised and
applications are assessed on their
individual need and merit.

Commercial
Recreation/Tourism

A lease may be issued through the
Commercial Tourism and Recreation
Leasing process (CTRL) for the
development of commercial
recreation or tourism facilities on
public land.

Residential

Pisposition of public land intended
solely for residential purposes is
normally not approved unless the
lands are within subdivisions.

Availability for Other
Short-Term Uses

Temporary field authorization (TFA)
may be granted to use public land for
a stated purpose without issuing a
formal disposition. This type of
authority may be used to approve
such activities as public recreational

events and temporary access for
evaluation of a site for possible
development.

TFAs may also be utilized to authorize
access for site preparation prior to
granting a disposition.

Land Exchanges

Privately owned land may be
exchanged for public land where:

a) agovernment agency wishes to
acquire private land.

b) there is an opportunity for the
government to obtaint land
needed for conservation purposes.

Timber Harvesting

Most timber harvesting occurs in the
Green Area under a policy of
sustained yield management, Rights
to harvest timber in the Green Area
have been allocated under authority
of Forest Management Agreements,
Timber Quotas and Miscellaneous
Timber Use programs. Timber
harvesting may also be carried out in
the White Area. Individuals who
wish to harvest timber in small
quantities or for their own use should
contact the local Land and Forest
Services’ office for further
information. This includes permits for
firewood, transplants, Christmas trees,
posts and poles, and saw timber.




ABOUT PUBLIC LANDS

Further Information
or Inquiries . ..

The administration and management
of public land comes under two
separate government agencies.
Environmental Protection’s Land
Administration Division is
responsible for the administration of
public land throughout the province.
The day-to-day management is
divided between Alberta Agriculture,
Food and Rural Development, which
manages the public land in the White
Area, and Alberta Environmental
Protection, which is responsible for
the public land in the Green Area.
The land managers determine which
uses can be accommodated depending
on soil conditions and other relevant
factors. They set conditions for use
and development to ensure public
land is propetly maintained.

If you require
further information,
please contact one
of the following
offices:

Alberta Environmental
Protection

Forest Management Division
9920-108 St.

Edmonton, Alberta

T5K 2M4

Telephone: (403) 427-8441

Aflberta Environmental
Protection

Land Administration Division
0915-108 St.

Edmonton, Alberta

T5K 2G8§

Telephone: (403} 427-3570

Alberta Agriculture, Food and
Rural Development

Public Land Management Branch
].G. O'Donoghue Building
7000-113 St.

Edmonton, Alberta

T6H 5T6

Telephone: (403) 427-3595

OR call the Land and Forest Services
or Public Lands office in your area.




M.D. of Mackenzie No. 23

Request For Decision

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE

Meeting: Committee of the Whole

Meeting Date: February 6, 2001

Originated By: Bill Landiuk, Director of Corporate Services
Title: La Crete Public School Grant

Agenda Item No: 71 2)

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

The MD has received a request in the amount of $150,000 from the La Crete Public
School to modernize in order to increase the space available for the Community Library
housed within the school.

DISCUSSION / OPTIONS / BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:

See attached letter for further details.

COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:

Additional funds would have to be allocated to the 2001 budget to cover this grant. To
offset this increase in expenditures we have the following options:

1. Take the money from general capital reserves.

2. Reuvisit the 2001 budget and reduce an operating or capital expenditure to offset the
increase.

RECOMMENDED ACTION (by originator):

If Council agrees with the request, a Council resolution amending the budget amount
for our 2001 grants would be in order. Also, as part of the resolution, a funding option
will have to be determined. If option #1 is acceptable, the resolution can be made
immediately. If Council wishes to pursue option #2, then the resolution will be deferred
until a review can be undertaken.

Review: % Dept. C.A.O.

49







JAN-289-~81 13:14 FROM:LA CRETE PUBLIC SCHOOL ID: 17885283000 PAGE 171
- La Crete Publle Scheol
AU -BOX 1720 . - Pnnclpa.l Mrs Kath:ynKlrby -
L .LaCnele,Albma . .‘ L . VioePnnclpal Mr. Robert Young,
TOH ZHO - S : Secretary MrsL.-.naMamns
B
LT N\MQO\ L@M%@ %\\\\\»m%
Bill Neufeld, Resve =~ - o San: LO\ O\
Muynicipal District ofMacKcnmc ', . . Q"LQ
~ Box 640 - : ) s
- Fort-Vetmilion, AR
-TOHINO o
- _'Dsaer Neufeld

. 'I arm, wn’ang 10 request thatthe Mumcipal District eonm'ane funds to the piannod
modetnization at La Crete Public School in order to increase 'thGSpaGc available for thc '
Cpmmumty Library housed within La Crctc Pubhc School. , .

,Ihe cm-mnt plan for the modm:mmuon at La Crcta Pubhc School mcludes an area of 225
squaze faeters for & libmy This is only slightly larger than the existing library. Ideally, .
. we wonld like to-sce the.size of the library increased in order. to accommodate ... . :
7 community needs over tha. commg years. ‘Soine siggestions that have come forward have
Q . “bgen fo include 2 desxcnatcd rcs,dmg area or a solaritim fo enhande the library. Cmrently, .
' .the dvailable space is nsed primarily t6 housc hbra:y matcnals Rcadmg Spa.ce is lmted
. evemin the exxstmg I1brary ) .

o Alberta Lcmmng p;owdcs fundmg for modcmlzgtxons based on the capamty ratmg and
. the educauomltprogrammmg of thé.school. -Alberta Learning also provides ongoing
. financial support for maintenance of buildings. . In'ordér to. provide an improved facility :
for the Community Libriry, we need totunr1o the Municipal District for finding. Tam . -
;" Tequesting that the Municipal District:contribute$150,000 to the modernization ofthe, . .’
- librafy at La Crete Public.School to provide an addmonal arca’of s appmmmaicly,’?’j +
Vo squam meters to accommodate anuclpated Tuture. needs of the Commumty Library and to

snhance the faczhty If this request is granted, the Gommumty Library will be - L
responsible for yearly funding for maintenance of thz SquAre footage added‘to thc

' .bmldm,, g with Municipal Dlsinct.ﬁmds
T ;'Thgnkjr'o'u in 'advancc for cons1denng th;s xcqucstto Impmvc the Commumty beraxy m : .-_ o
"LgCrete S
' PR ' M’502001 -

X nl;!UNIc:wAL DisTaicT -
. “Success starts with you” T Fem( iEﬁiiiIElEm‘iﬁ__

S E



@

@

O



02/01/2001 08:39 FAX 780 926 2899 TOWN OF HIGH LEVEL @oo2

M.D. of Mackenzie No. 23
Request For Decision
Meeting: Committee of the Whole
Meeting Date: February 6, 2001
Originated By: Director of Enforcement Services Sheldon ROBB
Title: Police Task Force Updates & Recommendations
Agenda Item: S Ly

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

On January 15, 2001 the Police Task Force met in Fort Vermilion. The meeting was
chaired by Chief Administration Officer Harvey Prockiw, and attended by Frank
Rosenberger, Pat Kulscar, Betty Bateman, John Driedger, C/Cst. Sheldon Robb, Cst.
Ronald Dyck, and Cst. Jason Gabriel. Chief Constable S.H. ROBB then conducted a
presentation outlining the job functions of the Mackenzie Regional Patrol. Topics of
discussion included changing school zone times from the Provincial standard time limits
to time limits set by the MD through Bylaw, expanded authority for the MD Special
Constables for giving “alco-sur” demands, Citizens on Patrol (C.O.P.’s) programs for the
MD, and lending Live Traps to the public for assistance in dog control in the hamlets.

DISCUSSION / OPTIONS / BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES

Item 1 — School Zone Time Limits — Currently the school time speed limit in the school
zones within the MD fall within the Provincial standard times of 8:00 am. — 9:30 a.m.,,
11:30 a.m. — 1:30 p.m., and 3:00 p.m.- 4:30 p.m. These times may be changed by the
municipality by bylaw pursuant to section 72(7) of the Highway Traffic Act. Current
school zone times do not cover recess times and an all day speed limit should be easier to
remember for motorists. A good time span to set for school zones would be from 8:00
a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Section 3 of Bylaw 168/99 could be amended to allow for new school
zone times.

Item 2 — Expanded Authority for MD Special Constables for Giving “Alco-sur”
Demands — To help the MD Special Constables determine a motorists impairment from
alcohol the use of an approved screening devise (alco-sur) would not only be a benefit to
the Special Constable and public, but also maybe even beneficial the motorist in question.
To get approval for expanded authority for special constables to demand a roadside
breath demand the following criteria must be met:

53

ey o _——— e



UL/UL/£LUUL UO9Q¥ PAA 10V J4U L0DD AUTIIY UL ARANTAL Al Y avas

-

1) The municipality must identify a specific community law enforcement need that
can be addressed by expanded authority. The local RCMP detachment must
support the application for expanded authority.

2) The municipality and RCMP must develop a written working arrangement or
protocol. This agreement will specify the responsibilities of each party.

3) The draft protocol agreement must be reviewed by the Public Security Division
and the Officer in Charge Contract Policing Branch, RCMP “K Division prior to
signature.

4) The municipality must formally approve the special constables expanded
authority in a Bylaw. The substance of the Bylaw should be submitted to the
Public Security Division for review before it is put to Council.

5) The written protocols must be signed by the municipality and RCMP “K”
Division. _

6) The special constables must have specific Criminal Code training from a police
training facility before expanded authority will be granted.

7 The signed protocols, bylaw and other supporting documents must be submitted
to the Public Security Division.

8) When all steps have been completed, the Public Security Division will revise the
employer authorization and the special constable appointment.

9) . Special “approved screening devise” training is also required.

Advantages of the “expanded authority” for demanding a roadside breath demand are that
the MD special constables may deal with impaired drivers without having to tie up a
RCMP Officer. The RCMP may be busy dealing with a higher priority Criminal Code
manner and may not be able to attend. The area may be quite remote and it may by some
time for the RCMP to attend to deal with situation. Being able to give a breath demand at
roadside the special constable would be able to determine if an arrest is necessary, or if a
24 hour suspension would be sufficient to be able to determine to let the motorist
continue on his way as he as passed the roadside breath sample test. No disadvantages
are noted.

Item 3 — Citizens on Patrol — The Police Task Force discussed the feasibility of
developing a Citizens on Patrol program throughout the communities of the MD.
Citizens on Patrol are normal citizens who patrol the community in unmarked vehicles
and become the eyes and ears for the police and will relay to the police any suspicious
activity.

Item 4 — Lending of Animal Live Traps — For information purposes only. The Bylaw
Department will be purchasing two more live traps and make them available to the public
to assist in dog control problems within the hamlets. Information to the public will be
presented in a future edition of the MD “Image”.

COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:

Item 1 — School Zone Sign Changes — There would be a new cost in getting new signs
for the different school zone time change (mandatory if times are changed).

FEB @1 2081 ©8:48 34 780 926 2899 PAGE. @3



02/01/2001 U¥:4U0 FAA Y8U YZb6 Z¥Yy TUWN UF HiGH LEYEL igjuua

S

Item 2 — Expanded Authority — Costs of an “alco-sur” is approximately $800.00 for one
unit.

Item 3 — Citizens on Patrol — No identified costs

Item 4 — Animal Live Traps — Costs for one live trap is approximately $200.00.

RECOMMENDED ACTION (by Police Task Force): Zl

Item 1 — School Zone Time Limit Change — It is the recommendation by the Police 1/© o
Task Force that the MD amendment School Zone Bylaw 168/99 to have the school zone W
time limits changed to all day in which school is held (example 8:00 am. to 5 p.m.)

Item 2 — Expanded Authority for MD Special Constables for Giving “Alco-sur”
Demands — The Police Task Force recommends that Council support the request for the
MD special constables continue on to obtain expanded authority for impaired driving.

Item 3 — Citizens on Patrol — The Police Task Force recommends that Council support
administration to determine if there is interest from the public to support a Citizens on
Patrol Program in MD communities.

Item 4 — Lending of Animal live Traps — For information only.

Review: Cst. Robb Dept.: Bylaw CAOQO::
CCO A4 2004 0@ AOQ E’ 5

Paom Onc "0o0a DArC QAA






M.D. of Mackenzie No. 23

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENIIE Request For Decision
Meeting: Committee of the Whole
Meeting Date: February 6, 2001
Originated By: Ivan Perich, Director of Operational Services
Title: Traffic Safety Act

Agenda Item No: é Eetinn

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

The information asked for on the discussion papers is being requested by the Province.
Information gathered from these discussion papers is intended to be used for data in
drafting regulations on the Highway Traffic Act, Motor Vehicle Administration Act, Motor
Transport Act, and the Off-Highway Vehicle Act.

DISCUSSION / OPTIONS / BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:

N/A

COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

RECOMMENDED ACTION (by originator):

The Information be read through and ready for discussion at the Council Meeting on
February 6, 2001. lvan Perich will compile the data received, at the Council Meeting, to
send to the province.

A
Review: Dept. C.A.O. (%X)
X

5






\.‘, v

Alborrci G ’T...n..

{INFRASTRUCTURE ' ‘SAPETY STARTS WITH YOUT

Transportation Safety Services : 1st Fir., Twin Atria Bldg. Telephone 403/415-1146
. 4999 - 98 Avenue Fax 403/415-0782
Edmonton, Alberta TEB 2X3 E-mail: Ghook@tu.gov.ab.ca

@

O,

‘January 10™, 2001

QOur F_ile: 0120-Safe

Dear Stakeholder:

As you are aware, the Traffic Safety Act received F{oyél Assent during the Spring
1999 Session of the Alberta Legislature. We very much-appreciate the input we
received. However, the Act still requires proclamation before coming into force.

Alberta Infrastructure is now in the process of developing a number of regulations to

support this new Act. Attached is the fourth in a series of discussion papers that we

intend to use to gather input for drafting the regulations. This discussion paper deals
with Commercial Vehicle General Equipment and Safety Regulations.

Please return your comments by February 10™, 2001 to Transportation Safety

. “Services Division at the 1% Floor, Twin Atria Building, 4999 — 98 Avenue, Edmonton,
AB T6B 2X3. You may also submit your comments by fax at (780) 415-6572 or by

e-mail (ron.smitten@gov.ab.ca).

Yours sincerely

C

Gre  Hook
Chairman, Transportation Safety Board/
Responsible for Transportation Safety Services

. Pat & Printed on Recycied Paper



Albera

* INFRASTRUCTURE

Think

SAFETY STARTS WITH YOUT

Transportation Safety Sérvices

Dear Stakeholder:

1st Fir., Twin Atria Bldg.
4999 - 98 Avenue
Edmonton, Alberta T6B 2X3

January 10™, 2001

~ QurFile: 0120-Safe

Telephone 403/415-1146

. Fax 403/415-0782
- E-mail: Ghook@tu.gov.ab.ca

As you are aware, the Traffic Safety Act received Royal Assent during the Spring
1999 Session of the Alberta Legislature. We very much appreciate the input we
received. However, the Act stili requires proclamation before coming into force.

Alberta Infrastructure is now in the process of developing a number of regulations to
support this new Act. Attached is the fifth in a series of discussion papers that we

intend to use to gather input for drafting the regul
with the operation of Off-Highway Vehicles.

ations. This discussion paper deals

Please return your comments by February 10", 2001 to Transportation Safety
Services Division at the 1% Floor, Twin Atria Building; 4999 — 98 Avenue, Edmonton,
AB T6B 2X3. You may also submit your comments by fax at (780) 415-6572 or by

e-mail (ron.smitten@gov.ab.ca).

Yours sincerely

regg A-oo

Chairman, Transportation Safety Board/
Responsible for Transportation Safety Services

50

& Printed on Recycled Paper

)

O



O

Traffic Safety Act

Commercial Vehicle General Equipment and Safety Regulations

-Discussion Paper #4

January 2001

&1

 Abena

INFRASTRUCTURE



s,

Introductiﬁn - ( )

The new Traffic Safety Act received Royal Assent during the spring 1999 Session of the
Legislative Assembly of Alberta. The Act awaits proclamation before coming into full effect.

“The Traffic Safety Act is the amalgamation of four Acts: the Highway Traffic Act, Motor
Vehicle Administration Act, Motor Transport Act and Off-Highway Vehicle Act. The new Act
is a comprehensive, streamlined piece of legislation. This consolidated approach to road safety
will provide a clearer source of information for traffic legislation than is currently in place.

A preliminary discussion paper on the Traffic Safety Act was teleased to stakeholders for
comment in the fall of 1997. Another, more comprehensive, discussion paper was circulated to
the public during the summer of 1998. The public was consuited extensively during the summer
of 1998 prior to the introduction of the proposed legislation.

The new Traffic Safety Act was introduced during the 1998 Fall Session of the Alberta
Legislature, for information purposes only. It was then revised to address comments received
from the public and stakeholders, and reintroduced during the 1999 Spring Session for debate.

Several portions of the four current Acts will be converted to regulations under the new Traffic

. Safety Act to provide the means to more quickly address concerns. For example, rules of the

road and vehicle equipment provisions will be moved into regulations to allow for more timely

response to the changing needs of Albertans. S . (‘)

The issues in this discussion paper relate to commercial vehicle general equipment and safety.
" Once Alberta Infrastructure compiles all input, the draft regulations will be prepared for the
government’s approval. The new regulations will come into effect when the Traffic Safety Act

is proclaimed.

Commercial vehicle General Equipment and Safety Regulations are an integral part of ensuring
traffic safety. Other discussion papers included issues relating to rules of the road, vehicle
safety, licensing, and off-highway vehicles.

January 2001  Commercial Vehicles General Equipment and Safety Discussion Paper 2 ( )

62



General Commercial Vehicle Equipment and Safety

Proper equipment for the operation of commercial vehicles is critical for the safety of everyone
using highways. Commercial vehicles pick-up and deliver a variety of materials to our
consumers, merchants, and industrial establishments. As a result, ensuring proper equipment for
the safe operation of these vehicles is a primary concern.

There is a steady increase in the commercial traffic between Alberta, other provinces, the United
States and Mexico. In view of this general trend, provincial jurisdictions in Canada and state
jurisdictions in the United States are harmonizing internal regulations towards a North American
standard. For instance these jurisdictions, in cooperation with the commercial vehicle industry,
have developed a cargo securement standard. The Commercial Vehicle General Equipment and
Safety Regulation is part of this legislative framework. .

It is necessary to have planned maintenance, including inspections at specified intervals, to
ensure the safe operation of commercial vehicles. In-addition, documentation of planned and
actual maintenance is necessary to determine effectiveness and to review equipment failures.
Consequently, the proposed regulations suggest improvements to the present maintenance
requirements. '

Safe operation of school buses is also a critical issue. Improvements to the existing regulations
-are proposed in this discussion paper.

Issue 1.0 :
It has been proposed that commercial vehicles must remain unaltered after original manufacture

to comply with Transport Canada’s Canadian Motor Vehicle Safety Act and its regulations. It is
also proposed that if a vehicle is altered in any way, that vehicle must be certified by a
professional engineer or by a final stage manufacturer registered with Transport Canada.

Vehicles manufactured in Canada and those imported into Canada must meet Transport Canada’s
vehicle construction and safety legislation. :

This issue primarily relates to homemade trailers, incomplete vehicles assembled by non-
registered final stage manufacturers and vehicles modified by owners after delivery. It also
relates to some of the highway tractors converted to straight trucks without front brakes. These
highway tractors were originally manufactured without front brakes to be operated as tractor-
trailer combinations. The issue of alteration may further relate to some stretch limousines and
trucks with off-highway rims. -

January 2001  Commercial Vehicles General Equipment and Safety Discussion Paper 3

63



Do you agree that an owner, after purchasing a vehicle, must not modify that vehicle in order to
remain in compliance?

o Agree &~ Disagree -0 No opinion

Comments:

Issue 2.0 ' ‘ o
It has been proposed that all commercial trailer wheels must be equipped with brakes, in order to

ensure optimum braking performance on commercial trailers.

Current legislation requires all new trailers sold in Alberta by a dealer to comply with Transport
Canada’s construction standards. ‘As a result, the proposal relates to “home built” trailers, which
_ may be equipped with brakes only on one axle. ‘

All commercial trailer manufacturers in Alberta would be required to comply with this
requirement after the proclamation of the Traffic Safety Act.

Do you support the proposal to have all commercial trailers equipped with brakes on all wheels?
o Agree Q/ Disagree 0 No opinion

Comments;

Issue 2.1
It has been proposed that all commercial trucks must be equipped with front brakes. -

Transport Canada has always required straight trucks (self-contained units like gravel trucks) to-
have front brakes. In the mid-1980’s, however, Transport Canada allowed tractor trucks to be
manufactured without front brakes since trailers were fitted with brakes and there was enough
"braking capacity for stopping the tractor and trailer. Many such tractors are being converted and

used as straight trucks.

January 2001  Commercial Vehicles General Equipment and Safety Discussion Paper 4

64

@

e

o)



»

Do you agree with the proposal that all stralght trucks without front brakes must be fitted with
front brakes"

O Agree d/ Disagree a No opinion

Comments:

Issue 2.2
It has been proposed that commercial vehicles manufactured with automatic slack adjusters must

remain equipped with automatic slack adjusters and not be replaced by manual adjusters.

Since May 31, 1996, Transport Canada requires automatic slack adjusters for vehicles equipped -

with air brake systems. Under normal operating condmons this will maintain proper adjustment

of the air brake systems.

Do you support the mandatory retention of automatic slack adJusters for vehicles originally
equipped with them?

o Agree o Disagree o No opinion

Comments:

Issue 2.3
It has been proposed that commercial vehicles manufactured with anti-lock brake systems (ABS)
must have the system maintained for uninterrupted operation. '

Since April 1, 2000, Transport Canada’s vehicle construction and safety standards require
vehicles to have antilock braking systcms.

Do you agree with the proposal to require vehicle owners to maintain ABS in proper opcratlonal
condition, if the vehicle was originally equipped with ABS?

O Agree 0)/ Disagree a No opinion

January 2001  Commercial Vehicles General Equipmenf and Safety Discussion Paper 5

- G5



Comments:

Issue 3.0 ,
It has been proposed that all commercial vehicles must have a final compliance label and

National Safety Mark (NSM).

Current legislation requires all new vehicles sold in Alberta to have final compliance labels and
NSM. However, commercial vehicles built by a person for own use normally do not have such
certification. Transport Canada cannot enforce their regulation unless these vehicles travel
across provincial borders. :

Do you agree with a mandatory compliance label and NSM mark for all commercial vehicles?

o Agree n)/ Disagree . a No opinion

Comments:

Issue 4.0
It is proposed that all motor carriers must be required to have an effective written maintenance

and inspection program and they must be required to implement it. This is currently required of
commercial trucking companies and motor coaches, but not commercial buses and school buses.

Do you agree with the proposal to define the requirements of a maintenance and inspection
program for all motor carriers in the Commercial Vehicle General Equipment and Safety

Regulation?

o Agree _ & Disagree o No opinion

Comments:
January 2001 Commercial Vehicles"(}enera_l Equipment and Safety Discussion Papei' 6 (J



U

Issue 4.1

Although current legislation requires pre and post trip inspections of commercial vehicles by the
driver, there is no regulatory requirement to document these inspections. NSC (National Safety
Code) for commercial vehicles provides written criteria for inspections, requires inspections
every 24 hours, and specifies retention of inspection documents for a 3-month period.

Do you agree with a mandatory requirement to document and retain trip mspecnons of
commercial vehicles?

o Agree @~ Disagree o No opinion

Comments:

Issue 5.0
It is proposed that commercial vehicles must carry advance warning triangles.

Current legislation allows commercial vehicles to use flags, flares or advance warning triangles.
Flares can only be used for short periods and they need to be replaced after use. The majority of
industry is now using triangles in view of their effectiveness.

Do you agree with the proposal to have commercial vehicles use advance warning triangles
only? '

o Agree ' a Disagree o No opinion

Comments:

Issue 6.0
It is proposed that only school buses compliant with CSA D250 Standard be used for

transporting children to and from school.

School buses sold in Alberta must meet the CSA D250 standard at the time of their manufacture
and they must be maintained to that standard. The CSA D250 Standard is designed and updated
to meet the specific requirements for the operation of school buses in Canada. Mamtenance
programs must ensure uninterrupted compliance with the standard.

January 2001 Commercial Vehicles General Equipment and Safety Discussion Paper

g



Jurisdictions in the US do not permit the use of passenger vans to transport school children.
Canadian jurisdictions are also considering similar restrictions. It is estimated that school buses

are 16 times safer than regular passenger vehicles to carry school children. ( )

Do you agree that children should be transported to and from school only on CSA D250
Standard compliant schoo] buses? .

o Agree o Disagree : o No opinion -

Comments;

Issue 6.1
tis pr0posed that only school buses compliant with CSA D250 Standard be permitted to display

school bus signs.
This is the only way to prohibit the display of school bus signs on non-compliant vehicles.

Do you agree that the display of school bus signs be allowed only on vehicles that comply with
the CSA D250 standard for school buses?

O

a Agree . o Disagree o No opinion

Comments:

Issue 6.2
It is proposed that advertising not be permitted on  school buses.

The colour and the design of school buses are specifically chosen to improve the visibility of a
vehicle as a school bus. This increases the safety of school buses whether they are moving or
stopped. Advertisements, however, are designed to attract attention to their design and content.
This could have the effect of diverting the focus of drivers away from the school bus itself.

January 2001 Commercial Vehicles General Equipment and Safety Discussion Paper 8 Q)

68



Do you agree with the prohibition of advertising on school buses?
® Agree ' o Disagree a No opinion

Comments:

Issue 7.0 ' :
It is proposed that the axles of a commercial vehicle be temporarily lifted only when it is being
towed due to equipment failure. Also, the following three conditions are proposed for towing a
commercial vehicle with the axle lifted. ‘
i. The axle be secured with a chain. _
ii. The chain and attachments be of sufficient strength for securely holding the axle of the
vehicle in tow.

iii. The entire axle be lifted so that all wheel sets attached to the axle are off the ground

~ while the vehicle is in tow. _
The proposal outlines a critical safety requirement to prevent slippage or collapse of lifted axles
of vehicles in tow. The proposal also prevents the unsafe operation of a commercial vehicle with
one set of wheels on the ground and the other side with a wheel failure lifted.

This proposal does not include custorn-built lift axles.

Do you agree with the proposed conditions for lifting the axles of a commercial vehicie in tow.

®” Agree | @ Disagree o No opinion
Comments; .
January 2001 Commercial Vehicles General Equipment and Safety Discussion Paper 9

Ga



Please include any additional issues you think we may have missed, along with your "
suggestions for resolving them. ( )

Issue:

Background:

o

Recommendation:

January 2001 Commercial Vehicles General Equipment and Safety Discussion Paper 10 () _

70



Issue:
Background:
Recommendation:
O
January 2001 Commercial Vehicles General Equjpment and Safety Discussion Paper 11

71



o

Follow-up Information

To help Alberta Infrastructure analyze responses to this document, we would appreciate the
following information: '

Are you responding on behalf of a business, industry group or municipal organization?

o Yes ' a No

If yes, p]e.as',e give the name of the organization:

Phone Number:

Fax Number:

If no, please give your name

Phone Number:

January 2001 Commercial Vehicles General Equif)ment and Safety Discussion Paper 12 Q ) :

@
Fax Number: | k

This information will be used only for the purpose of mailing discussion papers on the Traffic
Safety Act regulations. By providing your mailing address you will be assured of receiving all
future discussion papers ' '

Thank. you for providing your opinions and ideas on this discussion paper.
Rorn Smitten

Transportation Safety Services
1st Floor, Twin Atria Building

4999 - 98 Avenue ‘ Fax Number: (780) 415-6572
Edmonton, Alberta : Phone Number: (780) 415-0677

T6B2X3 : : Email: ron.smitten@gov.ab.ca

You can view this document on Alberta Infrastructure’s homepage and provide electronic
response: http: //www.tu.ab.ca// '




-

-

\CiPAL DISTRIC

O%USAGKENZ\E NO. 23
MD. - LA CRETE

-Traffic Safety Act

Off-Highway Vehicles Regulations
Discussion Paper #5

January 2001

Abena

INFRASTRUCTURE



Introduction

The new Traffic Safety Act received Royal Assent during the spring 1999 Session of the
Legislative Assembly of Alberta. The Act awaits proclamation before coming into full
effect.

The Traffic Safety Act is the amalgamation of four Acts: the Highway Traffic Act, Motor
Vehicle Administration Act, Motor Transport Act and Off-Highway Vehicle Act. The
new Act is a comprehensive, streamlined piece of legislation. This consolidated
approach to road safety will provide a clearer source of information for traffic legislation
than is currently in place. '

A preliminary discussion paper on the Traffic Safety Act was released to stakeholders for
comment in the fall of 1997. Another, more comprehensive, discussion paper was
circulated to the public during the summer of 1998, The public was consulted
extensively during the summer of 1998 prior to the introduction of the proposed

" legislation.

The new Traffic Safety Act was introduced during the 1998 Fall Session of the Alberta
Legislature, for information purposes only. It was then revised to address comments
received from the public and stakeholders, and reintroduced during the 1999 Spring
Session for debate. :

Several portions of the four current Acts will be converted to regulations under the new
Traffic Safety Act to provide the means to more quickly address concerns. For example,
rules of the road and vehicle equipment provisions will be moved into regulations to
allow for a faster response to the changing needs of Albertans.

The issues in this discussion paper relate to off-highway vehicles. Once Alberta
Infrastructure compiles all input, the draft regulations will be prepared for the
government’s approval. The new regulations will come into effect when the new Traffic
Safety Act is proclaimed.

January 2001 Off-Highway Vehicles Discussion Paper 2

74

O

Q)

O



Off-Highway Vehicles

Off-highway vehicles are not constructed for operation on public roadways. These are
any motorized vehicles designated for use on land, water, snow, ice, marsh or
swampland, or artificial terrain. Off-highway vehicles include 4-wheel drive vehicles,
low pressure tire vehicles, amphibious crafts, all terrain vehicles, snowmobiles or other
vehicles for use over snow and ice, miniature motor vehicles, dirt bikes, mini-bikes and
other 2-wheel vehicles. '

Off-highway vehicles are not permitted to operate on public roadways unless the road
authority provides special authorization. However, they can be operated on public lands,
subject to licensing, insurance requirements, and equipment requirements.

A separate set of regu]atidns will govern the use of off-highway vehicles and related
requirements. ' :

Issue 1

It has been proposed that Alberta replace the current license plates and renewal system
with a registration and renewal system using decals. ‘

At present, all off-highway vehicles require a license plate for their operation on public
lands. However, the license plates are often not attached properly and mud or snow tends
to cover them. '

Do you agree with the proposal to implement a registration decal system instead of the
current license plates? : -

w” Agree o Disagree o No opinion

Comments:_

Issue 2 :
It has been proposed that “dirt bikes” used on public lands in the daytime should not be
required to have headlights or tail lamps. ' T

January 2001 Off-Highway Vehicles Discussion Paper 3

e



Currently all off-highway vehicles operated on public lands are required to have proper
lighting. Operators of off road motorcycles, commonly known as “dirt bikes,” have
suggested that these bikes are used in specific areas, over rough terrain and during
daylight hours. '

Do you agree with the proposai to have no lighting requirements for dirt bikes during
daytime?

Lz( Agree @ Disagree S a No opinion

" Comments:_.

Issue 3 | : ' _ :
It has been proposed that passengers be allowed to remain on off-highway vehicles while

they cross highways.

Currently all passengers must disembark from an off-highway vehicle and any vehicle or
thing attached to it before an operator takes it across a highway. It has been suggested
that it is safer and more practical to have passengers remain‘in or on the vehicle.

Do you agree with t'he'proposal that passengers should be allowed to remain in or on off-
highway vehicles while they cross highways?

@ Agree : o Disagree - a No opinion

Comments;

Issue 4 .
It has been proposed that operators and passengers of off-highway vehicles must be

required to wear certified helmets.

At present, helmets are not mandatory when operating or riding off-highway vehicles.
Through their campaigns, the Alberta Snowmobile Association and “dirt bike” clubs have
successfully shown the benefits of wearing proper riding equipment, including helmets.
There is a high rate of helmet usage among the members of these organizations. ” '

January 2001 Off-Highway Vehicles Discussion Paper ‘4

- 78

O



However, rate of helmet usage is very low among those involved in riding quads and all
terrain vehicles. ' .

Do you agree with the proposal for a mandatory requirement for hclmets for passengers
and operators of off-highway vehicles?

o Agree . a Disagree ~ @ No opinion

Comments: 6@? foveregnd  And  UnDEX

Issue 5

Current regulation does not allow any person under 14 ycars of age to operate an off-
highway vehicle on public lands. An exception to this requirement is allowed only if an
adult supervises the person under 14 either by being seated next in the vehicle, or

_ instructs the person by staying in close proximity to the vehicle. However, the vehicle is
not permitted to be on a highway.

Do you think this exemption should continue for a supervised under-aged driver of an
-off-highway vehicle?

o~ Yes o No

Comments;

Issue 5.1
If you think there should be an exemption, what should be the minimum age to operate an
off-highway vehicle on public lands?

‘Comments:

January 2001 ~ Off-Highway Vehicles Discussion Paper 5
77



Please include any additional issues you think we may have missed, along with your
suggestions for resolving them.

Issue;_

Background:

Recommendation;

January 2001 Off-Highway Vehicles Discussion Paper | 6

78



m Is_sue:

| Background:
Recommendation:
January 2001 Off-Highway Vehicles Discussion Paper .

79



Follow-up Information

To help Alberta Infrastructure analyze responses to this document, we would

. appreciate the following information:

Are you responding on behalf of a business, industry group or municipal organization?
-a Yes ‘s No

If jIes, please give the name of the organization:

Phone Number:

Fax, Number:

If no, please give your name

Phone Nﬁmber:

Fax Number:

This information will be used only for the purpose of mailing discussion papers on the
Traffic Safety Act regulations. By providing your mailing address you will be assured of
receiving all future discussion papers

Thank you for providing your opinions and ideas on this discussion paper.
Ron Smitten

Transportation Safety Services
Ist Floor, Twin Atria Building

4999 - 98 Avenue | Fax Number: (780) 415-6572
Edmonton, Alberta Phone Number: (780) 415-0677
T6B 2X3 , Email: ron.smitten@gov.ab.ca

You can view this document on Alberta Infrastructure’s homepage and provide electronic

response: hitp: /fwww .tu.ab.ca//’

January 2001 Off-Highway Vehicles Discussion Paper 8

50

O



MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23

COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, February 6, 2001

1:00 p.m.

Fort Vermilion School Division

CALL TO ORDER: 1. a)

AGENDA: 7, a)
b)

ADOPTION OF

THE PREVIOUS

MINUTES: 3) a)
b)

BUSINESS ARISING

OUT OF THE

MINUTES 4, a)
b)
c)

PUBLIC

HEARINGS: 5. a)
b)
c)

COUNCIL

COMMITTEE AND

Fort Vermilion, Alberta

AGENDA

Call to Order
1:00 p.m.

Items to Add or Delete from the Agenda
1:00 — 1:03 p.m.

Adoption of Agenda
1:03 to 1:05 p.m.

Minutes of the January 23, 2001
Committee of the Whole Meeting
1:05 to 1:08 p.m.

Minutes of the January 23, 2001
Regular Council Meeting
1:08 to 1:11 p.m.

Page

Page

Page

Page

Page

Page
Page

Page

Page
Page

Page

71|






MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

Tuesday, February 6, 2001

Fort Vermilion School Division

PAGE 2
CAO REPORTS: 6. a) Council Committee Reports Page
1:15 to 1:25 p.m.
b) CAO Report Page 22
1:25 to 1:30 p.m.
c) Page
d) Page
€) Page
PLANNING AND
EMERGENCY
SERVICES: 7 a) Land Use Bylaw Amendment (Bylaw 242/01)
Plan 1878TR, Lot B in the Hamlet of La Crete
Hamlet Commercial-Residential Transitional
District “HCRT” to Hamlet Residential
District 1 “HR-1” Page 7
b) # I,..ng M /.{_é /_//Cs _/)4777’ (‘C—'/\/;'fg Page
c) Page
PROTECTIVE
SERVICES: 8. a) Page
b) Page
d) Page
UTILITY
SERVICES: 9. a) Removal of Coin Machine From Water Plants Page 84S
b)  CRTC Ruling on Municipal Rights of Way ~ Page ‘7]
c) Page
d) Page
AGRICULTURAL
SERVICES: 10. a) Page
b) Page

Qo






MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
Tuesday, February 6, 2001

Fort Vermilion School Division
PAGE 3

CORPORATE
SERVICES: il
OPERATIONAL
SERVICES: 12.
IN CAMERA
SESSIONS: 112},

ADJOURNMENT: 11.

The Business Link, a joint initiative of the
Government of Canada, the Government of
Alberta, and Economic Development
Edmonton

Northern Neighbours, Southern Friends

Resolution of First Nations Task Force

Resolution of Lodge Requisition

Traffic Safety Act (see C of W 6 a)

Adjournment

|

g )

Page

Page Sl
Page ST
Page (o|
Page (,5’
Page
Page

Page

Page 5.7 Cof W
Page
Page

Page

Page
Page

Page












U

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

ALSO PRESENT:

CALL TO ORDER:|

ADOPTION OF
AGENDA:

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

~ Council Chambers, Mustus Lake Centre
La Crete, Alberta

Tuesday, Janhary 23, 2001

Bili Neufeld Reeve

Frank Rosenberger Deputy Reeve
Betty Bateman Councillor
John Driedger Councillor

Pat Kulscar Councillor
Joe Peters Councillor
Walter Sarapuk Councillor
Wayne Thiessen Councillor
Willie Wieler Councilior
Greg Newman ~ Councillor

Harvey Prockiw Chief Administrative Officer

Eva Schmidt Executive Assistant

Paul Driedger Director of Planning and Emergency Services
Floyd Lafferty Lead Hand

Twila Olson Public Works Administration Officer

Minutes of the Committee of the Whole meeting for the Municipal
District of Mackenzie No. 23, held on Tuesday, January 23, 2001, in
the Council Chambers of the Mustus Lake Centre, La Crete,
Alberta.

1. a) Call to Order

Reeve Neufeld called the meeting to order at 4:02 p.m.

2. a) Adoption of Agenda——

The foliowing additions were made to the agenda:




MOTION 01-030

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING
JANUARY 23, 2000

PAGE 2

3i)  Director of Corporate Service Report (U
6a) Regional Landfill

MOVED by Coungillor Kulscar

That the agenda be adopted as amended.

CARRIED

Items 5b) and 9b) were movéd io the beginning of the agenda. |

Reeve Neufeldturnedthe Charoverto Counecitlor-Newrman.

TRANSPORTATION

SERVICES:
(Gouncillor Newma

5. b) La Crete Ice Bridge Operations — Delegation

n)
Reeve Neufeld welcomed John Engleder and Bill Gish from Alberia
Infrastructure and Brad Papirny from La Prairie Group Contractors,
to the meeting at 4:05 p.m.

Bill Gish addressed the timeliness of constructing the ice bridge this ( )
year stating that the ice at Tompkins stopped moving on December
14 and construction of the ice bridge commenced on December 19,

2000. Safety is a priority with Alberta Infrastructure and therefore

they do not want to rush the contractor.

Brad Papirny reported that the weather turned warmer once they
were able to get onto the ice. On December 21 they chopped a
path through and did some fiooding. December 22 they flooded
from bank to bank and on December 23 the ice bridge was dragged
~and fiooded. On December 22 there was an area that had only 2
inches of ice. Thin areas were flooded again on December 24.
There was no construction on December 25, 26 and 27, 2000 due
to the Christmas holidays. The ice froze up very rough this winter.
Beginning of January equipment was taken onto the ice. The flood
water was not freezing through overnight. They were hampered by
insufficient snow and warm temperatures. There is a problem at a
test hole 350 meters from the west bank which is still at only 32
inches. The goal was to have the ice bridge open to full tonnage at
the end of this week. As well, the river dropped on December 23.
In the winter of 1995/96 the ice bridge was not open for full tonnage
until the first weekend in February. —

10




O

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MAGKENZIE NQ. 23
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING
JANUARY 23, 2000

PAGE 3

Councillor Wieler asked that public input be allowed.
Reeve Neufeld opened the floor to the public.

Reeve Neufeld pointed out that there may be too much salt spread
on the roads going down tothe river. Mr. Papirny stated that they

have been cutting back on the salt but it is a facior.

Councillor Wieler informed that delay in ice bridge construction is
costing the local mills hundreds of thousands of dollars. The mills
have offered to help La Prairie Group Contractors get the ice bridge
constructed. Mr. Papirny answered that La Prairie Group
Contractors would like to accept extra help but cannot risk having
people work on the construction because of litigation purposes.

A member of the public asked if Alberta infrastructure could develop
a dependable tonnage signage system. The signage is so
conservative that people ignore them which poses a hazard. Bill
Gish answered that ice thickness standards are conservative
however Alberta Infrastructure has to make sure the ice is
absolutely safe.

A member of the public stated that Alberta Infrastructure was not
working with the weather when constructing the ice bridge, they
have to take advantage when the weather was cold. Mr. Papirny
answered that they have to make sure the Iow areas freeze prior to
flooding again.

A comment was made that during ice bridge construction the
Contractor should be working 24 hours a day when the weather is
cold. Mr. Papirny stated that temperatures during the last week

 before Christmas were in the minus 20’s and 30’s degrees Celsius,

the flood water was not freezing through by morning.

Councillor Wieler asked Alberta Infrastructure if they would consider
opening bids up to more than one contractor for next year. John
Engleder stated their preference would be to allow La Prairie Group

‘another chance next year.

A public member asked if there is any indication that the low spot is
melting the ice from undemeath. Mr. Papirny stated that is exactly
what is happening.

11



_ MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING
JANUARY 23, 2000
PAGE 4

The public asked if Alberta Infrastructure would consider using a ()
snow machine (ice maker). Mr. Gish stated that snow machines are
too expensive.

Alberta Infrastructure was asked how the contractor is paid. Mr.
Gish answered they are paid as day labor until the ice bridge is
open to light traffic, after that they are paid according to the weight
the ice bridge is open for.

A public member asked if private citizens are allowed to construct
their own ice bridge. Mr. Gish answered that Alberta Infrastructure
can not allow private construction on their right of way but outside of
their right of way they have no jurisdiction.

Alberta Infrastructure asked when they are forecasting full access to
the ice bridge. Mr. Papirny stated maybe by the end of the first
week in February, but that is being optimistic.

Reeve Neufeld thanked the delegation who then left the meeting at
4:44 p.m.

Reeve Neufeld turned the Chair over to Councillor Wieler. ( )

PLANNING AND
DEVELOPMENT: | 9. a) b) Subdivision on SW 35-105-15-W5M
{Councillor Wieler)
Councillor Wieler welcomed Dave Peters to the meeting at 4:45
p.m.

Dave Peters addressed the meeting regarding the difference in
percentage for his RV park between the appraisal done by an

" appraiser he hired and the one done by Compass. Mr. Peters
raised a second concern regarding a 14 x 16 foot cabin he built for
which he had a Development Permit. He felt that he was being
pressured to buy trusses from the city. :

Paul Driedger stated that the building inspector currently inspecting
buildings in the M.D. will contact Mr. Peters to finalize this project.

Harvey Prockiw stated that if the development has been appraised
by a private appraiser the M.D. would probably go with the amounts
forwarded by that appraiser. _

L

fk

e
i



o

PLANNING AND
DEVELOPMENT:
(Councillor Wieler)

ADMINISTRATIVE
COUNCIL,

PERSONNEL.:

{Councillor Kulscar

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING
JANUARY 23, 2000

PAGE 5

Mr. Peters third concern was with the 10% money in lieu that the
M.D. is asking for on his subdivision. He would rather give the M.D.
10% of land which is all water and slough.

This issue will be worked out between administration and Mr.
Peters.

Councillor Wieler thanked Mr. Peters who then left the Council table
at 4:58 p.m.

Reeve Neufeld asked Councillor Wieler to continue with the items
he Chairs.

9. a) Planning and Emergency Services
Director’s Report

The Planning and Emergency Services Director’s report was
received as information.

Paul Driedger reported that Aeromedical now has personnel
stationed in Zama. Communication needs to be put out to the
public as weli as protocol. :

Councillor Wieler turned the Chair over to Reeve Neufeld .

Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 5:02 p.m.

Reeve Neufeld reconvened the meeting at 5:12 p.m.

Reeve Neufeld turned the Chair over to Councillor Kulscar.

3. a) Short Term Interest Free Loan to

Northwest Alberta Resource Society

13



e

-MUNIGIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING
JANUARY 23, 2000 '
PAGE 6

Councillor Kulscar declared a pecuniary interest under section 170 (3
(2}(b) of the Municipal Government Act. Councillor Kulscar turned

the Chair back to Reeve Neufeld and left the meeting room at 5:13

p.m. .

Council discussed the request from Northwest Alberta Resource
Society for a short term interest free loan to assist the Society in the
opening of day care in High Level.

Council invited Pat Kulscar into the Council Chambers to answer
some questions.

Reeve Neufeld asked what the security is on the requested loan.
Pat Kulscar stated that the Society does not hold any assets but
they have a 20 year history in the region and have always paid their
bills.

Ms. Kulscar was asked if this project will benefit the M.D. Pat

Kulscar answered that anyone can access the daycare but they do

not know whether most of their clients would come from the M.D, or

the Town of High Level. Silver Birch and Family Services have

given a verbal approval but they don’t have written approval yet but

is in the final stages. However, Silver Birch has stated that they O
want to work together on this day care.

Ms. Kulscar was asked what the Town of High Level has
contributed to the day care. Pat Kulscar answered that the Town of
High Level has leased a building to Northwest Alberta Resource
Society on a dollar a year lease. Northwest Alberta Resource
Saciety has a three year lease with the option to renew.

Another option is a backstop for a loan guarantee. Pat Kulscar

- stated that she will discuss this with the bank. Council asked if the

Town of High Level would reconsider funding the day care. Pat
Kulscar stated she had not talked to Town administration yet.

Council asked if the day care could be funded by private people.
Pat Kulscar stated that most people who use daycare are
subsidized. Northwest Alberta Resource Society has received
donations from businesses.

Council asked where the money would come from to pay the loan.
Pat Kulscar answered from revenues received from the daycare,
she is fairly confident that Northwest Alberta Resource Society will

®

14



L

MOTION 01-031

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING ‘
JANUARY 23, 2000

PAGE 7

receive funding for early intervention, other grant sources and fund
raising. Northwest Alberta Resource Society could stipulate that
any parent using the day care must help in fund raising.
Renovations were paid with grant money.

This item was deferred to the regular Council meeting agenda for
decision. ' \

Reeve Neufeld turned the Chair over to Councillor Kuiscar.

3. b)  Caribou Mountains Special Places 2000

The response from the Minister of Environment to the Reeve’s
December 8, 2000 letier was received as information.

3. c) Fort Vermilion Metis Association
Request Representation on
Cooperative Management Board

Fort Vermilion Metis Association’s request to the Minister for
representation on the Cooperative Management Board was

received as information.

MOVED by Councillor Rosenberger

That a Special Council meeting to discuss the Memorandum of
Understanding be scheduled for Monday, March 5, 2001.

 CARRIED

3. d) Electric Power Generation Facilities
Linear Property

As part of the electrical deregulation, the government is enacting
changes to the assessment and taxation of electrical power
generation facilities. All electrical power generation facilities will be

defined as linear property for municipal property tax purposes as of
December 31, 2000.

ot
-



MOTION 01-032

'MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING
JANUARY 23, 2000
PAGE 8

3. e) Bill 29 — Protection of Children
Involved in Prostitution Act

Council discussed the amendments to the Protection of Children
Involved in Prostitution Act (Bill 29) which has been passed in
Legislature.

‘3. f) Personal Watercraft Safety

Council accepted the Alberta Association of Municipal Districts and
Counties survey questionnaire on Municipal Regulation of Personal
Watercraft as information.

3. g) AAMD&C Convention Hotel Arrangements

Council completed the AAMD&C survey questionnaire on
Convention Hotel arrangements.

3. h) 2003 Alberta Seniors Games
Town of High Level Response

The Town of High Level has notified the M.D. that they will not
participate in the bid for the 2003 Alberta Seniors Games.

3. 1) Director of Corporate Services Report

MOVED by Councillor Rosenberger

' That the Director of Corporate Services report be received as

information.

CARRIED

Councillor Kulscar turned the Chair back to Reeve Neufeld.

Reeve Neufeld turned the Chair over to Counciilor Bateman.

16

@

o



PROTECTIVE
SERVICES:

TRANSPORTATIO
SERVICES:
(Councillor Newmat

MOTION 01-033

(Councillor Bateman)

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING
JANUARY 23, 2000

PAGE 9

4. a) Special Constables Monthly Report

Council received the Special Constables Monthly Report as
information.

4, b) Crime Statistics - 2000

Council reviewed the crime statistics for 2000 as submitted by
Sergeant Sherstan of the High Level RCMP detachment.

Council asked that Sergeant Sherstan be invited to the March 20,
2001 meeting in High Level.

Councillor Bateman turned the Chair back to Reeve Neufeld.

N
5. a) Operational Services Director’'s Repori
)

MOVED by Councillor Rosenberger

That the Operational Services Director’s report be received as
information.

CARRIED

5. c) Sale of, and Access to Land Sold by
Alberta Public Lands

Administration was requested to draft a policy requesting that
Alberta Public Lands, on behalf of the Municipal District of
Mackenzie No. 23, place a caveat on ail Public Lands advising the
prospective purchases “Prospective purchasers are advised that the
Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 does not automatically
construct roads to newly opened farmlands or newly constructed
residences. As part of their annual Budget review all road requests
are reviewed by Council and priorities are established according to
Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 criteria. In a general sense

17



UTILITY
SERVICES:
(Councitlor Rosenh

RECREATION AN
TOURISM:
(Councillor Sarapu

COMMUNITY
SUPPORT
SERVICES:
(Councillor Sarapu

AGRICULTURE
SERVICES:

(Councillor Thiessen)
Council discussed the merits of implementing a Marketing Plan for
Intensive Livestock QOperations.

PAGE 10

6.
erger)

D
7.

K)

8.
)

10.

a)

a)

a)

a)

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING
JANUARY 23, 2000

private construction of a road on a public road allowance or right of
way is strongly discouraged. Also please note that a person
requesting that a road be built may be asked to contribute part or aII
of the construction costs.”

Reeve Neufeld turned the Chair over to Councillor Rosenberger.

Regional Landfill

Council discussed the merits of establishing a second regionall
landfill.

This item was moved to the regular Council meeting agenda for
decision.

Councillor Rosenberger turned the Chair back to Reeve Neufeld.

There were no items under this heading.

| There were no items under this heading.

Reeve Neufeld turned the Chair over to Councillor Thiessen.

Marketing Plan for Intensive Livestock Operations

18

e

9

@,

»,



ADJOURNMENT:

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING
JANUARY 23, 2000

PAGE 11

This item wiI'I be discussed with the Regional Economic
Development Initiative group when they attend a Council meeting.

The Marketing Plan for Intensive Livestock Operations will be
placed in the M.D. Image and will be discussed at the ratepayers
meeting. :

Councillor Thiessen turned the Chair back to Reeve Neufe}d.

11. a) Adjourn Committee of the Whole Meeting

That the meeting be adjourned at 6:19 p.m.

These minutes were adopted this

day of , 2001.

Bill Neufeld, Reeve Eva Schmidt, Executive Assistant

Approved:

Sandra Cross, Official Administrator



20

@,









AGENDA:

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

ALSO PRESENT:

CALL TO ORDER]

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL

Council Chambers, Mustus Lake Centre
La Crete, Alberta

Tuesday, January 23, 2001

Bill Neufeld Reeve

Frank Rosenberger Councillor
Betty Bateman Councitlor
John Driedger Counciflor.
Pat Kulscar ' Councillor
Joe Peters Councilior
Frank Rosenberger Councillor
Walter Sarapuk Councillor
Wayne Thiessen Councillor
Willie Wieler Councillor
Greg Newman Councillor

Harvey Prockiw Chief Administrative Officer
Eva Schmidt Executive Assistant
Paul Driedger Director of Planning and Emergency Services

Minutes of the regular Council meeting for the Municipal District of
Mackenzie No. 23, held on Tuesday, January 23, 2001, in the Council
Chambers, Mustus Lake Centre, La Crete, Alberta.

1. a) Cali to Order

Reeve Neufeld called the Council meeting to order at 7:32 p.m.

2. a)  ltems to Add or Delete from the Agenda

.| The following additions were made to the agenda:

11g) Aboriginal Advisory Committee

29



MOTION 01-034

ADOPTION OF
THE PREVIOUS
MINUTES:

MOTION 01-035

MOTION 01-036

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

.JANUARY 23, 2001

PAGE 2

11h) Northwest Alberta Resource Society (3
11i)  Ratepayers Meeting Dates
12a) Regional Landfill

2, b) Adoption of the Agenda’

MOVED by Councillor Thiessen
That the agenda be adopted as amended.

CARRIED

3. a) Minutes of the January 9, 2001
Committee of the Whole Meeting

MOVED by Councilior Wieler O

That the minutes of the January 9, 2001 Committee of the Whole
meeting be adopted as presented.

CARRIED

3. b Minutes of the January 9, 2001
Regqular Council Meeting

'MOVED by Councillor Wieler

That the minutes of the January 9, 2001 regular Council meeting be
adopted as presented.

CARRIED

3. c) Minutes of the January 16, 2001
Special Council Budget Meeting

@

24



MOTION 01-037

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

JANUARY 23, 2001

PAGE 3

MOVED by Councillor Wieler

- That the minutes of the January 16, 2001 Special Council Budget

meeting be adopted as presented.

CARRIED
BUSINESS ARISING
OUT OF THE
MINUTES: 4. a)

There were no items under this heading.
PUBLIC
HEARINGS: 5. a)

There were no items under this heading.
DELEGATIONS: | 6. a)

There were no items under this heading.
COUNCIL
COMMITTEE AND
CAQ REPORTS: |7. a) . Council Committee Reports

Councillors presented the Council Committee reports as follows:

Councillor Rosenberger reported on the Policing Task Force meeting
stating that the recommendations will be brought tc a Council meeting.
Councillor Peters reported no meetings.

Councilior Wieler reported on the La Crete Recreation Society meeting
stating they are applying for grants; Upper Hay Advisory Committee
meeting, the Committee is in the process of dissolving because past
timber permits are turning into quotas, they had a public meeting in La
Crete regarding timber quotas, there is virtually no opposition.
Councillor Sarapuk reported on the Footner Forest Advisory
Committee and addressed the issue of logs on the road, turnoffs will
pbe made so truck drivers can check their loads.

25




MOTION 01-038

MOTION 01-039

MOTION 01-040

PLANNING AND
EMERGENCY
SERVICES:

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING '
JANUARY 23, 2001

PAGE 4

O

Councillor Bateman reported on the M.D. of Mackenzie Library Board -
meeting, they are putting policies in place program one of which gives
book gifts to mothers of new babies; Policing Task Force meeting.
Councillor Kulscar reported on the Policing Task Force and the

Request for Funding from Alberta Justice for the protection of victims
rights in sexual assault an domestic violence cases.

Councillor Thiessen reported no meetings.

Councillor Driedger reported on the Policing Task Force.

MOVED by Councillor Kulscar

That the Council Committee reports be accepted as presented.

CARRIED

7. b) CAO Report

Harvey' Prockiw gave a verbal repont,

MOVED by Councillor Rosenberger Q

That the Chief Administrative Officer's report be accepted as
presented.

CARRIED

7. c) December 2000 YTD Income Statement

' MOVED by Councillor Bateman

That the December 2000 Year to Date Income Statement be adcepted
as information.

CARRIED

8. a) Subdivision Time Extension ()



@

MOTION 01-041

PROTECTIVE

SERVICES:

AGRICULTURAL
SERVICES:

CORPORATE

SERVICES:

MOTION 01-042

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

JANUARY 23, 2001

PAGES

97MK099 - SE 10-106-15-W5M
MOVED by Councillor Thiessen

That a time extension be granted on subdivision application 97MK099
for SE 10-106-15-W5M to December 31, 2002.

CARRIED

g, a)

There were no items under this heading.

10. a)

There were no items under this heading.

11. a) Natural Gas Rebates

MOVED by Councilior Kulscar

MOTION 01-043

That a letter be written 1o Gary Friedel, MLA, requesting that the
Provincial Government provide natural gas rebates to municipalities.

CARRIED

11. b) Protection of Victims Righis

MOVED by Councillor Kulscar

That a letter be written to the Northwestern Health Services Region
supporting the appointment of a Steering Committee for the protection
7 of victims rights in sexual assault an domestic violence cases.

%WW

- ‘?”?



MOTION 01-044

MOTION 01-045

MOTION 01-046

MOTION 01-047

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING :
JANUARY 23, 2001

PAGE 6

CARRIED <j

11. ¢) M.D. of East Peace — Letter of Support

MOVED by Councillor Wieler

That the documentation from Alberta Infrastructure request by the
M.D. of East Peace for an east-west road connecting the Municipality
of Wood Buffalo and the Peace Region, be received as information.

CARRIED

11. d) Assessment Review Board Workshop

MOVED by Councillor Thiessen

That all Assessment Review Board members be authorized to attend
an Assessment Review Board workshop hosted by Municipal Affairs. O

CARRIED

11.  e) Risk Management Seminar

MOVED by Councillor Rosenberger

That all Councillors be authorized to attend the Risk Management

Seminar at Fairview College in La Crete on Tuesday, February 27,

2001.

CARRIED

11. )  Brownlee Fryett’'s Emerging Trends in Municipal Law

MOVED by Councillor Sarapuk

O

28



MOTION 01-048

MOTION 01-049

MOTION 01-050

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

JANUARY 23, 2001

PAGE 7

That the documentation regarding Brownlee Fryett's Emerging Trends
in Municipal Law seminar on February 9, 2001 in Edmonton, be
received as information.

CARRIED

11. g)  Aboriginal Advisory Committee

MOVED by Counciilor Kulscar

That a resolution recommending a committee be established to deal
with concerns regarding First Nations, be drafted and forwarded to the
Alberta Association of Municipal Districts and Counties Northern Zone
meeting and the Spring Convention.

CARRIED

11. h) Northwest Alberta Resource Society Request
Councillor Kulscar declared a pecuniary interest under section 170
(2)(b) of the Municipal Government Act and left the meeting room at
8:02 p.m.

MOVED by Councillor Thiessen

That the loan request from Northwest Alberta Resource Society be
received as information.

 CARRIED

Councillor Kulscar re-entered the meeting room at 8:05 p.m.

11. ) Ratepayers Meeting Dates

MOVED by Counciilor Kulscar



MOTION 01-051

OPERATIONAL
SERVICES:

MOTION 01-052

MOTION 01-053

IN CAMERA
SESSION:

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

JANUARY 23, 2001

PAGE 8

That the 2001 Annual Ratepayers meeting dates be scheduled for
Monday, April 2 in La Crete, Tuesday, April 3 in Fort Vermilion,
Wednesday, April 4 in High Level and Thursday April 5 in Zama.

DEFEATED

MOVED by Councillor Rosenberger

That the 2001 Annual Ratepayers meeting dates be scheduled for
Wednesday April 4 in La Crete, Thursday April 5 in Fort Vermilion,
Monday April 9 in High Level and Tuesday April 10 in Zama;
commencing at 7:00 p.m. in all locations.

CARRIED

12, a). Regional Landfill

MOVED by Councilior Thiessen

That administration bring back a report on providing additionai
Regional Landfills.

CARRIED

MOVED by Councillor Bateman

That Counclii give consideration to go into camera at 8:17 p.m. to
discuss issues under Section 23 of the Freedom of information and
Protection of Privacy Act.

CARRIED

13. a) Draft Order in Councii to Amend

Order in Council 264/99 — Specialized Municipality

30

®

-

O



O

MOTION 01-054

ADJOURNMENT:

MOTION 01-055

. MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
JANUARY 23, 2001
PAGE 9

MOVED by Councillor Kulscar
That Council come out of camera at 8:27 p.m.

CARRIED

14. a) Adjournment

MOVED by Councillor Wieler
That the meeting be adjourned at 8:27 p.m.

CARRIED

These minutes were adopted this

day of

Bill Neufeld, Reeve Eva Schmidt, Executive Assistant

Approved:

Sandra Cross, Official Administrator

LS



O









@

Municipal District of Mackenzie
Manager’s Report
February 1, 2001

Rocky Lane Ag Society
On January 31 I attended a Rocky Lane Ag Society board meeting. We discussed items
such as grants and the numerous projects they have plans for.

Municipal Government in the schools

As a result of my letters to the principals in the school division, I continue to be invited to
speak on municipal government. On January 30 I spoke to the Rocky Lane grade 6 class
and I am scheduled to present to the Buffalo Head School grade 6 class on February 2.

Meeting of the Fire Chiefs

On January 29 I participated in a meeting with the M.D. Fire Chiefs in Fort Vermilion.
Unfortunately, no one from Zama attended this meeting this group but they will be
meeting on a regular basis to improve the communication between the chiefs and the
M.D. administration. In the near future, through Paul Driedger, the chiefs will be
bringing forth recommended policy changes as well as a new fire bylaw.

MOU

I met with the FV Metis Local and some of their executive on January 22 to discuss what
the M.D. is proposing in relation to the MOU. They will support our efforts in this area
and are looking at representation on the MOU Management Board.

STEP Program

We have written all of the registered societies in the region asking that we be allowed to
use their name in applying for the STEP summer student grant. Not only do we expect to
increase our grant revenue but also in return we will endeavor to perform any tasks that
students are capable of completing for that organization (such as painting, cleanup, etc.)

The response has been good and I have met with a number of organizations to discuss
this.

Staff Meeting

A general staff meeting was held on January 19 in Fort Vermilion. This quarterly
meeting allows employees from all regions to discuss items of common concemn.
Performance Appraisals

All the staff reporting to me will have their annual performance appraisals completed by
mid February. Since I rate these staff on a year round basis this is primarily an exercise
in motivation and goal setting/monitoring.

Respectfully submitted,

Harvey Prockiw, CAO

2E



-
35

O









Po Box [5G0 -
LrCRETe, A TOR 2HO VIH. Scott SKime,

LAND USE BYLAW AMENDMENT APPLICATION
APPLICATION NO.__Z 72/[7/

COMPLETE IF DIFFERENT FROM APPLICANT

NAME OF APPLICANT NAME OF REGISTER OWNER
AN otizn) »Nigtrie y)IECE | | Anprew s derrir L) 1IEBE
ADDRESS ADDRESS
TOWN : TOWN
POSTAL CODE FHONE (RES) ° |'BUS. FOSTAL CODE | PHONE (RES) T BUS." 1
b j ' . ,

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE LAND AFFECTED BY THE PROFOSED AMENDMENT

QTR/LS. SEC. RANGE M. OR PLAN ‘BLK LOT G

we ™y e US| JZT1RTE

LAND USE CLASSIFICATION AMENDMENT PROPOSED:
FROM:_/ Co

: 2 @ [~Kesi (2] nSr; o"'?o: /%m}/ &5&/{4)94/ /"//le/ ”

REASONS SUPPORTING PROPOSED AMENDMENT:

ot ﬁg jké je J/Ulkf&/z;,

S0 00
THE REQUIRED APPLICATION FEE OF § \ ' RECEIPT NO.

DATE
NOTE: REG D OWNER’S SIGNATURE REQUIRED IF DIFFERENT FROM APPLICANT.
/ Zl ¢ T P Z {
REGISTE DATE



40

o

@

@



BYLAW NO. 242/00

BEING A BYLAW OF
THE MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23
IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA
TO AMEND THE EXISTING LAND-USE BYLAW NO.093/97 OF
THE MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE NO. 23

WHEREAS, Council of the Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23, in the Province of
Alberta, has adopted Land-Use Bylaw No. 093/97 of the Municipal District of Mackenzie
No. 23, ‘

WHEREAS, the Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 has the General Municipal Plan
adopted in 1995,

WHEREAS, Council of the Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23 has deemed it desirable
to amend the said Land-Use Bylaw in order to allow for Residential Development on the
subject land, and

NOW THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF MACKENZIE
NO. 23, IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, DULY ASSEMBLED, HEREBY ENACTS AS
FOLLOWS:

1. That the land-use designation of the subject land, known as Lot
B Plan 1878TR, and situated within the Municipal District of
Mackenzie No. 23, be changed from Hamlet Commercial-
Residential Transitional District (“HCRT") to Hamlet Residential
District 1 (*HR-1"} as shown on Schedule “A”, and

2. That this bylaw shall come into effect upon the passing of the third
and final reading of this resolution.

First reading given on the day of 2001

Bill Neufeld, Reeve Eva Schmidt, Executive Assistant
Second Reading given on the day of 2001
Bill Neufeld, Reeve Eva Schmidt, Executive Assistant



Third Reading and Assent given on the

Bill Neufeld, Reeve

Approved

Sandra Cross, Official Administrator
Municipal Affairs

day of , 2001.

Eva Schmidt, Executive Assistant

Refused

Sandra Cross, Official Administrato

Municipal Affairs

O

®



SCHEDULE “A”

Bylaw No. 242/01

1. That the land-use designation of the following property known as:

Plan 1878TR Lot B in the Hamlet of La Crete be amended from
Hamlet Commercial-Residential Transitional District “HCRT" to
Hamlet Residential District 1 “HR-1", as shown below:

P " I |
| -

- = I | t 1 I E Lk
12 Byl | ) g TR
SCHOOL 35 AVENUE <
2|1 3 gl ? !
38-U -
94 AVENUE .
Lol 1. E
1 o |
2 7 //
%
F 2
U .
WA ,
“l1° 1
e 7 1
From: Hamlet Commercial-ResidentiaI Transitional District
‘HCRT"
To: Hamlet Residential District 1 “HR-1"
Bill Neufeld, Reeve Eva Schmidt, Executive Assistant

EFFECTIVE THIS DAY OF -, 2001.




i L4l _ _\f EH A PN T HE IR
Smz M- 88, | P - z <x L1 i
14 ._..m m/um Mm __Tm Ef mm ! __a u_ m\m ! ,um “._.l_ 3
d A ¢ Jo ae L B1 | .n ‘.,u
! ; m 1m ; m m w..m_ . m. _.mu 5 _“de = N_W —
] A vy R KDY - .
mmu i “m i mm ¥ . .MI um mm j »Trnp.w_ m..l_ ml.mhm.. aulmmhr .
— [ _ m B - R = m 5 .m.._._..__
.Wunml.| Wmlwm—rﬂlial B E um .m = msm M muu
e L2

BRAT
wirr b
(WP,

18—
e

CH e -
i AR S ﬁ

PP

ELTL ¢
THESSEN

e 'I" .
















01/298/01

14:59 FAX 1 780 437 5993 AAMDC/JUBILEE + M0Z23 ¥ 001/001

ALBERTA ASSOCIATION of MUNICIPAL DISTRICTS & COUNTIES
4504 - 101 STREET « EDMONTON ALBERTA T&E 5G9 + TELEPHONE: (780) 436-9375 FAX: (780) 437-5993
Website: www.camde.com
LARRY GOODHOFPE - Executive Director

January 29, 2001

BY FAX:

TO ALL AAMD&C MEMBERS:

Re: CRTC Decision on Municipal Rights of Way

Last Thursday, the Canadian Radio-Television & Telecommunications Commission (CRTC)
issued their ruling in the case of the City of Vancouver vs. Ledcor. At the direction of our
members, the AAMD&C has been an active intervenor in this case, along with the Federation of
Canadian Municipalities.

While last weekK's ruling contains some positive results for municipalities, the CRTC has largely
rejected the key arguments put forward by the AAMD&C and FCM. In particular, the CRTC
has failed to recognize municipal authority over rights of way, and has specifically rejected the -
argument that municipalities have the authority to charge an access fee for the use of these
rights of way.

On the positive side, the CRTC has for the first ime acknowledged the impact that a
competitive telecommunications market is having on Canadian municipalities, and has stated
fhat telecommunications carriers must participate in, and contribute to the costs of, joint
planning and coordination with respect to the use of municipal rights of way.

FCM has already announced their intention to appeal the CRTC ruling to the Federal Court of

Appeal. The AAMD&C is currently assessing our options in this- matter, and will make a

determination shortly as to whether the further expenditure of membership revenues in this

matter is justifiable (we have already expended almost $150,000 in support of this intervention).

We are also in discussions with the AUMA regarding other possible inifiatives which we might
* jointly undertake to bolster the murnicipal position in this matter.

Any members intezested in further information regarding the CRTC ruling or the AAMD&C
approach to this issue are encouraged to contact either President Jack Hayden or myself, at 780-
436-9375.

Yours trul

Goodhope

%ecutive Director

Aa

[ —



50

O









= A MEMBER OF THE CANADA BUSINESS SERVICE CENTRE NETWORK =

BUSINESS SERVICE CENTRE

Centre de services aux entreprises
¥ ] ] L [
100-10237 104 Strest NW 100-10237 104° Rue NO

Edmonton, Alberta T5J 1B1 Edmonton (Alberta) TSJ 181 )
Tel, (780) 422-7722 or 1-800-272-9475 www.cbsc.ora/alberta Tél. (780) 422-7722 ou 1-800-272-9675
Fax (780) 422-0055 of Fax (780) 422-0055

January 5, 2001

- R ]
Reeve William Neufeld '@;@L‘L‘! \ @Lﬂj

Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23

P.O. Box 640 , "JAN 16 2001
Fort Vermillion, AB MUNICIPAL DISTRICT
TOH 1NO OF MACKENZIE NO, 23

M.D. - FORT VERMILION

Dear Reeve Neufeld:

I’d like to take this opportunity to update you on the services available through The Business
Link, Alberta’s primary Business Service Centre.

As you may already be aware, The Business Link was established in 1996 as a joint initiative of
the Government of Canada (through Western Economic Diversification), the Government of
Alberta (through Economic Development) and Economic Development Edmonton.

The Business Link provides Alberta entrepreneurs with information and advice on start-up,
incorporation, financing, regulatory requirements, market access, exporting, and public and
private sector programs and services. Referrals may also be made to the nearest provincial
government regional office, community futures development corporation, or other local
economic development office --- depending on the individual needs of the client.

Clients may access our services in a variety of ways: a toll free business information line; a
walk-in information centre located in downtown Edmonton; an extensive resource library; a
convenient 24-hour fax on demand service featuring over 1,100 business information documents;
information sessions featuring a variety of business topics; a guest advisor program offering the
expertise of the private sector; and an ever changing web site loaded with timely business
information.

The Business Link is Alberta’s first point of service for Team Canada Inc’s export informatjon
line, linking clients to export programs and services available both federally and provincially.
Therefore, we are also a member of Trade Team Alberta.

A2

= MEMBRE DU RESEAU DES CENTRES DE SERVICES AUX ENTREPRISES DU CANADA

A joint initiative of: ————— Une initiative conjointe de :

Coarady Abena - o



To extend our reach into Alberta communities, The Business Link coordinates a federally ( f)
funded initiative in cooperation with Western Economic Diversification and Alberta Economic
Development. This Regional Access initiative provides equitable access to business information

for small to medium-sized businesses through 34 sites across the province. '

Our clients range from the person just thinking about starting a business, to the successful
entrepreneur breaking into new markets. We pride ourselves in providing Albertans with the
most comprehensive business information available --- in the most practical, effective way.

I encourage you to advise entrepreneurs in your area about The Business Link. We invite you
and your constituents to visit our Centre --- either in person, over the phone or virtually --- to
familiarize themselves with the services we provide to help them on the road to success.

On behalf of the staff of The Business Link, best wishes for a happy and prosperous new year.

Yours truly,

Holly Palmer ,

General Manager O

HP/lic/md
Encl.

()

(] 4
M









JAN 31 2081 13:36 FR MD 23 HIGH LEVEL

JE-31=01 10:17AM FROM-EOMONTON CHAMBER OF COMHERCE 7999264880 TO 9274266

[ CUNSm | w7y P.B82/87

Suite 600, Sunlife Plact
101123 - 99 Swect
Edmentun, Albens -5 3GY
Tel. T804 26-4620 Eal, 245
Fax 180-426-7946
www.mzctthcnurun.com

Northern Neighbours, Southern Friends...
Edmonion Weelcomes the North !

xcanada’'s North has much {0 offer. We havé much to offer the North. As the Gateway 1o the

North, enormous opportunitios await Edmaonton and our friends in the north by working together’

,zpsssaﬁ"nﬁm ,
‘{Edmanton €dimonton

Mayor Bili Smith

The successtul generauon ot mutual business conhaence peween Edmonton and e normem
provinces and terntories, emanatng from yhe 1998 "Meel 1he Nonh~ conference. nas spawned
{ollow-up conference and Majer exmpition.

Speaking atd news cantersnce in November 2000 10 announce pians fora second conference
ang exnipinon., Mayor Bill Smith said’ vir)s clearly peneficial 1o Work ogemer for cantinued growth
and deveioprnent Our conference and expasiion wil play a role in conunuing the creation af
new DusINess retauensmips and cemenung existing ones.”

The Mayor sawd that the second "Maet e North’ conference and exposion will pe held atthe
Snaw Conterence Centre in Egmonton from April 9-11, and will again be focused on puiding
awareness and undersianding of the mual benefits that will come from ~srrengmening old ues,
puiding nNew relationsnips and shanag common ,csues, challenges and oppunumtias."

Since the inikdl conference he gHP diamend mine nortn ot yeliowknfe nas pecams fully
operauanal and (he Diawvik mine has peen approves and should be operational By 2003
Between e Two mines, they will represent between 10 and 15% of me worid's aramond
producuion.

Tne 2001 "Meetthe Norh" Snare he Vision Conference and Exposiion will De co-hostea by
Economic Development Egmonton and e Edmonton Chamver of Commetce.

Representing Me government of the Nortnwest Temitones, me Minister of Justice and Aboriginal
Affairs, Jim Amoing recaljed s presence atmnential conference angd expressed ergnusiasm for
me conunuavon of ne process.

“The Meet the Normn conference proviaes an ours1anding venue for exploring the unpreceuemed
economic and enrepreneurial opportuniues thar awai in Canaga's nart Tnrough proguctive
parmerships with southern pusinesses, induslry and |nstiauans the NWT ¢an achieve 1S wisian of
pecoming a “nave” rerntary. The contacts made atine Meet 1he Norh conference aré @ step in
hat girecuon.” sai6 Minister Antaine. _ EDMONTO

) v
7894247946 PAGE.O1



JAN-31-01 10:17AN FROM=EOMONTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE (BURLS (360

Edmontan’s business and cultural relanonsips with The Norih include not anly e 1ermiories norn
of e 60" paraliel, bul also the nornern pans of Alberra and its nexgnpounng provinces of
Saskatchewan and Rriush Columgia.

Representing he nonnern provinces at e Novemper News conference was Guy Bounlier. MLA (\

{or Fort McMurray, speaking in s capacity as chair of the Norhern Albena Development L

Council.

~Qne of the key goals of tna Northern AIberia Development Council is 10 butla parmershups wilh
others witn an nterest in agvancing northern gevelopment. Meet the North will provide
nUMErous opporunInes 1o build reiatonsnips and will provige 2 forum 10 snowcase the significant
contributions that nonem Alberna makes rothe Alpena advantage,” said Boutiier.

Recognizing e success thar nas rasuited from tne inimal canference, Economic Development
Edmeonton has upgraded s invaivement in the process from neing a majer parucipantto peing 3
co-hast with the City ana e Champer of Commerce.

~Maer the Norn is now vially ynporant for the maturing refauonships we nave bunll over e past
few years,” said Jim Eqwaras; presicent and CEO of Economic Development Egmanton. “The
sohd pannersnips beTween the greater Eamonton region and The horthern communiies have
created pramising opporunines for fea) economic and Social gams...pensiuing all regions. Meer
the North helps wrn this potential into reality.” :

WERNEW EwRTFE: Lid Lt LDl ol

Overview of what 1o axpect

Conference: -
» 11 hreakout sessions (Ol/Gas, Mining; Tourism, Sustainahie ()
Communities, Northem/Southern Business Market intelligence and others) ’

» wMeot the Leaders” ons on ono program

» \nternationally renowned kaynote speakers

Exposition:
y 155 hooths representing Busginess and Northetn Resources, Tourism,
Govarnment and Associations, Health and Education, Arts and Culture,
Transportation and Communications
' gs\-rgo; 18 hours of show time with fully dressed and serviced 10x10 booths for

Full gerails of me conference and exposition, as e program aevelops. will be jncluded on the
conference’s web Site: www.meetthenorth.com.

Far funtner information, please comact:

Conference: Exposition:
Daie Monaghan Par Macinnes
Project Managéer Exposmon Coordinator
(780} 426-4620 extension 245 (780) 45B-9498
Email: amonaghan@ede.org email: profevts@teiusplanet.net
)

7804247246 PRGE. B2



JAN-31-01 10:1TA0

JAN 31 2801 13'3b FR MD 25 HIGH LeVeL
FROM-EDMONTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

Meet the North Conference

rEUSEZBAYSY (U Y9
T80AZ4 T4 raase |

. s/

The Edmaonton Chamber of Commezce, the Civy of Edmontan
and Bconome Development Rdmaniton Invite you £

Meet the North: Share the Vision
Conference and Exposition
April 9.11, 2001

Shuw Conference Cenmre

797 Jasper Avenue

Edmemton, Albert

f you have dealings, or are considering dealings, in Canada’s North —you need

to “Meet the North!”

The 2001 Meer the Norih: Share the Vision
Conference and Expusition builds on the success
of the 1998 conference. Thas two-day business
conference and exposition focuses onbusiness
development, networking and a scarch for solugons
1o the business, political and other challenges facing
Northerners — and providesthe porential for
financial and personal profic forall auendees.

Discussion topics at the Conference and within
the Exposition will include: economic
development, tounsi, transportation, affordable
access, health, potirical jurisdicnon and the changing
sconommy. Parricipants will also havethe apporunity
10 Meet the Leaders of the North in one-on-one
sessions to discuss issus of importance ta you and
your mdusTy:

Conference offerings include:
« ThePowerof Tourism Alliances
« Whar'supinOiland Gas
«  What'supin Mning
. Fnabling Sustawnable Developmentin the

North

. WhyisNorthem Development lmporant 10
the South?

. pnovative Community Suaegies for
Managing the Boom

» andseveral mord $B3510MS. .-

The Expositian will brisn with potential,
showeasing the skills. products and services from
‘he North and for the North. 1r’s a perfect venue 10

make linkages with potemial busInesses, Custamers
and markets. ‘

For further information, please conract:
Pat Maclnnes, Exposition Coordinaros
Meer the North: Share the Vision
Conference and Exposition
{780)458-9498

pmfevts@wlusplmt.nct

" 1an Welgo the No
Canada's North has much 1o offer. We have rauch
10 offer the North. As the Gateway 10 Ihe Norih,
€NOTNOUS oppormunities await Edmonion and the
businasses that reside here.

For further information, please contacl:
Dale Monagis Project Manager

Meet the North: Share the Vision
Conference and Exposirion

(780) 426-4620 ext. 243
dmonaghan@ede.0rg

or visit ww.meeuhenonh.cum

qimon a8

o

78R424'7946 PAGE. 03



640

O

@









M. D. of Mackenzie No. 23

Resolution of First Nations Task Force W

WHEREAS Local Governments are responsible for the delivery of many key services to
their residents and the delivery of these services is contingent upon the municipality’s
ability to access property tax revenues through assessment of the local land base;

AND WHEREAS First Nations are increasing their efforts to control land and
development of both renewable and non-renewable resources located off reserve;

AND WHEREAS The Provincial Government has entered in Memorandums of
Understanding (MOU) with numerous First Nations without the input or consent of
affected municipalities;

AND WHEREAS local governments are not allowed to participate when land claims and
other treaty entitlements are negotiated;

And Whereas the resolution of aboriginal land claims and treaty entitlements and the
implementation of Memorandums of Understanding which provide First Nations with
effective control over local land bases can result in significant impacts on the financial
resources available to local municipal governments.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Alberta Association of Municipal Districts
and Counties establish a Member Advisory Committee on First Nation Issues, to develop
recommendations aimed at ensuring that provincial and federal aboriginal policy, and any
new agreements with First Nations, do not create undue hardship for local municipal
governments and non-aboriginal communities.

And Further Be It Resolved that the AAMD&C, alone and/or in partnership with the
Alberta Urban Municipalities Association and the Federation of Canadian Municipalities,
urge the Government of Alberta and the Government of Canada to directly involve
municipal representation, either through the municipal associations or directly through
the affected municipality, in all future land claim and resource negotiations.

Background:

The Provincial Government has entered into a series of Memorandums of Understanding
(MOU) with numerous First Nation across the province, most of which are located in the
north. These were intended as a device to allow input into the control of only renewable
resources such as air, land, water, forest, fish, wildlife, parks and natural areas but have
ballooned into an effective tool to control the use of large tracts of land located off of

(3



Indian Reserves. Often these agreements are tied to multi-million doliar timber ‘
allocations that bring substantial timber royalty revenue to the bands. These agreements _
are signed by the provincial Ministers of Environment and Aboriginal Affairs are then (
being used by the First Nations as a tool to control not only the forest industry, but the
energy industry as well. Coupled with the Supreme Court’s decision regarding respect
for traditional native lands the First Nations are effectively able to increase their control
on the development of the oil and gas sector.









M.D. of Mackenzie No. 23

Resolution on Lodge Requisition

Council for the M.D. of Mackenzie No. 23 would like the province to cap todge
requisitions. Council has asked that the resolution be forwarded to the Winter
Zone meeting.

Whereas, the Alberta Housing Act Section 7(1) provides management
bodies with the authority to requisition those municipalities for which the
management body provides lodge accommodation for the amount of the
management body’s annual deficit for the previous fiscal year arising from
the provision of lodge accommodation, and any amounts necessary o
establish or continue a reserve fund for the management body; and

Whereas, the Alberta Housing Act Section 7(5) provides that a
municipality shall pay to the management body the amount requisitioned
within 90 days of the mailing of the notice by the management body, and

Whereas, persons appointed to a Housing Management Board may have
no choice in increasing requisitions in order to meet increasing demand for
lodge accommodation, and

Whereas, municipalities may need to increase their mill rates due to the
requisitions by the Housing Management Boards

Therefore, be it resolved that the Alberta Association of Municipal

Districts and Counties urge the Government of Alberta to implement a new
policy which effectively freezes the amount which Housing Management
Boards can requisition from municipalities at 1999 levels, with any
additional funding requirements to be provided by the Government of
Alberta from provincial general revenues.

Background

The Alberta Housing Act allows Lodges to requisition municipalities for unlimited
amounts. Municipalities have no control over the amount of funding being
requisitioned even though they may need to increase tax rates accordingly.
Lodge requisitions within the M.D. of Mackenzie have risen by 69% since 1999.

The subsidy that the Provincial Government provides is inadequate to maintain
the lodges. Rural lodges are smaller than urban lodges and because of the fixed



costs incur substantially larger deficits than the lodges located in the large urban
areas.

The above resolution was submitted at the 2000 Winter Zone meeting as well as
the 2000 AAMDA&C Spring Convention as an emerging resolution. The resolution
was not passed at the Convention,

1@



ot FEB. -05' 01 (NON) 16:37  LOGAL GOVT DEV. TEL:780 420 1016 )/ 4y PO0I

T R | 0.C. | 54 /2001
5 SRS DUPLICATE JAN 3 0[ 2001
Order in Counc ORDER IN COUNCIL
‘Approved and ordered: |
W The Lieutenant Governor in Council amlends Order in Couneil
numbered O.C. 264/99 by striking out Schedule|1 and substituting the
attached Schedule 1. '
N Nr L loteinie e
FEED DOCUMENT THIS DIRECTION
IMPORTANT
FAX MESSAGE
O ' oM crPa Q(thp

COMPANY
FAX Ng
FROM_ 4 { lf’ fa'®

NO. OF PABES_ D
AE

ACTING JcHA1R

Far Information only

C - Abeiia

Recommended by: Minister of Municipal Affairs

Authority: Municipal Government|Act
(section 96)







,* FEB. 05 OL(NON) 16:37  LOGAL GOVT DV, © TEL:780 420 1016 b, 002

o SCHEDULE 1
ORDER

Speclal Provislons for the Organization and Operation of
The Municlpal District of Mackenzie No. 23

Definitions
1 In this Qrder,
(@) “new municipality” means the specialized municipality named “Ths Municipal District of

Mackenzie No, 23"
-(b) “old municipality” means the municipal district named "The.Municipz! District of Mackenzie
No. 23" formed by Order in Council numbered O.C. 757/94. '

Change of status to specialized municipality
2 &) The status of the old municipality Is changed to a specialized municipality to address
concerns about municipal government and management in @ municipality that serves a
number of unique communities within a very large tarritory.
(2) The provisions of the Municipal Government Act and other enactments are modified to the
O extent necessary to accomplish the intent of this order.

Council of new municipality

3 {m The council of the new municipality is to be comprised of 10 courjeillors.
4] One councillor must be elected frem each ward.
3) The first chief elecied official of the new municipality is to be appointed by the council of
the new municipality from among the councillors.

Wards

4 The wards of the new municipallty are those described in Schedule 2.

Requirement for valid bylaw or resolution

5 Despite section 181 af the Municipal Government Act, bylaws and rejolutions relating 1o the

following matters are not valid unless passed at a council meeting at whigh 2/3 of the counciliers
present at the meeting vote in favour of tha bylaw or resolution:

(a) procedures of the council of the new municipality;

() remuneration of the councillors;

AN A A




FEB. -05" 01 (MON) 16:37  LOCAL GOVT ULY.

{c) property tax;

ThL: /78U 420 [Ulb F.oUUY

(d) changing the number of counclliors, the boundaries of wards or the method of
selecting any chiet elected official subsequent to the first chiet elected ofticial;

(&) appointing and terminating the chief administrative officer;

{ adopting a budget;

(@ any other matter designated by the council pursuant to the|procedure established

under clause (a).

Temnination or amendment of agreaments

6 (1)

In this section, "agreement” means a revenue sharing or cost sharing agreement between

{a) The Municipal District of Mackenzie No. 23, and

(b} the Town of Rainbow Lake or the Town of High Level

mada before or after the caming into force of Order in Council numbered|0.C. 264/88.

(2)

FEB @5 2081 15:44

An agreament must not be terminated or amended without {he|written consent of the

parties to the agreement.

780 428 1816 PAGE. B3




